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TO OUR
SHAREHOLDERS

In 2011 The New York Times Company maintained its steadfast focus on high-quality journalism and

content across all of our properties and took major step in building our future with the launch of digital

subscription models at The New York Times and The Boston Globe These introductions created robust new

revenue stream that contributed to the Companys circulation revenue growth

As of year-end the Times Company had 406000 paying subscribers to all of the Companys digital products

underscoring the willingness of our readers and users to pay for the high-quality journalism our news

properties provide

Since the launch of its digital subscription plan The Times has also seen an increase in new home delivery

orders and improved retention compared with the period before the launch of the plan At the Globe

the approach to the digital subscription model was bit different introducing completely new site

BostonGlobe.com to complement the very successful Boston.com and it will take time to build that

audience and to grow its digital subscriber base

The Companys 2011 total revenues declined percent due largely to the decline of total Company

advertising revenues as we continued to confront challenging business environment characterized by an

evolving media landscape and uneven economic conditions We recognize that these uncertainties as well as

changing consumer behavior will continue to affect our businesses and we will continue to adapt

Despite these challenges our management team remains committed to maximizing shareholder value and

running the Company in highly disciplined manner We have focused heavily on our cost control efforts

over the past several years and in 2011 we further reduced operating costs percent

The Companys management team also significantly improved the Companys financial position in terms

of both liquidity and flexibility In 2011 our strong cash position bolstered by the proceeds from the sale

of approximately half of our interest in Fenway Sports Group and $225 million private debt offering in

November 2010 allowed us to prepay our higher interest debt three years early and to make meaningful

contributions to various pension plans We will remain disciplined in our approach to capital allocation and

will do so in way to maximize shareholder returns

The proceeds from the sales of the Companys Regional Media Group and an additional portion of our

interest in Fenway Sports Group both of which closed in early 2012 further strengthen our financial

position and enable the Company to continue our transformation to digitally focused multiplatform

media company

Our Companys evolution continues while we maintain the highest standards of journalism which was

highlighted last year by the announcement that each of our three news groups The New York Times Media

Group the New England Media Group and the Regional Media Group earned our industrys most coveted

award the Pulitzer Prize Regardless of the distribution model of our news and information our journalism

will always serve as the base of our brand reputation and remains our utmost priority

Looking ahead we will continue to enhance our content tools and apps to increase the engagement of

our users This also includes actively leveraging social media networks to encourage conversations and

debates while engaging with our journalism and content As an illustration of that relevance The New
York Timess main Facebook page now has million fans and The Timess main Twitter page has

million followers
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During the year the About Group faced variety of challenges including increased competition from other

content sites the effects of the algorithm changes Google implemented in the first quarter of 2011 as well

as economic conditions In the face of these headwinds About developed multifaceted plan to grow its

content and traffic and improve its display business We have put in place new management team which

has begun to make progress in implementing this plan

At year-end we saw the retirement of two of our senior executives Janet Robinson and Martin Nisenholtz

Janet served as our president and CEO since 2004 On behalf of our Board of Directors her management

colleagues as well as myself thank Janet for her dedicated commitment to the Times Company during

her 28 years of service her courage and leadership during the challenges of the past several years and for

the significant accomplishments during her tenure We also thank Martin for his guidance and innovative

thinking both of which were critical for the Company as it transformed into the preeminent multiplatform

news and information organization that it is today

The CEO search is in its early stages as our Board seeks to find the appropriate executive with digital and

brand-building experience to help guide our Company and its long-term growth strategy

In the interim we are fortunate to be able to rely on very strong deep and extremely talented management
team that remains focused on maximizing shareholder value We will continue to execute our strategy to

transform and rebalance our business through combination of prudent fiscal management strong focue

on diversifying our revenue streams and strengthening our digital businesses and the pursuit of new

opportunities for growth

As you know we suspended the Company dividend in 2009 This was one of many difficult decisions made

in response to challenging business environment that continues to be characterized by uncertainty As we
have noted any decision to reinstate the dividend at some level will be considered on an ongoing basis by

our Board of Directors

2011 was another year of shared sacrifices at our Company both for employees and shareholders

Given that my cousin and our vice chairman Michael Golden and jointly requested that the Board limit

our 2011 compensation to that of the prior year The money that was saved has reduced Company expenses

Together we should all look forward to 2012 where The New York Times Company will continue to innovate

and evolve while providing the unique insights on global national and local level that only it can deliver

c-
Arthur Suzberger Jr

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

February 23 2012
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PARTI

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K including the sections titled Item 1A Risk Factors and Item

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains forward-looking

statements that relate to future events or our future financial performance We may also make written and oral

forward-looking statements in our Securities and Exchange Commission SEC filings and otherwise We have

tried where possible to identify such statements by using words such as believe expect intend estimate

anticipate will project plan and similar expressions in connection with any discussion of future operating

or financial performance Any forward-looking statements are and will be based upon our then-current expectations

estimates and assumptions regarding future events and are applicable only as of the dates of such statements We
undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements whether as result of new information

future events or otherwise

By their nature forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results

to differ materially from those anticipated in any such statements You should bear this in mind as you consider

forward-looking statements Factors that we think could individually or in the aggregate cause our actual results to

differ materially from expected and historical results include those described in Item 1A Risk Factors below as

well as other risks and factors identified from time to time in our SEC filings

ITEM BUSINESS

INTRODUCTION

The New York Times Company the Company was incorporated on August 26 1896 under the laws of the

State of New York The Company is leading global multimedia news and information company that currently

includes newspapers digital businesses investments in paper mills and other investments The Company and its

consolidated subsidiaries are referred to collectively in this Annual Report on Form 10-K as we our and us
We classify our businesses based on our operating strategies into two reportable segments the News Media

Group and the About Group Financial information about our segments can be found in Item Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and in Note 19 of the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The News Media Group consists of the following

The New York Times Media Group which includes The New York Times The Times the International

Herald Tribune the IHT NYTimes.com and related businesses

the New England Media Group which includes The Boston Globe the Globe BostonGlobe.com

Boston.com the Worcester Telegram Gazette the TG Telegram.com and related businesses and

the Regional Media Group which included 16 regional newspapers other print publications and related

businesses in Alabama California Florida Louisiana North Carolina and South Carolina On January

2012 we completed the sale of the Regional Media Group to Halifax Media Holdings LLC for $143.0 million

in cash subject to certain adjustments

The About Group consists of the Web sites of About.com ConsumerSearch.com CalorieCount.com and related

businesses

Additionally we own equity interests in Canadian newsprint company supercalendered paper

manufacturing partnership in Maine Metro Boston LLC Metro Boston which publishes free daily newspaper in

the greater Boston area and quadrantONE LLC quadrantONE which is an online advertising network that sells

bundled premium targeted display advertising onto local newspaper and other Web sites

We also own 4.97% interest in Fenway Sports Group which owns the Boston Red Sox baseball club Liverpool

Football Club soccer team in the English Premier League approximately 80% of New England Sports Network

regional cable sports network that televises the Red Sox and Boston Bruins hockey games and 50% of Roush Fenway

Racing leading NASCAR team We sold 390 units in Fenway Sports Group in July 2011 and 100 units in February

2012 We continue to explore the sale of our remaining 210 units in Fenway Sports Group in whole or in parts
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Revenues operating profit and identifiable assets of
foreign operations are not significant

Our businesses are affected in
part by seasonal patterns in advertising with generally higher advertising

volume in the fourth quarter due to holiday advertising

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q Current Reports on Form 8-K and all

amendments to those reports and the Proxy Statement for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders are made available

free of charge on our Web site http /www.nytco.com as soon as reasonably practicable after such
reports have been

filed with or furnished to the SEC

NEWS MEDIA GROUP

The News Media Group reportable segment consists of The New York Times Media Group the New England
Media Group and through January 2012 the Regional Media Group The News Media Group generates revenues

principally from advertising and circulation

Advertising is sold in our newspapers and other publications on our Web sites and across other digital

platforms We divide
advertising into three main categories national retail and classified Advertising revenue also

includes preprints which are advertising supplements Our digital advertising offerings include mainly display

advertising such as banners large-format units half-page units and interactive multimedia classified advertising

and contextual advertising links supplied by Google

Circulation revenue is from amounts charged to readers or distributors for products in print online or through

other digital platforms Charges vary by property and by city and depend on the type of sale i.e subscription or

single copy and distribution arrangements

Advertising and circulation revenue information for the News Media Group appears under

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The New York Times Media Group

The New York Times Media Group comprises The Times the IHT NYTimes.com and related businesses The

Times daily Monday through Saturday and Sunday newspaper commenced publication in 1851 The IHT daily

newspaper commenced publishing in Paris in 1887 and serves as the global edition of The Times NYTimes.com was

launched in 1996

In March 2011 The Times began charging consumers for content provided on NYTiines.com and other digital

platforms in addition to its other paid subscription offerings on several e-reader devices The Times implemented
metered model that offers users free access to set number of articles per month and then charges users who are not

print home-delivery subscribers once they exceed that number All
print home-delivery subscribers receive free

digital access

In October 2011 the IHT launched digital subscription packages for full access to its news apps on the iPhone

and iPad and on NYTimes.com These digital packages are free to IHT home-delivery subscribers who subscribe for

minimum of five days per week

Audience

The Times and the IHT reach broad audience in print online at NYTimes.com and global.nytimes.com

formerly tht.com and on other digital platforms The Times and the IHT have also expanded their reach and

deepened engagement with readers and users by delivering content online and across other digital platforms

including mobile and e-reader applications and social networking sites

According to reports filed with the Audit Bureau of Circulations ABC an independent agency that audits

the circulation of most U.S newspapers and magazines for the six-month period ended September 30 2011 The

Times had the largest daily and Sunday circulation of all seven-day newspapers in the United States For the year
ended December 25 2011 The Timess average circulation which includes paid and verified circulation of the

newspaper in print online and on other digital platforms was 1317100 for weekday Mon Fri and 1781100 for

Sunday Under ABCs reporting guidance verified circulation represents copies available for individual consumers

that are either non-paid or paid by someone other than the individual such as copies served to schools and colleges

and copies purchased by businesses for free distribution The Timess average circulation for 2011 captures for the first

time paid subscribers to its digital subscription packages since The Times began offering them in March 2011 In 2011
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approximately 75% of the weekday and 81% of the Sunday circulation was sold through print or digital subscriptions

the remainder was sold primarily on newsstands Approximately 40% of the weekday and Sunday average

circulation in print and on digital platforms is in the 31 counties that make up the greater New York City area which

includes New York City Westchester Long Island and parts of upstate New York Connecticut New Jersey
and

Pennsylvania approximately 60% is elsewhere

The IHTs average circulation which includes newspapers sold in print
and electronic replica editions for the

years
ended December 25 2011 and December 26 2010 was 226207 estimated and 217700 respectively These

figures follow the guidance of Office de Justification de la Diffusion an agency based in Paris and member of the

International Federation of Audit Bureaux of Circulations that audits the circulation of most of Frances newspapers

and magazines The final 2011 figure will not be available until April 2012

According to comScore Media Metrix an online audience measurement service in 2011 NYTimes.com had

monthly average of approximately 33 million unique visitors in the United States and approximately 48 million

unique visitors worldwide Paid subscribers to digital subscription packages e-readers and replica editions of The

Times and the IHT totaled approximately 390000 as of our fiscal year ended December 25 2011

Advertising

According to data compiled by Kantar Media an independent agency that measures advertising sales volume

and estimates advertising revenue The Times had the largest
market share in 2011 in print advertising revenues

among national newspaper set that consists of USA Today The Wall Street Journal and The Times Approximately

three-quarters of The New York Times Media Groups total advertising revenues in 2011 came from national

advertisers Based on recent data provided by Kantar Media we believe The Times ranks first by substantial margin

in print advertising revenues in the general weekday and Sunday newspaper field in the New York metropolitan area

Production and Distribution

The Times is currently printed at our production and distribution facility in College Point N.Y as well as under

contract at 26 remote print sites across the United States The Times is delivered to newsstands and retail outlets in the

New York metropolitan area through combination of third-party wholesalers and our own drivers In other markets

in the United States and Canada The Times is delivered through agreements with other newspapers and third-party

delivery agents

The IHT is printed under contract at 40 sites throughout the world and is sold in more than 160 countries and

territories

Other Businesses

The New York Times Media Groups other businesses include

The New York Times Index which produces and licenses The New York Times Index print publication

Digital Archive Distribution which licenses electronic archive databases to resellers of that information in the

business professional and library markets and

The New York Times News Services Division which is made up of Syndication Sales and Business

Development Syndication Sales transmits articles graphics and photographs from The Times the Globe and

other publications to over 1400 newspapers magazines and Web sites in nearly 100 countries and territories

worldwide Business Development principally comprises photo archives The New York Times store book

development and rights
and permissions

We also have 57% ownership interest in Epsilen LLC an online education business and its operating results

are consolidated in the results of The New York Times Media Group

In October 2011 we sold Baseline leading online subscription database and research service for information

on the film and television industries and provider of premium film and television data to Web sites
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New England Media Group

The New England Media Group comprises the Globe BostonGlobe.com Boston.com the TG Telegram.com
and related businesses The Globe is

daily and Sunday newspaper that commenced publication in 1872 The TG is

daily and Sunday newspaper that began publishing in 1866

h-i 2011 the Globe developed two distinct online brands to better serve wide array of consumers and
advertisers In September 2011 the Globe launched new paid subscription Web site BostonGlobe.com which offers

exclusive access to the full range and depth of content produced by the newspapers journalists in format

optimized for reading on tablet smartphone laptop and desktop The Globe began charging for content provided
on BostonGlobe.com in October 2011 and all print home-delivery subscribers receive free digital access

This new site complements Boston.com Web site that previously included all Globe content and has now
been refocused and enhanced as community portal for the greater Boston area Boston.com remains free to

consumers and continues to offer among other things breaking news and
sports coverage community conversations

blogs daily deals entertainment listings and classifieds along with wide array of new content and select
offerings

from the Globe

Audience

The Globe reaches broad audience in print online and other digital platforms The Globe is distributed in

print throughout New England although its circulation is concentrated in the Boston metropolitan area The Globe

has expanded its reach and deepened engagement with readers and users by delivering content online and across

other digital platforms including mobile and e-reader applications and social networking sites

According to reports filed with ABC for the six-month period ended September 30 2011 the Globe ranked first

in New England for both daily and Sunday circulation For the year ended December 25 2011 the Globes average
circulation which includes paid and verified circulation of the newspaper in print online and other

digital platforms
was 206900 for weekday Mon Fri and 354800 for Sunday The Globes average circulation for 2011 captures for

the first time paid subscribers to the BostonGlobe.com pay site since its launch in the fall of 2011 Approximately 74%
of the Globes weekday and 72% of its Sunday circulation was sold through print

and
digital subscriptions in 2011

the remainder was sold primarily on newsstands

Boston.com New Englands largest regional news and information Web site in 2011 had monthly average of

approximately million unique visitors in the United States according to comScore Media Metrix In December 2011
the new paid subscription Web site BostonGlobe.com had over million unique visitors in the United States

according to comScore Media Metrix Paid digital subscribers to BostonGlobe.com e-readers and
replica editions

totaled approximately 16000 as of our fiscal year end December 25 2011

The TG and several Company-owned non-daily newspapers some published under the name of Coulter

Press circulate throughout Worcester County and northeastern Connecticut According to
reports filed with ABC for

the six-month period ended September 30 2011 the TG ranked seventh in New England in daily and Sunday
circulation volume Telegram.com began offering paid digital subscriptions in August 2010 implementing metered

model that offers users free access to set number of local news articles per month and then charges users who are

not print home-delivery subscribers once they exceed that number for full access to articles produced by its staff on
Telegram.com All print home-delivery subscribers receive free digital access For the year ended December 25 2011
the TGs average circulation which includes paid and verified circulation of the newspaper in print and online was
74100 for weekday Mon Fri and 83000 for Sunday

Advertising

The sales forces of the New England Media Group sell retail national and classified advertising across multiple
channels including print digital direct marketing niche magazines and events capitalizing on opportunities to

deliver to national and local advertisers broad audience in the New England region Nearly one-third of the New
England Media Groups advertising revenues in 2011 came from national advertisers

Production and Distribution

The Globe is
currently printed at its facility in Boston Mass The TG is currently printed at its facility in

Millbury Mass and beginning in the second quarter of 2012 will be printed at the Globes facility in Boston Mass
All of the Globes and TGs print subscription circulation was delivered by third-party service in 2011
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Regional Media Group

On January 2012 we completed the sale of the Regional Media Group consisting of 16 regional newspapers

other print publications and related businesses to Halifax Media Holdings LLC for $143.0 million in cash subject to

certain adjustments The Regional Media Group comprised the following publications

Sarasota Herald-Tribune in Sarasota Fla

The Press Democrat in Santa Rosa Calif

The Ledger in Lakeland Fla
Star-News in Wilmington N.C
Herald-Journal in Spartanburg S.C
Star-Banner in Ocala Fla

The Gainesville Sun in Gainesville Fla

The Tuscaloosa News in Tuscaloosa Ala
The Gadsden Times in Gadsden Ala
The Courier in Houma La
Times-News in Hendersonville N.C
Daily Comet in Thibodaux La
The Dispatch in Lexington N.C
Petaluma Argus-Courier in Petaluma Calif

News Chief in Winter Haven Fla and

North Bay Business Journal in Santa Rosa Calif

ABOUT GROUP

The About Group includes the Web sites of About.com ConsumerSearch.com CalorieCount.com and related

businesses

About.com focuses on delivering at scale high-quality expert content on everyday topics that is personally

relevant to its users The topic sites on the About.com platform are supported by independent freelance subject-

matter experts or Guides who create and publish original content across variety of subject matters At the end of

2011 About.com had more than 900 topic sites supported by independent Guides across more than 115000 topics in

over million articles The About.com platform has expanded its reach and deepened engagement with users by

delivering content across other digital platforms including mobile applications and social networking sites launching

Spanish-language channel in 2011 and increasing the number of how-to and do-it-yourself videos across its 24

channels with more than 10000 videos at the end of 2011 According to comScore Media Metrix in December 2011

About.com had approximately 60 million unique visitors in the United States and 108 million unique visitors

worldwide

ConsumerSearch.com analyzes expert and user-generated consumer product reviews and recommends the best

products to purchase based on the findings CalorieCount.com is an online resource that offers weight management

tools nutritional information and social support that is personally relevant to its users In February 2011 we sold

UCompareHealthCare.com which provides dynamic Web-based interactive tools that enable users to measure the

quality of certain healthcare services

The About Group generates revenues through cost-per-click advertising sponsored links for which the About

Group is paid when user clicks on the ad display advertising and e-commerce including sales lead generation

Almost all of its revenues 95% in 2011 are derived from the sale of cost-per-click advertising and display advertising

Cost-per-click advertising which in 2011 represented 56% of the About Groups total advertising revenues is

principally derived from an arrangement with Google under which third-party advertising is placed on the About

Groups Web sites

FOREST PRODUCTS INVESTMENTS AND OTHER JOINT VENTURES

We have ownership interests in one newsprint mill and one mill producing supercalendered paper polished

paper used in some magazines catalogs and preprinted inserts which is higher-value grade than newsprint the

Forest Products Investments as well as in Fenway Sports Group Metro Boston and quadrantONE These

investments were accounted for under the equity method and reported in Investments in joint ventures in our

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 25 2011 For additional information on our investments seeItem

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Note of the Notes to
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the Consolidated Financial Statements

Forest Products Investments

We have 49% equity interest in Canadian newsprint company Donohue Malbaie Inc Malbaie The other

51% is owned by AbiBow Canada Inc subsidiary of AbitibiBowater Inc currently doing business as Resolute

Forest Products Resolute large global manufacturer of paper market pulp and wood products Malbaie

manufactures newsprint on the paper machine it owns within Resolutes paper mill in Clermont Quebec Malbaie is

wholly dependent upon Resolute for its pulp which is purchased by Malbaie from Resolutes paper mill in Clermont

Quebec In 2011 Malbaie produced approximately 205000 metric tons of newsprint of which approximately 17% was
sold to us with the balance sold to Resolute for resale

We have 40% equity interest in Madison Paper Industries Madison partnership operating

supercalendered paper mill in Madison Maine Madison purchases the majority of its wood from local suppliers

mostly under long-term contracts In 2011 Madison produced approximately 195000 metric tons of which

approximately 6% was sold to us

Malbaie and Madison are subject to comprehensive environmental protection laws regulations and orders of

provincial federal state and local authorities of Canada or the United States the Environmental Laws The

Environmental Laws impose effluent and emission limitations and require Malbaie and Madison to obtain and

operate in compliance with the conditions of permits and other governmental authorizations Governmental

Authorizations Malbaie and Madison follow policies and operate monitoring programs designed to ensure

compliance with applicable Environmental Laws and Governmental Authorizations and to minimize exposure
to environmental liabilities Various regulatory authorities periodically review the status of the operations of Malbaie

and Madison Based on the foregoing we believe that Malbaie and Madison are in substantial compliance with such

Environmental Laws and Governmental Authorizations

Other Joint Ventures

We own 4.97% interest in Fenway Sports Group which owns the Boston Red Sox baseball club Liverpool

Football Club soccer team in the English Premier League approximately 80% of New England Sports Network

regional cable sports network and 50% of Roush Fenway Racing leading NASCAR team We sold 390 of our units

in Fenway Sports Group in July 2011 and 100 units in February 2012 We continue to explore the sale of our remaining

210 units in Fenway Sports Group in whole or in parts

We own 49% interest in Metro Boston which publishes free daily newspaper in the greater Boston area

We also own 25% interest in quadrantONE which is an online advertising network that sells bundled

premium targeted display advertising onto local newspaper and other Web sites The Web sites of the New England

Media Group currently participate in this network

RAW MATERIALS

The primary raw materials we use are newsprint and supercalendered paper We puithase newsprint from

number of North American producers In 2011 the paper used by The New York Times New England and Regional

Media Groups was purchased from unrelated suppliers and related suppliers in which we hold equity interests see
Forest Products Investments significant portion of newsprint is purchased from Resolute

In 2011 and 2010 we used the following types and quantities of paper

Coated
Supercalendered

Newsprint and Other Paper

In metric tons 2011 2010 2011 2010

The New York Times Media Group1 138000 145000 15300 14900

New England Media Group 41000 45000 1600 1800

Regional Media Group 36000 38000

Total 215000 228000 16900 16700

The Times and the Globe use coated supercalendered or other paper for The New Yoik limes Magazine The New Yoik Times Style

Magazine and the GIobs Sunday Magazine
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COMPETITION

Our media properties
and investments compete for advertising and consumers with other media in their

respective markets including paid and free newspapers Web sites digital platforms and applications social media

broadcast satellite and cable television broadcast and satellite radio magazines other forms of media and direct

marketing Competition for advertising is generally based upon audience levels and demographics price service

targeting capabilities
and advertising results while competition for circulation and readership is generally based

upon platform format content quality service timeliness and price

The Times competes for advertising and circulation primarily with national newspapers such as The Wall Street

Journal and USA Today newspapers of general circulation in New York City and its suburbs other daily and weekly

newspapers and television stations and networks in markets in which The Times circulates and some national news

and lifestyle magazines

The IHTs key competitors include all international sources of English-language news including The Wall Street

Journals European and Asian Editions the Financial Times Time Newsweek International and The Economist and

news channels CNN CNNi Sky News International CNBC and BBC

The Globe competes primarily for advertising and circulation with other newspapers and television stations in

Boston its neighboring suburbs and the
greater

New England region including among others The Boston Herald

daily and Sunday

In addition as result of the secular shift from print to digital media all of our newspapers increasingly face

competition for audience and advertising from wide
variety

of digital alternatives including news and other Web

sites news aggregation sites social media sites online advertising networks and exchanges online classified services

and other new media formats

NYTimes.com Boston.com and BostonGlobe.com primarily compete for advertising and traffic with other

advertising-supported news and information Web sites such as Google News Yahoo News MSNBC and CNN.com

online advertising networks and exchanges and classified advertising portals Internationally global.nytimes.com

competes against international online sources of English language news such as bbc.co.uk guardian.co.uk and

reuters.com

About.com competes for advertising and traffic with large-scale portals such as AOL MSN and Yahoo and

across broad array of digital advertising media including advertising networks and exchanges About.com also

competes with other content providers such as Demand Media and Associated Content as well as targeted Web sites

such as WebMD CNET and iVillage whose content overlaps with that of About.coms individual topics

EMPLOYEES

We had approximately 7273 full-time equivalent employees as of December 25 2011

EmpJoyees

The New York Times Media Group 3056

New England Media Group 1909

Regional Media Group1 1689

About Group 214

Corporate 405

Total Company 7273

On January 2012 sold the Regional Media Group
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Labor Relations

As of December 25 2011 more than half of the full-time equivalent employees of The Times and NYTimes.com

were represented by nine unions with 10 labor agreements As indicated below certain collective bargaining

agreements have expired and negotiations for new contracts are ongoing We cannot predict the timing or the

outcome of these negotiations

Employee Category Expiration Date

The Times and Mailers March 30 2011 expired

NYTimes.com New York Newspaper Guild March 30 2011 expired

Electricians March 30 2012

Machinists March 30 2012

Paperhandlers March 30 2014

Typographers March 30 2016

Pressmen March 30 2017

Stereotypers March 30 2017

Drivers March 30 2020

More than half of the full-time equivalent employees of the IHT are located in France whose terms and

conditions of employment are established by combination of French national labor law industry-wide collective

agreements and Company-specific agreements

More than half of the full-time equivalent employees of the Globe and Boston.com were represented by 10

unions with 12 labor agreements As indicated below certain collective bargaining agreements have expired and

negotiations for new contracts are ongoing We cannot predict the timing or the outcome of these negotiations

Employee Category Expiraton Date

The Globe and Drivers December 312010 expired

Boston.com Paperhandlers December 31 2010 expired

Boston Newspaper Guild December 312012

Engravers December 31 2012

Boston Mailers Union December 31 2012

Pressmen December 31 2012

Technical services group December 31 2012

Electricians December 31 2012

Typographers December 31 2013

Garage mechanics December 31 2013

Machinists December 31 2013

Warehouse employees December 31 2015

As
part of various cost-cutting measures in 2009 that resulted in amendments to certain collective bargaining

agreements the Globe agreed to profit-sharing plan based on the performance of the Globe and Boston.com in 2011

and 2012 Pursuant to these collective bargaining agreements the Globe expects to make profit-sharing payments in

2012 to eligible full-time union employees based on formula tied to the 2011 operating profit of the Globe and

Boston.com calculated in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

GAAP Such payments will reflect the lowest threshold at which payments are required to be made

Approximately one-third of the full-time equivalent employees of the TG are represented by four unions
Labor agreements with production unions expired or will expire on August 31 2011 October 2011 and
November 30 2016 The labor agreements with the Providence Newspaper Guild representing newsroom and
circulation employees expire on June 14 2012
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risk factors described below as well as the other information included in this

Annual Report on Form 10-K Our business financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely

affected by any or all of these risks or by other risks or uncertainties not presently known or currently deemed

immaterial that may adversely affect us in the future

Economic weakness and uncertainty in the United States in the regions in which we operate and in key advertising

categories have adversely affected and may continue to adversely affect our advertising revenues

Advertising spending which drives significant portion of our revenues is sensitive to economic conditions

National and local economic conditions particularly in the New York City and Boston methpolitan regions affect the

levels of our national retail and classified advertising revenues Economic factors that have adversely affected

advertising revenues include lower consumer and business spending high unemployment depressed home sales and

other challenges affecting the economy Our advertising revenues are particularly adversely affected if advertisers

respond to weak and uneven economic conditions by reducing their budgets or shifting spending patterns or

priorities or if they are forced to consolidate or cease operations Continuing weak and uncertain economic

conditions and outlook would adversely affect our level of advertising revenues and our business financial condition

and results of operations

Our businesses face substantial competition for advertisers

We face substantial competition for advertising revenues in our various markets from free and paid

newspapers magazines Web sites digital platforms and applications television radio other forms of media direct

marketing and digital advertising networks and exchanges Competition for advertising is generally based on

audience levels and demographics price service and advertising results It has intensified as result of both the

continued development and fragmentation of digital media and adverse economic conditions Competition from all

of these media and services affects our ability to attract and retain advertisers and consumers and to maintain or

increase our advertising rates

The increasing popularity of digital media and the shift in consumer ha bits and advertisingexpenditures from traditional

to digital media has adversely affected and may continue to adversely affect our print advertising revenues

Web sites applications for mobile devices social networking tools and other digital platforms distributing news

and other content continue to gain popularity This migration to digital technologies among both providers and

consumers of content is likely to continue with companies seeking greater efficiencies and consumers seeking more

value convenience and timeliness of digital technologies As result print subscriptions may decline and advertising

spending may continue to shift from traditional media forms to digital media We expect that advertisers will

continue to allocate increasing portions of their budgets to digital media which through pay-for-performance and

keyword-targeted advertising can offer more measurable returns than traditional print media This secular shift has

intensified competition for advertising
in traditional media and has contributed to and is likely to continue to

contribute to decline in print advertising revenue

We may not achieve sufficient subscribers or audience levels to make our digital pay models financially attractive

During 2011 we launched digital subscriptions at The Times the IHT and the Globe with the intention of

developing new consumer revenue stream while preserving our digital advertising business Our ability to build

subscriber base on our digital platforms depends on market acceptance consumer habits pricing an adequate online

infrastructure terms of delivery platforms and other factors Traffic levels may stagnate or decline as result of the

implementation of pay model which may adversely affect our advertiser base and advertising rates and result in

decline in
digital revenues If we are unable to convert and retain sufficient number of digital users to paid status

or maintain our digital audience for advertising sales our business financial condition and prospects may be

adversely affected

If we are unable to retain and grow our digital audience our digital businesses will be adversely affected

The increasing number of digital media options available on the Internet through social networking tools and

through mobile and other devices distributing news and other content is expanding consumer choice significantly

Faced with multitude of media choices and dramatic increase in accessible information consumers may place

greater value on when where how and at what price they consume digital content than they do on the source or
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reliability of such content News aggregation Web sites and customized news feeds often free to users may reduce

our traffic levels by creating disincentive for the audience to visit our Web sites or use our digital applications In

addition the undifferentiated presentation of some of our content in aggregation with other content may lead

audiences to fail to distinguish our content from the content of other providers Our reputation for quality journalism

and content is important in competing for revenues in this environment and is based on consumer and advertiser

perceptions If consumers fail to differentiate our content from other content providers in digital media or if the

quality of our journalism or content is perceived as less reliable we may not be able to increase our online traffic

sufficiently or retain base of frequent visitors to our digital platforms

Online traffic is also driven by Internet search results including search results provided by Google the primary

search engine directing traffic to the Web sites of the About Group and many of our other sites Search engines

frequently update and change the methods for
directing search queries to Web pages or change methodologies and

metrics for valuing the quality and performance of Internet traffic on delivering cost-per-click advertisements Any
such changes could decrease the amount of revenue that we generate from online advertisements The failure to

successfully manage search engine optimization efforts across our businesses could result in
significant decrease in

traffic to our various Web sites which could result in substantial decreases in conversion rates and repeat business as

well as increased costs if we were to replace free traffic with paid traffic any or all of which would adversely affect

our business financial condition and results of operations

If traffic levels stagnate or decline we may not be able to create sufficient advertiser interest in our digital

businesses or to maintain or increase the advertising rates of the inventory on our digital platforms Even if we
maintain traffic levels the market position of our brands may not be enough to counteract significant downward

pressure on advertising rates as result of significant increase in inventory

The About Group depends upon arrangements with Google and any changes in this relationship or Googles practices

could adversely affect its business financial condition and results of operations

Cost-per-click revenue of the About Group is principally derived from an arrangement with Google If the

About Group is unable to continue the existing agreement with Google on favorable terms and conditions or if

Googles position in the marketplace wanes the About Groups business financial condition and results of operations

would be adversely affected In addition the amount of revenue we receive from Google depends upon number of

factors outside of our control including the efficiency of Googles system in
attracting advertisers and serving up paid

listings on our content pages and judgments made by Google about the relative attractiveness to the advertiser of

clicks on paid listings on our Web pages Changes to Googles paid listings network efficiency or its judgment about

the relative attractiveness of clicks on paid listings on our Web pages has had and may continue to have an adverse

effect on the About Groups business financial condition and results of operations

To remain competitive we must be able to respond to and capitalize on changes in technology services and

standards and changes in consumer behavior and significant capital investments may be required

Technological developments in the media industry continue to evolve rapidly Advances in technology have led

to an increasing number of methods for the delivery of news and other content and have driven consumer demand
and expectations in unanticipated directions If we are unable to exploit new and existing technologies to distinguish

our products and services from those of our competitors or adapt to new distribution methods that provide optimal

user experiences our business financial condition and prospects may be adversely affected

Technological developments also pose other challenges that could adversely affect our revenues and

competitive position New delivery platforms may lead to pricing restrictions the loss of distribution control and the

loss of direct relationship with consumers We may also be adversely affected if the use of technology developed to

block the display of advertising on Web sites proliferates

Technological developments and any changes we make to our business model may require significant capital

investments We may be limited in our ability to invest funds and resources in digital products services or

opportunities and we may incur costs of research and development in building and maintaining the necessary and

continually evolving technology infrastructure It may also be difficult to attract and retain talent for critical positions
Some of our existing competitors and new entrants may have

greater operational financial and other resources or

may otherwise be better positioned to compete for opportunities and as result our digital businesses may be less

successful
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Decreases in print
circulation volume adversely affect our circulation and advertising revenues

Advertising and circulation revenues are affected by circulation and readership levels of our newspaper

properties Competition for circulation and readership is generally based upon format content quality service

timeliness and price In recent years our newspaper properties and the newspaper industry as whole have

experienced declining print circulation volume This is due to among other factors increased competition from

digital media formats and sources other than traditional newspapers often free to users declining discretionary

spending by consumers affected by weak economic conditions high subscription and single-copy rates and

growing preference among some consumers to receive all or portion of their news other than from newspaper We

have also experienced volume declines as result of our strategy to implement circulation price increases at many of

our newspaper properties
and to focus on individually paid circulation that is preferred by advertisers If these or

other factors result in continued decline in circulation volume the rate and volume of advertising revenues may be

adversely affected as rates reflect circulation and readership among other factors These factors could also affect our

ability to institute circulation price increases for our products at rate sufficient to offset circulation volume declines

We may also incur increased spending on marketing designed to attract and retain subscribers or drive traffic to our

digital products and we may not be able to recover these costs through circulation and advertising revenues

If we are unable to execute cost-control measures successfully our total operating costs may be greater than expected

which may adversely affect our profitability

We have significantly
reduced operating costs by reducing staff and employee benefits and implementing

general cost-control measures across the Company and expect to continue these cost management efforts If we do

not achieve expected savings or our operating costs increase as result of our strategic initiatives our total operating

costs may be greater than anticipated In addition if our cost-control strategy
is not managed properly such efforts

may affect the quality of our products and our ability to generate future revenue Reductions in staff and employee

compensation and benefits could also adversely affect our ability to attract and retain key employees

Significant portions of our expenses are fixed costs that neither increase nor decrease proportionately with

revenues If we are not able to implement further cost control efforts or reduce our fixed costs sufficiently in response

to decline in our revenues we may experience higher percentage decline in our income from continuing

operations

significant increase in the price of newsprint or limited availability of newsprint supply would have an adverse

effect on our operating results

The cost of raw materials of which newsprint is the major component represented approximately 8% of our

total operating costs in 2011 The price of newsprint has historically been volatile and may increase as result of

various factors including

reduction in the number of suppliers as result of restructurings and consolidations in the North American

newsprint industry

declining newsprint supply as result of paper mill closures and conversions to other grades of paper and

other factors that adversely impact supplier profitability including increases in operating expenses caused by

raw material and energy costs and rise in the value of the Canadian dollar which adversely affects

Canadian suppliers whose costs are incurred in Canadian dollars but whose newsprint sales are priced in U.S

dollars

In addition we rely on our suppliers for deliveries of newsprint The availability of our newsprint supply may

be affected by various factors including strikes and other disruptions that may affect deliveries of newsprint

If newsprint prices increase significantly or we experience significant disruptions in the availability of our

newsprint supply in the future our operating results will be adversely affected

The underfunded status of our pension plans may adversely affect our operationsfinancial condition and liquidity

We sponsor several qualified defined benefit pension plans We are required to make contributions to our

qualified defined benefit pension plans to comply with minimum funding requirements imposed by laws governing

these employee benefit plans The difference between the obligations and assets of the qualified defined benefit plans

or the funded status of the qualified defined benefit plans is significant factor in determining pension expense and

the ongoing funding requirements to those plans Our qualified defined benefit pension plans were underfunded as
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of the January 2012 valuation date and we expect to make substantial contributions in the future to fund this

deficiency In addition while we sold the Regional Media Group in January 2012 we retained pension assets and
liabilities and postretirement obligations related to employees of that business Future volatility and disruption in the

stock and bond markets could cause declines in the asset values of our qualified defined benefit pension plans In

addition decrease in the discount rate used to determine the liabilities for pension obligations will result in

increased liabilities If investment returns on plan assets are below expectations or interest rates decrease or remain

very low our contributions may be higher than currently anticipated As result we may have less cash available for

working capital and other corporate uses which may have an adverse impact on our operations financial condition

and liquidity

Due to our participation in multiemployer pension plans we have exposures under those plans that may extend beyond
what our obligations would be with respect to our employees

We
participate in and make periodic contributions to various multiemployer pension plans that cover many of

our union employees Our required contributions to these plans could increase because of shrinking contribution

base as result of the insolvency or withdrawal of other companies that currently contribute to these plans inability

or failure of withdrawing companies to pay their withdrawal
liability

low interest rates lower than expected returns

on pension fund assets or other funding deficiencies

We have incurred significant withdrawal liabilities to the multiemployer pension plans in which we participate

such as the liability assessed against us in 2009 in connection with amendments to various collective bargaining

agreements affecting certain multiemployer pension plans We may be required to make additional contributions

under applicable law with respect to those plans or other multiemployer pension plans from which we may withdraw
or partially withdraw Our withdrawal liability for any multiemployer pension plan will depend on the extent of that

plans funding of vested benefits If multiemployer pension plan in which we participate has significant

underfunded liabilities such underfunding will increase the size of our potential withdrawal liability

significant number of our employees are unionized and our business and results of operations could be adversely

affected if labor negotiations or contracts were to further restrict our ability to maximize the efficiency of our operations

Approximately half of our full-time equivalent work force are unionized As result we are required to

negotiate the wages salaries benefits staffing levels and other terms with many of our employees collectively Our
results could be adversely affected if future labor negotiations or contracts were to further restrict our ability to

maximize the
efficiency of our operations If we were to experience labor unrest strikes or other business

interruptions in connection with labor negotiations or otherwise or if we are unable to negotiate labor contracts on
reasonable terms our ability to produce and deliver our most significant products could be impaired In addition our

ability to make short-term adjustments to control compensation and benefits costs rebalance our portfolio of

businesses or otherwise adapt to changing business needs may be limited by the terms and duration of our collective

bargaining agreements

We may buy or sell different properties as result of our evaluation of our portfolio of businesses Such acquisitions or

divestitures would affect our costs revenues profitability and financial position

From time to time we evaluate the various components of our portfolio of businesses and may as result buy
or sell different properties These acquisitions or divestitures affect our costs revenues profitability and financial

position We may also consider the acquisition of specific properties or businesses that fall outside our traditional

lines of business if we deem such properties sufficiently attractive

Divestitures have inherent risks including possible delays in closing transactions including potential

difficulties in obtaining regulatory approvals the risk of lower-than-expected sales proceeds for the divested

businesses unexpected costs associated with the separation of the business to be sold from our integrated information

technology systems and other operating systems and potential post-closing claims for indemnification In addition

adverse economic or market conditions may result in fewer potential bidders and unsuccessful sales efforts Expected

cost savings which are offset by revenue losses from divested businesses may also be difficult to achieve or maximize
due to our fixed cost structure and we may experience varying success in reducing fixed costs or transferring

liabilities previously associated with the divested businesses

Acquisitions also involve risks including difficulties in integrating acquired operations diversions of

management resources debt incurred in financing these acquisitions including the related possible reduction in our

credit ratings and increase in our cost of borrowing differing levels of management and internal control effectiveness

P.12 THE NEW YORK TIMES COMPANY



at the acquired entities and other unanticipated problems and liabilities Competition for certain types of acquisitions

particularly digital properties is significant Even if successfully negotiated closed and integrated certain

acquisitions or investments may prove not to advance our business strategy
and may fall short of expected return on

investment targets

From time to time we make noncontrolling minority investments in private entities and these investments may
be subject to capital calls We may have limited voting rights or an inability to influence the direction of such entities

although income from such investments may represent significant portion of our income Therefore the success of

these ventures may be dependent upon the efforts of our partners fellow investors and licensees These investments

are generally illiquid and the absence of market inhibits our ability to dispose of them This inhibition as well as an

inability to control the timing or process relating to disposition could adversely affect our liquidity and the value we

may ultimately attain on disposition If the value of the companies in which we invest declines we may be required

to record charge to earnings

Our debt agreements contain restrictions that limit our flexibility
in operating our business

Our debt agreements contain various covenants that limit our ability to engage in specified types of

transactions For example these covenants among other things restrict subject to certain exceptions our ability and

the ability of our subsidiaries to

incur or guarantee additional debt or issue certain preferred equity

pay dividends on or make distributions to holders of our common stock or make other restricted payments

create or incur liens on certain assets to secure debt

make certain investments acquisitions or dispositions

consolidate merge sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets

prepay debt or

enter into certain transactions with affiliates

In addition our credit facility has springing financial covenant that requires us to satisfy minimum fixed

charge coverage ratio when availability under the credit facility falls below the greater of $16.7 million or 15% of the

commitment for three consecutive business days These restrictions limit our flexibility in operating our business and

responding to opportunities

Changes in our credit ratings or macroeconomic conditions may affect our liquidity increasing borrowing costs and

limiting our financing options

Our long-term debt is currently rated below investment grade by Standard Poors and Moodys Investors

Service If our credit ratings remain below investment grade or are lowered further borrowing costs for future long-

term debt or short-term borrowing facilities may increase and our financing options including our access to the

unsecured borrowing market would be more limited We may also be subject to additional restrictive covenants that

would reduce our flexibility In addition macroeconomic conditions such as continued or increased volatility or

disruption in the credit markets would adversely affect our ability to refinance existing debt or obtain additional

financing to support operations or to fund new acquisitions or capital-intensive internal initiatives

We may be required to record non-cash impairment charges with respect to certain of our assets

Each year we evaluate the various components of our portfolio in connection with annual impairment testing

We also continually evaluate whether current factors or indicators require
the performance of an interim impairment

assessment of those assets as well as other investments and other long-lived assets We may be required to record

non-cash charge if the financial statement carrying value of an asset is in excess of its estimated fair value Fair value

could be adversely affected by weak economic or market conditions within our industry that may have an adverse

impact on our projected future cash flows or our stock price An impairment charge would adversely affect our

reported earnings

We may not be able to protect intellectual property rights upon which our business relies and if we lose intellectual

property protection our assets may lose value

Our business depends on our intellectual property including our valuable brands content services and
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internally developed technology We believe our proprietary trademarks and other intellectual property rights are

important to our continued success and our competitive position

Unauthorized
parties may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain and use our content services technology and

other intellectual property and we cannot be certain that the steps we have taken to protect our proprietary rights will

prevent any misappropriation or confusion among consumers and merchants or unauthorized use of these rights

Advancements in technology have exacerbated the risk by making it easier to duplicate and disseminate

content In addition as our business and the risk of misappropriation of our intellectual property rights have become
more global in scope we may not be able to protect our proprietary rights in cost effective manner in multitude of

jurisdictions with varying laws

If we are unable to procure protect and enforce our intellectual property rights we may not realize the full

value of these assets and our business may suffer If we must litigate
in the United States or elsewhere to enforce our

intellectual property rights or determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others such litigation may
be costly and divert the attention of our management

Our Class Common Stock is principally held by descendants of Adolph Ochs through family trust and this

control could create conflicts of interest or inhibit potential changes of control

We have two classes of stock Class Common Stock and Class Common Stock Holders of Class Common
Stock are entitled to elect 30% of the Board of Directors and to vote with holders of Class Common Stock on the

reservation of shares for equity grants certain material acquisitions and the ratification of the selection of our

auditors Holders of Class Common Stock are entitled to elect the remainder of the Board and to vote on all other

matters Our Class Common Stock is
principally held by descendants of Adolph Ochs who purchased The Times

in 1896 family trust holds approximately 90% of the Class Common Stock As result the trust has the ability to

elect 70% of the Board of Directors and to direct the outcome of any matter that does not require vote of the Class

Common Stock Under the terms of the trust agreement the trustees are directed to retain the Class Common Stock

held in trust and to vote such stock against any merger sale of assets or other transaction pursuant to which control of

The Times passes from the trustees unless they determine that the primary objective of the trust can be achieved

better by the implementation of such transaction Because this concentrated control could discourage others from

initiating any potential merger takeover or other change of control transaction that may otherwise be beneficial to our

businesses the market price of our Class Common Stock could be adversely affected

Legislative and regulatory developments may result in increased costs and lower advertising revenues from our digital

businesses

All of our operations are subject to government regulation in the jurisdictions in which they operate Due to the

wide geographic scope of its operations the IHT is subject to regulation by political entities throughout the world In

addition our Web sites are available worldwide and are subject to laws regulating the Internet both within and
outside the United States We may incur increased costs necessary to comply with existing and newly adopted laws

and regulations or penalties for any failure to comply Advertising revenues from our digital businesses could be

adversely affected directly or indirectly by existing or future laws and regulations relating to the use of consumer
data in digital media
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JTEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

Our principal
executive offices are located in our New York headquarters building in the Times Square area

The building was completed in 2007 and consists of approximately 1.54 million gross square feet of which

approximately 828000 gross square feet of space have been allocated to us We owned leasehold condominium

interest representing approximately 58% of the New York headquarters building until March 2009 when one of our

affiliates entered into an agreement to sell and simultaneously lease back portion of our leasehold condominium

interest the Condo Interest The sale-leaseback transaction encompassed 21 floors or approximately 750000

rentable square feet currently occupied by us The sale price
for the Condo Interest was $225 million We have an

option exercisable in 2019 to repurchase the Condo Interest for $250 million The lease term is 15 years and we have

three renewal options that could extend the term for an additional 20 years We continue to own leasehold

condominium interest in seven floors in our New York headquarters building totaling approximately 216000

rentable square feet that were not included in the sale-leaseback transaction of which six floors are leased to third

party

In addition we built printing and distribution facility
with 570000 gross square feet located in College Point

N.Y on 31-acm site for which we have ground lease We have an option to purchase the property at any time

before the lease ends in 2019 We own facility in Boston Mass of 703000 gross square feet that includes printing

operations and offices We also currently own properties
with an aggregate of approximately 192000 gross square feet

and lease properties
with an aggregate of approximately 398000 rentable square feet in various locations which does

not include properties formerly used by the Regional Media Group which was sold on January 2012 These

properties our New York headquarters and the College Point and Boston properties are used by our News Media

Group Properties leased by the About Group total approximately 52000 rentable square feet

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are various legal actions that have arisen in the ordinary course of business and are now pending against

us Such actions are usually for amounts greatly
in excess of the payments if any that may be iquired to be made It

is the opinion of management after reviewing such actions with our legal counsel that the ultimate liability that might

result from such actions will not have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements

ITEM MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Employed By Recent Positions Held as of February 23 2012
Name Age Registrant Since except as noted

Corporate Officers

Arthur Sulzberger Jr 60 1978 Chairman since 1997 Chief Executive Officer since
December 2011 Publisher of The Times since 1992

Michael Golden 62 1984 Vice Chairman since 1997 President and Chief Operating
Officer Regional Media Group 2009 to January 2112
Publisher of the IHT 2003 to 2008 Senior Vice President

1997 to 2004

James Follo 52 2007 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since 2007
Chief Financial and Administrative Officer Martha Stewart

Living Onmimedia Inc 2001 to 2006

Anthony Benten 48 1989 Senior Vice President Finance since 2008 Corporate
Controller since 2007 Vice President 2003 to 2008
Treasurer 2001 to 2007

Todd McCarty 46 2009 Senior Vice President Human Resources since 2009 Senior
Vice President Global Human Resources The Readers

Digest Association 2008 to 2009 Senior Vice President
Human Resources Rite Aid Corporation 2005 to 2008
Senior Vice President North American Human Resources
Starwood Hotels Resorts Worldwide Inc 2000 to 2005

Kenneth Richieri 60 1983 Senior Vice President since 2007 General Counsel since

2006 and Secretary from 2008 to February 2011 Vice

President 2002 to 2007 Deputy General Counsel 2001 to

2005 Vice President and General Counsel New York Times

Digital 1999 to 2003

Operating Unit Executives

Scott Heekin-Canedy 60 19871 President and General Manager of The Times since 2004
Senior Vice President Circulation of The Times 1999 to 2004

Darline Jean 44 2005 President and Chief Executive Officer since September 2011
Senior Vice President 2010 to September 2011 Chief

Financial Officer 2006 to September 2011 and Vice

President Finance 2004 to 2006 of the About Group Chief

Operating Officer of About.com 2010 to September 2011

Christopher Mayer 50 1984 Publisher of the Globe and President of the New England
Media Group since 2010 Senior Vice President Circulation

and Operations of the Globe 2008 to 2009 Chief

Information Officer and Senior Vice President of the Globe

2005 to 2008 Vice President Circulation Sales of the Globe

2002 to 2005

Mr Heekin-Canedy left the Company in 1989 and returned in 1992
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PARTII

ITEM MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

MARKET INFORMATION

The Class Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange The Class Common Stock is unlisted

and is not actively traded

The number of security
holders of record as of February 17 2012 was as follows Class Common Stock 6738

Class Common Stock 28

No dividends have been declared or paid on our Class or Class Common Stock since the fourth quarter of

2008 The decision to pay dividend in future periods and the appropriate level of dividends will be considered by

our Board of Directors on an ongoing basis in light of our earnings capital requirements financial condition and

other factors considered relevant In addition our Board of Directors will consider restrictions in any existing

indebtedness such as the terms of our 6.625% senior unsecured notes due 2016 which restrict our ability to pay
dividends See Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Third-Party Financing

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low closing sales prices
for the Class

Common Stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange

2011 2010

Quarters High Low High Low

First Quarter 10.90 8.86 14.67 10.62

Second Quarter 9.67 7.19 12.80 8.35

Third Quarter 9.21 5.76 9.76 7.18

Fourth Quarter 7.97 5.65 10.00 7.60

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES1

Maximum Number

or Approximate
Total Number of Dollar Value

Shares of Class of Shares of

Average Common Stock Class Common
Total Number of Price Paid Purchased as Stock that May

Shares of Class Per Share of Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased

Common Stock Class Announced Plans Under the Plans

Purchased Common Stock or Programs or Programs
Period

September 26 2011 October 30 2011 91386000

October31 2011 November 27 2011 91386000

November 28 2011 December 25 2011 91386000

Total for the fourth quarter of 2011 91386000

On April 13 2004 our Board of Directors authorized repurchases in an amount up to $400 million During the fourth quarter of 2011 did not

purchase any shares of Class Common Stock pursuant to our publicly announced share repurchase program As of February 1Z 2012

had authorization from our Board of Directors to repurchase an amount of up to approximately $91 million of our Class Common Stock Our

Board of Directors has authorized us to purchase shares from time to time as market conditions permit There is no expiration date with

respect to this authorization

THE NEW YORK TIMES COMPANY P.17



EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

2011

The following table presents information regarding our existing equity compensation plans as of December 25

Plan category

Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders

Stock options and stock-based
18166000 $30 6771000

Employee Stock Purchase Plan 6410000

Total 18166000 13181000

Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders None None None

Includes shares of Class Common Stock to be issued upon exercise of outstanding stock options granted under the Companys 1991

Executive Stock Incentive Plan the 1991 Incentive Plan and the Companys 2010 Incentive Compensation Plan the 2010 Incentive Plan
as well as its Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan or Non-Employee Directors Stock Incentive Plan togethei the Directors Plans
Includes shares of Class Common Stock to be issued upon conversion of stock-settled restricted stock units under the 1991 Incentive Plan

and 2010 Incentive Plan

Includes shares of Class Common Stock available for future stock options to be granted under the 2010 Incentive Plan and the Directors

Plans As of December 25 2011 the 2010 Incentive Plan had 6539000 shares remaining for issuance upon the grant exercise or other

settlement of share-based awards The Directors Plans provide for the issuance of up to 496000 shares of Class Common Stock in the

form of stock options or restricted stock units The amount reported for stock options includes the aggregate number of securities remaining

approximately 232000 as 01December25 2011 for future issuances under those plans Stock options granted under the 1991 Incentive

Plan 2010 Incentive Plan and the Directors Plans must provide for an exercise price of 100% of the fair market value on the date of grant and

except in the case of the 2010 Incentive Plan which does not specify maximum term maximum term of 10 years

Includes shares of Class Common Stock available for future issuance under the Companys Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP We

have not had an offering under the ESPP since 2010

Number of securities to

be issued upon
exercise of outstanding

options warrants

and rights

as

Weighted average
exercise price of

outstanding options

warrants and rights

Number of securities remaining
available for future issuance

under equity compensation
plans excuding securities

reflected in column
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PERFORMANCE PRESENTATION

The following graph shows the annual cumulative total stockholder return for the five years ending December

30 2011 on an assumed investment of $100 on December 29 2006 in the Company the Standani Poors SP 500

Stock Index and SP MidCap 400 Stock Index and an index of peer group media companies In December 2010 the

Company was moved from the SP 500 Stock Index to the SP MidCap 400 Stock Index and we believe the latter

index now provides more meaningful comparison The peer group returns are weighted by market capitalization at

the beginning of each year The peer group is comprised of the Company and the following media companies
Gannett Co Inc Media General Inc The McClatchy Company and The Washington Post Company Stockholder

return is measured by dividing the sum of the cumulative amount of dividends declared for the measurement

period assuming monthly reinvestment of dividends and ii the difference between the issuers share price at the

end and the beginning of the measurement period by the share price at the beginning of the measurement period

As result stockholder return includes both dividends and stock appreciation
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The Selected Financial Data should be read in conjunction with Item Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the Consolidated Financial Statements and the

related Notes in Item The results of operations for WQXR-FM and WQEW-AM previously included in The New
York Times Media Group which is part of the News Media Group have been presented as discontinued operations

for all periods presented before the sale of WQXR-FM in 2009 The Broadcast Media Groups results of operations

have been presented as discontinued operations in 2007 The pages following the table show certain items included in

Selected Financial Data All per share amounts on those pages are on diluted basis All fiscal years presented in the

table below comprise 52 weeks

As of and for the Years Ended

In thousands

Statement of Operations Data

Revenues

Operating costs

Impairment of assets

Pension withdrawal expense

Loss on leases and other expenses

Net pension curtailment gain

Gain/Ioss on sale of assets

Operating profit/loss

lncome/Ioss from
joint ventures

Gain on sale of investments

Interest expense net

Premium on debt redemptions

Loss/income from continuing

operations before income taxes

LossIincome from continuing

operations

Discontinued operations net of income

taxes

Net loss/income attributable to The
New York Times Company common
stockholders

2393463 2440439

2136927 2307800

16148 4179

6268 78931

34633

53965

5198

234120 74059

19035 20667

9128

85062 81701

9250

3775

1569

13 18332

December 25 December 26 December 27 December 28 December 30
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

2323401

2093532

164434

4228

4500

56707

28

71171

85243

46381

3718

2939764

2783076

197879

41191

17062

47790

71919

65940

8602

3184757

2919031

11000

68156

186570

2618

39842

144110

86960

121637

177221

40224 108705

39669 107704 19891 57839 208704

Balance Sheet Data

Property plant and equipment net 1085190 1156786 1250021 1353619 1468013

Cash and cash equivalents and short-

term investments 279997 399642 36520 56784 51532

Total assets 2883450 3285741 3088557 3401680 3473092

Total debt and capital lease obligations 773140 996443 769217 1059375 1034979

Total New York Times Company
stockholders equity 506360 659927 604042 503963 978200
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As of and for the Years Ended

December 25 December 26 December 27 December 28 December 30
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

In thousands except ratios per share

and employee data

Per Share of Common Stock

Basic loss/earnings per share attributable to The New York Times Company common stockholders

Loss/income from continuing operations 0.27 0.74 0.01 0.46 0.61

Discontinued operations net of income taxes 0.00 0.00 0.13 0.06 0.84

Net loss/income 0.27 0.74 0.14 0.40 1.45

Diluted lossfearnings per share attributable to The New York Times Company common stockholders

Loss/iricome from continuing operations 0.27 0.71 0.01 0.46 0.61

Discontinued operations net of income taxes 0.00 0.00 0.13 0.06 0.84

Net loss/income 0.27 0.71 0.14 0.40 1.45

Dividends per share 0.750 0.865

Stockholders equity per share 3.44 4.32 4.13 3.51 6.79

Average basic shares outstanding 147190 145636 144188 143777 143889

Average diluted shares outstanding 147190 152600 146367 143777 144158

Key Ratios

Operating profit/Qoss to revenues 2% 10% 3% 1% 6%

Return on average common stockholders

equity 7% 17% 4% 8% 23%

Return on average total assets 1% 3% 1% 2% 6%

Total debt and capital lease obligations to total

capitalization 60% 60% 56% 68% 51%

Current assets to current liabilities 1.46 1.70 1.00 0.60 0.68

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 2.78 3.14

Full-Time Equivalent Employees 7273 7414 7665 9346 10231

in 20112009 and 2008 earnings were made quate to cover fixed charges by approximately $1 million $16 million and $56 million

respectively due to certain charges in each year
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The items below are included in the Selected Financial Data

2011

The items below had an unfavorable effect on our results of $161.9 million or $.94 per share

$164.4 million pre-tax charge $139.1 million after tax or $.94 per share for the impairment of assets

consisting of $152.1 million related to goodwill at the Regional Media Group $9.2 million related to certain

assets held for sale primarily of Baseline and $3.1 millionrelated to an intangible asset at ConsumerSearch

Inc which is part of the About Group

$71.2 million pre-tax gain $41.4 million after tax or $.28 per share from the sales of 390 of our units in

Fenway Sports Group and portion of our interest in Indeed.com job listing aggregator

$46.4 million pre-tax charge $27.6 million after tax or $.19 per share in connection with the prepayment of

our $250.0 million 14.053% Notes

$13.6 million
pre-tax charge $8.0 million after tax or $.05 per share for severance costs

$4.5 million
pre-tax charge $2.6 million after tax or $.02 per share for retirement and consulting

agreement in connection with the retirement of our chief executive officer

$4.2 million estimated pre-tax charge $2.7 million after tax or $.02 per share for pension withdrawal

obligation under multiemployer pension plan at the Globe whose results are included in the New England

Media Group

2010

The items below had an unfavorable effect on our results of $17.8 million or $.13 per share

$16.1 million pre-tax charge $10.1 million after tax or $.07 per share for the impairment of assets at the

Globes printing facility in Billerica Mass

$12.7 million
pre-tax gain from the sale of an asset at one of the paper mills in which we have an investment

Our share of the pre-tax gain after eliminating the noncontrolling interest portion is $10.2 million $6.4

million after tax or $.04 per share

an $11.4 million tax charge $.07 per share for the reduction in future tax benefits for retiree health benefits

resulting from the federal health-care legislation enacted in 2010

$9.1 million pre-tax gain $5.3 million after tax or $.03 per share from the sale of 50 of our units in Fenway

Sports Group

$6.8 million pre-tax charge $4.1 million after tax or $.03 per share for severance costs

$6.3 million pre-tax charge $3.9 million after tax or $.03 per share for an adjustment to estimated pension

withdrawal obligations under several multiemployer pension plans at the Globe

2009

The items below had an unfavorable effect on our results of $56.3 million or $.38 per share

$78.9 million
pre-tax charge $49.5 million after tax or $.34 per share for pension withdrawal obligation

under certain multiemployer pension plans primarily at the Globe

$54.0 million
pre-tax net pension curtailment gain $30.7 million after tax or $.21 per share resulting from

freezing of benefits under various Company-sponsored qualified and non-qualified pension plans

$53.9 million pre-tax charge $32.3 million after tax or $.22 per share for severance costs

$34.9 million pre-tax gain $19.5 million after tax or $.13 per share from the sale of WQXR-FM

$34.6 million pre-tax charge $20.0 million after tax or $.13 per share for loss on leases $31.1 million and

fee $3.5 million for the early termination of third-party printing contract The lease charge included

$22.8 million charge for loss on leases associated with the closure of City Suburban our retail and

newsstand distribution subsidiary and $8.3 million for office space at The New York Times Media Group
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$9.3 million pre-tax charge $5.3 million after tax or $.04 per share for premium on the redemption of

$250.0 million principal amount of our 4.5% notes which was completed in April 2009

$5.2 million pre-tax gain $3.2 million after tax or $.02 per share on the sale of surplus real estate assets at

the Regional Media Group

$4.2 million pre-tax charge $2.6 million after tax or $.01 per share for the impairment of assets due to the

reduced scope of systems project

2008

The items below had an unfavorable effect on our results of $180.1 million or $1.24 per share

$160.4 million pre-tax non-cash charge $109.3 millionafter tax or $.76 per share for the impairment of

property plant and equipment intangible assets and goodwill at the New England Media Gmup

an $81.0 million pre-tax charge $46.2 million after tax or $.32 per share for severance costs

$19.2 million pre-tax non-cash charge $10.7 million after tax or $.07 per share for the impairment of an

intangible asset at the TnT whose results are included in The New York Times Media Group

an $18.3 million pre-tax non-cash charge $10.4 million after tax or $.07 per share for the impairment of

assets for systems project

$5.6 million pre-tax non-cash charge $3.5 million after tax or $.02 per share for the impairment of our 49%

ownership interest in Metro Boston

2007

The items below increased net income by $18.8 million or $.13 per share

$190.0 million pre-tax gain $94.0 million after tax or $.65 per share from the sale of the Broadcast Media

Group

$68.2 million net pre-tax loss $41.3 million after tax or $.29 per share from the sale of assets mainly our

Edison N.J facility which we closed in Maith 2008

$42.6 million pre-tax charge $24.4 million after tax or $.17 per share for accelerated depreciation of certain

assets at the Edison N.J facility

$39.6 million pre-tax gain $21.2 million after tax or $.15 per share from the sale of WQEW-AM

$35.4 million pre-tax charge $20.2 million after tax or $.14 per share for severance costs

an $11.0 million pre-tax non-cash charge $6.4 millionafter tax or $.04 per share for the impairment of an

intangible asset at the TG whose results are included in the New England Media Group

$7.1 million pre-tax non-cash charge $4.1 million after tax or $.03 per share for the impairment of our 49%

ownership interest in Metro Boston
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and
analysis provides information that management believes is relevant to an

assessment and understanding of our consolidated financial condition as of December 25 2011 and results of

operations for the three years ended December 25 2011 This item should be read in conjunction with our

Consolidated Financial Statements and the related Notes included in this Annual Report

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

We are leading global multimedia news and information company that currently includes newspapers
digital businesses investments in paper mills and other investments We

classify our businesses based on our

operating strategies into two reportable segments the News Media Group and the About Group

The News Media Group consists of the following divisions

The New York Times Media Group which includes The Times the IHT NYTimes.com and related businesses

the New England Media Group which includes the Globe BostonGlobe.com Boston.com the TG
Telegram.com and related businesses and

the Regional Media Group which included 16 regional newspapers other print publications and related

businesses in Alabama California Florida Louisiana North Carolina and South Carolina On January

2012 we completed the sale of the Regional Media Group to Halifax Media Holdings LLC for $143.0 million

in cash subject to certain adjustments

The About Group consists of About.com ConsumerSearch.com and CalorieCount.com and related businesses

In February 2011 we sold UCompareHealthCare.com

Our revenues were $2.3 billion in 2011 The percentage of revenues contributed by division is below

-67%
The New York Times

Media Group

-17%
New England Media Group

11%
Regional Media Groupoj

to
About Group

News Media Group

The News Media Group generates revenues principally from advertising and circulation Other revenues

primarily consist of revenues from news services/syndication commercial printing rental income digital archives

and direct mail advertising services The News Media Groups main operating costs are employee-related costs and

raw materials primarily newsprint

News Media Group revenues in 2011 by category and percentage share are below

50%
Advertising Revenues

43%
cirination Revenues

______ .70/
/0

Other Revenues
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About Group

The About Group generates revenues through cost-per-click advertising sponsored links for which the About

Group is paid when user clicks on the ad display advertising and e-commerce including sales lead generation

Almost all of its revenues 95% in 2011 are derived from the sale of cost-per-click and display advertising Cost-per-

click advertising accounted for 56% of the About Groups total advertising revenues in 2011 The About Groups main

operating costs are employee-related costs and content and hosting costs

Joint Ventures

Our investments accounted for under the equity method are as follows

49% interest in Metro Boston which publishes free daily newspaper in the
greater Boston area

49% interest in Canadian newsprint company Malbaie

40% interest in partnership Madison operating supercalendered paper mill in Maine

25% interest in quadrantONE an online advertising network that sells bundled premium targeted display

advertising onto local newspaper and other Web sites and

4.97% interest in Fenway Sports Group which owns the Boston Red Sox baseball club Liverpool Football

Club soccer team in the English Premier League approximately 80% of New England Sports Network

regional cable sports network and 50% of Roush Fenway Racing leading NASCAR team We sold 390 of

our units in Fenway Sports Group in July 2011 and 100 units in February 2012 We continue to explore the sale

of our remaining 210 units in Fenway Sports Group in whole or in parts

Business Environment

We believe that number of factors and industry trends have had and will continue to have an adverse effect

on our business and prospects These include the following

Economic conditions

The business environment in 2011 remained challenging due in large part to the slow economic recovery in the

United States and uncertain global conditions Advertising spending which drives significant portion of our

revenues is susceptible to economic conditions The level of advertising sales in any period may be affected by

advertisers decisions to increase or decrease their advertising expenditures in response to anticipated consumer

demand and general economic conditions In 2011 advertisers continued to exercise caution in response to uneven

economic conditions and lingering uncertainty about the economic outlook The challenging advertising marketplace

contributed to declines in print advertising revenues and moderating growth trends in digital advertising revenues at

the News Media Group in 2011 compared with 2010 Weak national and local economic conditions particularly in the

New York City and Boston metropolitan regions affect the levels of our national classified and retail advertising

revenues Changes in spending patterns and priorities including shifts in marketing strategies and budget cuts of key

advertisers in response to weak and uneven economic conditions have depressed and may continue to depress our

advertising revenues

Secular shift to digital media choices

The competition for advertising revenues in various markets has intensified as result of the continued

development of digital media technologies We expect that technological developments will continue to favor digital

media choices adding to the challenges posed by audience fragmentation

We have expanded and will continue to expand our digital offerings however significant portion of our

revenues are currently
from traditional

print products where advertising revenues are declining We believe that the

shift from traditional media forms to growing number of digital media choices and changing consumer behavior

have contributed to and is likely to continue to contribute to decline in print advertising The digital advertising

marketplace has experienced significant downward pressure on advertising rates as result of significant increases in

inventory In addition seaith technology has continued to improve the organization of and access to broad range of

Web sites and online information reshaping consumer behavior and expectations for consuming news and

information As economic conditions and the advertising environment remain challenged media companies have

been re-evaluating their business models with some moving toward various forms of digital pay models that will

depend on greater market acceptance and shift in consumer attitudes
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Circulation

Circulation is another significant source of revenue for us and an increasingly important driver as the overall

composition of our revenues is shifting in response to the transformations in our industry Ciiculation revenues are

affected by circulation and readership levels In recent years our newspaper properties and the newspaper industry

as whole have experienced declining print circulation volume This is due to among other factors increased

competition from digital platforms and sources other than traditional newspapers often free to users declining

discretionary spending by consumers higher subscription and single-copy rates and growing preference among
some consumers for receiving their news from variety of sources

Costs

significant portion of our costs are fixed and therefore we are limited in our ability to reduce them in the

short term Our most significant costs are employee-related costs and raw materials which together accounted for

approximately 50% of our total operating costs in 2011 Changes in employee-related costs and the price and

availability of newsprint can materially affect our operating results

For discussion of these and other factors that could affect our results of operations and financial condition see

Forward-Looking Statements and Item 1A Risk Factors

Our Strategy

Our results in 2011 reflect our ability to manage the business during period of transformation for our industry

and amidst weak and uneven economic conditions We anticipate that the challenges we currently face will continue

and we believe that the following elements are key to our efforts to address them

Diversifying our revenue streams and strengthening our digital businesses

As the advertising marketplace has changed we have focused on diversifying our revenue streams and

strengthening our digital businesses to make us less susceptible to the inevitable economic cycles and to respond to

the secular changes in our industry

Our digital businesses provide meaningful diversification during our transition to becoming an increasingly

multiplatform company Our goal is to gmw our digital businesses by broadening our audiences deepening

engagement and further monetizing the usage of our Web sites and acmss other digital platforms We are pursuing

multiplatform strategy across our Company with new digital products and platforms such as mobile social media
networks and reader application products

During 2011 we launched digital subscriptions at The Times the IHT and the Globe with the intention of

developing new consumer revenue stream while preserving our robust digital advertising business Overall

circulation revenues increased in 2011 compared with 2010 as the addition of digital subscription offerings at The

Times offset decline in print copies sold across the News Media Group In addition the rate of home-delivery
circulation volume declines moderated at The Times due to an increase in new orders and improved retention rates

following the launch of digital subscriptions at The Times as print subscribers receive all-digital access for free As

our news and content are being featured in an increasingly broad range of platforms and devices we will continue to

examine our circulation pricing and pay models in coordination with our overall multiplatform strategy and to focus

on building on our digital subscriber base and strengthening our digital businesses

Building on the strength of our brands

Because of our high-quality journalism and content we believe we have very powerful and trusted brands that

attract educated affluent and influential audiences As we continued to face weak and uneven economic conditions in

2011 and an increasingly fragmented media landscape we focused on building on the strength of our brands

particularly The Times We have significantly expanded our presence on new digital platforms broadened our

journalism and content and added new tools and multimedia features across our properties to increase the

engagement of our users We are also focused on continuing to offer premier environment for integrated brand

advertising across platforms through advertising product innovation and our integrated print and digital sales

structure

In 2011 the Globes digital strategy focused on the development of two distinct online brands to better serve the

distinct audiences of the Globe and Boston.com and wide array of advertisers In September 2011 the Globe

launched new paid subscription site BostonGlobe.com which offers exclusive access to the full range and depth of
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content produced by the newspapers journalists
in format optimized for reading on tablet smartphone laptop

and desktop This new site complements Boston.com Web site that previously offered all Globe content and has

now been enhanced as community portal for the greater Boston area

The initial digital subscription numbers and the growth in digital advertising revenues at the News Media

Group in 2011 reaffirm that advertisers and readers are embracing our high-quality content across multiple platforms

and underscore the value users place on our brands Regardless of the distribution model of news and information

we remain committed to creating quality content and quality user experience

Managing our expenses

Over the past few years as we transform and rebalance our business for the evolving media landscape we have

focused on realigning our cost base to ensure that we are operating our businesses as efficiently as possible while

maintaining our commitment to investing in high-quality content and achieving our long-term strategy In 2011 we

remained disciplined in our approach toward costs and focused on realigning our work force even as we invested in

new business models and other digital initiatives We reduced our operating costs by approximately $43 million in

2011 and more than $890 million since 2006 In 2012 we expect costs to increase modestly for the first time in several

years We plan to prudently increase spending in 2012 as we continue to invest in our digital capabilities and

subscription acquisition efforts invest in the About Groups sales and marketing efforts and reset our variable

compensation targets even as we expect expense savings in our production and distribution operations and from

further leveraging our centralized processes and resources Managing expenses will remain priority
and we will

continue to identify operational efficiencies across our organization such as in our production and distribution

operations and from further leveraging centralized processes and resources and to respond to the ongoing secular

changes in our industry

Rebalancing our portfolio of businesses

Over the past several years we have been rebalancing our portfolio of businesses focusing more on growth

areas such as digital
We have focused on investing in our expanding digital operations including our new business

models and other digital initiatives

We also continuously evaluate our businesses to determine whether they are meeting our targets for financial

performance growth and return on investment and whether they remain relevant to our strategy and align with our

core purpose to enhance society by creating collecting and distributing high-quality news information and

entertainment During 2011 we sold Baseline and UCompareFlealthCare.com Over the past two years we have sold

almost three-quarters
of our initial investment in Fenway Sports Group and we continue to market our remaining 210

units

On January 2012 we sold the Regional Media Group for $143.0 million in cash subject to certain adjustments

The sale of our Regional Media Group will enable us to continue our transformation to digitally focused multimedia

news and information company

Improving our liquidity

We have continued to manage our liquidity position by improving our financial flexibility and our debt profile

Over the past two years we have taken decisive steps to strengthen our liquidity position With our strong cash

flows from operations along with proceeds from the sale of portion of our interest in Fenway Sports Group and

$225.0 million private debt offering in November 2010 we prepaid all $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of

our 14.053% senior unsecured notes due January 15 2015 14.053% Notes on August 15 2011 Eliminating this

high-interest debt from our balance sheet more than three years ahead of maturity has increased our financial

flexibility and we expect interest expense savings of more than $39 million annually over the next three years

At the end of 2011 we had cash cash equivalents and short-term investments of approximately $280 million

even after prepaying the 14.053% Notes and making pension contributions totaling approximately $151 million

during the year Our cash position further improved after the end of 2011 with the proceeds from the sale of the

Regional Media Group in January 2012 and the sale of 100 of our units in Fenway Sports Group in February 2012 Our

main priorities for cash in 2012 will be managing the underfunded levels of our pension plans and paying off our

$75.0 million aggregate principal amount of 4.610% senior notes due in September 2012

As of December 25 2011 we had total debt and capital lease obligations
of approximately $773 million and total
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debt and capital lease obligations net of cash cash equivalents and short-term investments or net debt of

approximately $493 million We believe net debt provides useful measure of our liquidity and overall debt

position We have reduced our net debt by approximately $104 million as of the end of 2011 from $597 million at the

end of 2010 As of December 26 2010 we had total debt and capital lease obligations of approximately $996 million

and cash cash equivalents and short-term investments of approximately $399 million

By prepaying the 14.053% Notes more than three years ahead of maturity we have improved our debt profile

and the majority of our debt matures in 2015 or later In addition in June 2011 we entered into new $125.0 million

asset-backed five-year revolving credit facility that replaced our $400.0 million revolving credit
facility As of

December 25 2011 we had no outstanding borrowings under the new credit facility We believe our cash balance and

cash provided by operations in combination with other financing sources will be sufficient to meet our financing

needs over the next 12 months

Managing our pension-related obligations

The funded status of our qualified defined benefit pension plans has been adversely affected by the current

interest rate environment and required contributions for our qualified pension plans can have significant effect on

future cash flows

For purposes of GAAP our qualified pension plans were underfunded meaning the present value of future

obligations exceeded the fair value of plan assets as of December 25 2011 by approximately $522 million compared
with approximately $442 million as of December 26 2010 The funded status of these pension plans was negatively

affected primarily by the decline in interest rates in 2011 We expect to fund the majority of the shortfall over the next

four to five years although the balance could fluctuate significantly depending on interest rate movements and asset

performance

We made contributions totaling approximately $151 million in 2011 to certain qualified pension plans including

$31 million in contractual
obligations to The New York Times Newspaper Guild pension plan We have addressed our

minimum funding requirements for 2011 and significant portion for 2012 through discretionary contributions In

connection with the sale of the Regional Media Group we will continue to retain pension assets and liabilities and

postretirement obligations related to the Regional Media Groups employees We expect to make mandatory

contributions primarily contractual contributions in connection with The New York Times Newspaper Guild pension

plan of approximately $45 million in 2012 and we may make discretionary contributions in 2012 to our Company-

sponsored qualified pension plans depending on cash flows pension asset performance interest rates and other

factors

We have taken number of other
steps to manage our pension-related obligations In the last two years we

have frozen accruals under certain qualified defined benefit pension plans that cover the majority of our employees

including our non-union pension plan and certain qualified pension plans in connection with collective bargaining

agreements For such frozen pension plans any actuarial gains and losses from interest rate changes and asset

performance are amortized over longer period of time As result we do not expect that such changes will have

significant impact on pension expense in 2012 relative to 2011

We also remain focused on managing our multiemployer pension plans Certain of our cost management efforts

have created significant withdrawal obligations under the multiemployer pension plans in which we participate such

as the liability assessed against us in 2009 in connection with amendments to various collective bargaining

agreements affecting certain multiemployer pension plans However we believe these withdrawals are an important

step to address pension obligations that we projected could otherwise have continued to grow over time
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Outlook

We remain in challenging business environment reflecting continuing uncertainty in economic conditions

and an increasingly competitive landscape Advertising revenues continue to be affected by the slow economic

recovery and visibility remains limited

To date in the first quarter of 2012 digital advertising at the News Media Group is trending below the level of

the fourth quarter of 2011 Thus for the overall Company we expect total advertising revenue trends for the first

quarter of 2012 to be slightly below the level of the fourth quarter of 2011

Total circulation revenues are projected to increase in the high-single digits in the first quarter of 2012 as we

expect to benefit from our digital subscription initiatives as well as from the print circulation price increase at The

Times implemented in the first quarter of 2012

We expect operating costs to increase in the low-single digits in the first quarter of 2012

In addition we expect the following on pre-tax basis in 2012

Depreciation and amortization $105 to $110 million which includes approximately $7 million of accelerated

depreciation primarily in the first quarter associated with the consolidation of most of the TGs printing

into the Globes facility in Boston Mass beginning in the second quarter of 2012

Interest expense net $60 to $65 million

Capital expenditures $50 to $60 million and

Results from joint ventures $8 to $10 million Effective with the sale of 100 of our units in Fenway Sports

Group in February 2012 given our reduced ownership level and lack of influence on the operations of

Fenway Sports Group we will change the accounting for our investment from the equity method to the cost

method Therefore we will no longer recognize our proportionate share of the operating results of Fenway

Sports Group in Income from joint ventures in our Consolidated Statements of Operations
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

The following table presents our consolidated financial results

December 25 December 26 December 27
2011 2010 2009

Change

11-10 10-09In thousands

Revenues

Advertising 1221497 1300361 1336291 6.1 2.7

Circulation 941468 931493 936486 1.1 0.5

Other 160436 161609 167662 0.7 3.6

Total 2323401 2393463 2440439 2.9 1.9

Operating costs

Production costs

Raw materials 161691 160422 166387 0.8 3.6

Wages and benefits 495607 498270 524782 0.5 5.1

Other 300169 303086 330061 1.0 8.2

Total production costs 957467 961778 1021230 0.4 5.8

Selling general and administrative costs 1019611 1054199 1152874 3.3 8.6

Depreciation and amortization 116454 120950 133696 3.7 9.5

Total operating costs 2093532 2136927 2307800 2.0 7.4

Impairment of assets 164434 16148 4179

Pension withdrawal expense 4228 6268 78931 32.5 92.1

Loss on leases and other expenses 4500 34633 N/A N/A

Net pension curtailment gain 53965 N/A N/A

Gain on sale of assets 5198 N/A N/A

Operating profit 56707 234120 74059 75.8

Gain on sate of investments 71171 9128 N/A

Income from joint ventures 28 19035 20667 99.9 7.9

Premium on debt redemptions 46381 9250 N/A N/A

Interest expense net 85243 85062 81701 0.2 4.1

Loss/income from continuing operations before income taxes 3718 177221 3775

Income tax expense 36506 68516 2206 46.7

Loss/income from continuing operations 40224 108705 1569

Discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes 1156 N/A N/A

Gain on sale net of income taxes 13 19488 N/A 99.9

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 13 18332 N/A 99.9

Net Ioss/income 40224 108718 19901

Net loss/income attributable to the noncontrolling interest 555 1014 10
Net Ioss/Income attributable to The New York Times

Company common stockholders 39669 107704 19891

Represents an increase or decrease in excess of 100%
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Revenues

Revenues by reportable segment and for the Company as whole were as follows

Change
December 25 December 26 December 27

In thousands 2011 2010 2009 1110 10-09

News Media Group 2212575 2257386 2319378 2.0 2.7

About Group 110826 136077 121061 18.6 12.4

Total revenues 2323401 2393463 2440439 2.9 1.9

News Media Group

Advertising circulation and other revenues by division of the News Media Group and for the Group as whole

were as follows

Change
December 25 December 26 December 27

In thousands 2011 2010 2009 11-10 10-09

The New York Times Media Group

Advertising 756148 780424 797298 3.1 2.1

Circulation 705163 683717 683445 3.1

Other 93263 92697 101118 0.6 8.3

Total 1554574 1556838 1581861 0.1 1.6

New England Media Group

Advertising 198383 213720 230886 7.2 7.4

Circulation 157819 167360 167998 5.7 0.4

Other 41854 42809 41710 2.2 2.6

Total 398056 423889 440594 6.1 3.8

Regional Media Group

Advertising 161831 177056 192924 8.6 8.2

Circulation 78486 80416 85043 2.4 5.4

Other 19628 19187 18956 2.3 1.2

Total 259945 276659 296923 6.0 6.8

Total News Media Group

Advertising 1116362 1171200 1221108 47 4.1

Circulation 941468 931493 936486 1.1 0.5

Other 154745 154693 161784 0.0 4.4

Total 2212575 2257386 2319378 2.0 2.7

Advertising Revenues

Advertising revenues are primarily determined by the volume rate and mix of advertisements Advertising

spending which drives significant portion of revenues is susceptible to economic conditions and the ongoing

transformation in our industry During 2011 the advertising marketplace remained challenging as advertisers

continued to exercise caution in response to uneven economic conditions and lingering uncertainty about the outlook

for the global economy Changes in spending patterns
and priorities including shifts in marketing strategies and

budget cuts of key advertisers in response to uneven economic conditions and alternative digital advertising

platforms contributed to the decline in print advertising revenues and the growth in digital advertising revenues

Total
advertising revenue trends were slightly lower in 2011 compared with 2010 as the rate of decline in print

advertising revenues was similar to the
prior year while the rate of growth in digital advertising revenues moderated
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In 2011 News Media Group advertising revenues decreased primarily due to lower print volume across all

advertising categories offset in part by growth in digital advertising revenues Print advertising revenues which

represented approximately 79% of total advertising revenues for the News Media Group declined 7.9% in 2011 led

by weakness in national and retail advertising Digital advertising revenues grew 10.0% in 2011 primarily due to

growth in national display advertising

In 2010 News Media Group advertising revenues decreased primarily due to lower print volume across most

advertising categories offset in part by higher digital advertising revenues Print advertising revenues which

represented approximately 82% of total advertising revenues for the News Media Group declined 7.9% in 2010

mainly due to lower national and retail advertising The rate of decline in print advertising revenues began to

moderate in 2010 compared with 2009 as encouraging signs of improvement were seen in the overall economy Digital

advertising revenues grew 18.3% in 2010 mainly driven by growth in national display advertising

Advertising revenues print and digital by category for the News Media Group were as follows

Change
December 25 December 26 December 27

2011 2010 2009 11-10 10-09In thousands

National 647356 664377 667732 2.6 0.5

Retail 257115 277196 301075 7.2 7.9

Classified 173829 190911 213823 8.9 10.7

Other 38062 38716 38478 1.7 0.6

Total 1116362 1171200 1221108 4.7 4.1

Below is percentage breakdown of 2011 advertising revenues by division

Retail
Classified

Other

and Help Real Total Advertising
National Preprint Wanted Estate Auto Other Classified Revenues Total

The New York Times Media Group 77% 13% 2% 4% 1% 2% 9% 1% 100%

New England Media Group 30 32 28 10 100

Regional Media Group 60 28 100

Total News Media Group 58 23 15 100

The New York Times Media Group

Total
advertising revenues declined in 2011 compared with 2010 due to lower print advertising revenues offset

in part by growth in digital advertising revenues Print advertising revenues were negatively affected by the declines

in the volume of spending in all advertising categories reflecting the continued uneven economic environment global

events and secular forces Growth in digital advertising revenues was driven by increased spending on digital

platforms primarily in the national display category

While total national classified and retail advertising revenues declined total classified advertising revenue

trends improved as the rate of decline moderated in 2011 compared with 2010 The continued uneven economic

conditions and secular changes in our industry contributed to lower advertising revenues in 2011 compared with

2010 Total national advertising revenues decreased led by declines in the travel corporate and financial services

categories offset in
part by gains in the luxury and technology categories The declines in total classified advertising

revenues were primarily in the real estate and automotive categories Total retail advertising revenues declined as

advertisers reduced spending in the face of the uncertain economic climate primarily in the mass market home

furnishings and department stores advertising categories

Total
advertising revenues declined in 2010 compared with 2009 due to lower print advertising revenues

particularly
in the national and classified advertising categories offset in part by strong growth in digital advertising

revenues Print advertising revenues were negatively affected by the declines in the volume of spending in most

advertising categories reflecting the uneven economic recovery during 2010 Increased spending on digital platforms

particularly in national display advertising contributed to the strong growth in digital advertising revenues
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While total classified retail and national advertising revenues declined the advertising revenue trends

improved in all categories
in 2010 as the rates of decline moderated compared with 2009 Total classified advertising

revenues declined in 2010 compared with 2009 as the soft economic environment and secular changes in our industry

contributed to declines in the real estate automotive and help-wanted categories Total retail advertising revenues

decreased in 2010 compared with the prior year as soft economic conditions throughout 2010 negatively affected retail

advertising While retail advertising experienced declines in the first three quarters of 2010 compared with the

respective periods in 2009 both digital and print retail advertising revenues grew in the fourth quarter of 2010

compared with the fourth quarter of 2009 mainly as advertisers responded to increased consumer spending Total

national advertising revenues decreased in 2010 compared with the prior year led by declines in the studio

entertainment and telecommunications categories offset in part by gains in the luxury and corporate categories

New England Media Group

Total advertising revenues declined in 2011 compared with 2010 due to declines in print advertising revenues

partially offset by growth in digital advertising revenues The decline in print advertising revenues was driven by

lower advertising
in all categories reflecting uncertain national and local economic conditions and secular forces in

our industry The increase in digital advertising revenues was due to higher spending in the national and automotive

classified categories

While total retail national and classified advertising revenues declined an improvement was seen in the retail

advertising revenue trend as the rate of decline moderated in 2011 compared with 2010 The uncertain national and

local economic conditions continued to negatively affect total retail advertising revenues as retailers cut the volume

of spending mainly in the department stores and home furnishings categories
in 2011 compared with 2010 The

uneven economic environment coupled with secular changes in our industry contributed to declines in total national

advertising revenues led by lower advertiser spending in the financial services telecommunications and studio

entertainment categories in 2011 compared with 2010 These factors also adversely affected total classified advertising

revenues in 2011 compared with 2010 primarily in the real estate category

Total advertising revenues declined in 2010 compared with 2009 mainly due to declines in print advertising

revenues partially
offset by growth in digital advertising revenues The decline in print advertising revenues was

driven by lower advertising in most categories reflecting challenging market conditions in the national and local

economy and exacerbated by the secular shifts to digital advertising The increase in digital advertising revenues was

mainly due to higher national advertising spending

While total retail national and classified advertising revenues declined advertising revenue trends improved in

all categories in 2010 as the rates of decline moderated compared with 2009 Advertisers cut the level of total retail

advertising spending in response to soft national and local economic conditions during 2010 compared with 2009

mainly in the department stores category Similar factors contributed to the declines in total national advertising

revenues in 2010 compared with 2009 led by reduced spending in the telecommunications and bank advertising

categories These factors also adversely affected total classified advertising revenues in 2010 compared with 2009

primarily in the real estate and automotive categories

Regional Media Group

Total advertising revenues declined in 2011 compared with 2010 due to declines in print advertising revenues

partially offset by growth in digital advertising revenues The decline in print advertising revenues was driven by

lower advertising in all categories reflecting uncertain local and national economic conditions secular forces in our

industry and regional events The increase in digital advertising revenues was led by higher spending in the retail

advertising category

While total retail classified and national advertising revenues declined advertising revenue trends improved

as the rates of decline in total retail and classified advertising revenues moderated in 2011 compared with 2010

Uneven local and national economic conditions continued to weigh on the retail sector as advertisers reduced their

volume of spending in 2011 compared with 2010 Total classified advertising revenues experienced declines in 2011

compared with 2010 primarily in the real estate and automotive categories as economic conditions and secular

changes occurring in our industry continued to have negative impact Total national advertising revenues declined

in 2011 compared with 2010 mainly due to challenging comparisons with 2010 when there was higher spending

related to the Gulf oil spill
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Total advertising revenues declined in 2010 compared with 2009 due to lower print advertising revenues

partially offset by growth in
digital advertising revenues The decline in print advertising revenues was driven by

lower advertising in most categories reflecting soft local and national economic conditions secular forces in our

industry and
regional events The increase in digital advertising revenues was led by higher spending in the national

advertising category

Total retail and classified advertising revenues declined in 2010 compared with 2009 offset in part by higher
total national

advertising revenues Total advertising revenue trends improved in 2010 in all
categories as the rates of

decline moderated compared with 2009 Soft local and national economic conditions adversely impacted the volume

of advertising spending in the retail sector and resulted in declines in total retail advertising revenues in 2010

compared with 2009 Total classified advertising revenues decreased in 2010 compared with 2009 primarily in the real

estate category mainly as result of the soft economic conditions in the Florida and California housing markets

These declines were offset in
part by higher total national advertising revenues in 2010 primarily related to the Gulf

oil spill

Circulation Revenues

Circulation revenues are based on the number of copies of the printed newspaper through home-delivery

subscriptions and single-copy sales and digital subscriptions sold and the rates charged to the respective customers

Total circulation revenues consist of revenues from our print and digital products including The Times digital

subscription packages on NYTimes.com and across other digital platforms beginning in the second quarter of 2011 as

well as our new pay site BostonGlobe.com and digital subscription packages at the IHT in the fourth quarter of 2011

Circulation revenues in 2011 increased compared with 2010 as the addition of digital subscription offerings

primarily at The Times offset decline in print copies sold across the News Media Group In addition during 2011
the rate of home-delivery circulation volume declines moderated at The Times as we observed an increase in new

home-delivery orders and improved retention rates following the launch of The Times digital subscriptions as print

subscribers receive all-digital access for free

Circulation revenues in 2010 were flat compared with 2009 primarily as declines in copies sold across the News
Media Group offset the subscription and newsstand price increases implemented by both The Times and the Globe in

the second quarter of 2009

Other Revenues

Other revenues consist primarily of revenues from news services/syndication commercial printing rental

income digital archives and direct mail advertising services

Other revenues for the News Media Group were flat in 2011 compared with 2010

Other revenues for the News Media Group decreased in 2010 compared with 2009 primarily because of lower

digital archives and commercial printing revenues

About Group

About Group revenues decreased in 2011 compared with 2010 primarily due to lower cost-per-click and display

advertising The declines in cost-per-click advertising revenues were primarily due to lower click-through rates and

page views Design changes in cost-per-click advertisements served by Google which were implemented in July 2010
continued to have negative impact on click-through rates during the first half of 2011 After cycling through those

design changes click-through rates continued to experience downward pressure through the fourth quarter of 2011

and advertising rates for
cost-per-click advertising began to decline in the fourth quarter in line with the marketplace

In addition the increased competition in the content space and the algorithm changes Google implemented during

the first quarter of 2011 contributed to the declines in page views experienced during most of 2011 In the fourth

quarter
of 2011 monthly page views increased compared with 2010 Lower display advertising revenues mainly

resulted from competitive marketplace pressures as well as uneven economic conditions during 2011 In the second

half of 2011 the About Group implemented plan to better leverage the sites reach and rebuild its sales force in order

to revitalize display advertising

About Group revenues increased in 2010 compared with 2009 primarily due to growth in display and cost-per
click advertising revenues as result of higher click-through rates and page views However uneven economic

conditions as well as competitive pressures in the market negatively impacted display advertising beginning in the

fourth quarter of 2010 In addition the design changes in cost-per-click advertisements served by Google had

negative impact on click-through rates in the second half of 2010
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Operating Costs

Operating costs were as follows

Production Costs

December 25 December 26 December 27
2011 2010 2009

Total production costs in 2011 decreased compared with 2010 primarily due to lower outside printing costs

approximately $5 million and various other costs offset by higher raw materials expense approximately $1 million

primarily newsprint Cost-saving initiatives primarily contributed to the declines in outside printing costs Newsprint

expense increased 1.7% with 7.5% fromhigher pricing offset in part by 5.8% from lower consumption While

newsprint prices have remained stable since increasing steadily through the first half of 2010 newsprint prices were

higher in the first half of 2011 compared with the same period in 2010

Total production costs in 2010 decreased compared with 2009 primarily due to lower compensation and benefits

costs approximately $27 million and outside printing costs approximately $12 millionmainly reflecting the impact

of reduced workforce and cost-saving initiatives as well as lower raw materials expense approximately $6 million

primarily newsprint 2010 newsprint expense declined 6.7% with 8.5% from lower consumption offset in part by

1.8% from higher pricing Newsprint prices
hit the bottom of the cycle in the third quarter of 2009 but increased

steadily through the first half of 2010 Although we did not experience significant newsprint price increases in the

second half of 2010 newsprint prices were higher than the same period in 2009

Change

11-10 10-09
In thousands

Production costs

Raw materials 161691 160422 166387 0.8 3.6

Wages and benefits 495607 498270 524782 0.5 5.1

Other 300169 303086 330061 1.0 8.2

Total production costs 9546i 961.778 1021.230 0.4 5.8

Selling general and administrative costs 1019611 1054199 1152874 3.3 8.6

Depreciation and amortization 116454 120950 133696 3.7 9.5

Total operating costs 2093532 2136927 2307800 2.0 7.4

The components of operating costs as percentage of total operating costs were as follows

December 25 December 26 December 27
2011 2010 2009

Components of operating costs as percentage of total operating costs

Wages and benefits 42% 42% 43%

Raw materials 8% 8% 7%

Other operating costs 45% 44% 44%

Depreciation and amortization 5% 6% 6%

Total 100% 100% 100%

The components of operating costs as percentage of total revenues were as follows

December 25 December 26 December 27
2011 2010 2009

Components of operating costs as percentage of total revenues

Wages and benefits 37% 38% 40%

Raw materials 7% 7% 7%

Other operating costs 41% 39% 42%

Depreciation and amortization 5% 5% 6%

Totól 90% 89% 95%
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Selling General and Administrative Costs

Total
selling general and administrative costs in 2011 decreased compared with 2010 primarily due to lower

compensation costs approximately $41 million and professional fees approximately $8 millionpartially offset by

higher promotion approximately $12 million and severance approximately $7 million costs Compensation costs

declined mainly as result of lower variable compensation expense The decline in professional fees mainly resulted

from the costs incurred in the prior year associated with our digital initiatives as well as cost-saving initiatives

Promotion costs were higher mainly because of the launch of digital subscription packages at The Times in 2011

Severance costs were higher due to the level of workforce reduction programs year-over-year

Total
selling general and administrative costs in 2010 decreased compared with 2009 primarily due to lower

severance costs approximately $48 million as result of
larger workforce reduction program in 2009 lower bad

debt expense approximately $16 million due to improvements in the overall economy and lower benefits expense

approximately $11 millionprofessional fees approximately $8 million and various other costs

Depreciation and Amortization

Consolidated depreciation and amortization by reportable segment and the Company as whole were as

follows

In thousands 10-09

News Media Group 105934 109341 122609 3.1 10.8

About Group 10520 11609 11087 9.4 4.7

Total depreciation and amortization 116454 120950 133696 3.7 9.5

Depreciation and amortization decreased at the News Media Group in 2010 compared with 2009 primarily due

to the accelerated depreciation expense recognized in 2009 for assets at the Billerica Mass printing facility We
completed the consolidation of this printing facility with the Globes printing facility in Boston Mass in the second

quarter of 2009

Segment Operating Costs

The following table sets forth consolidated costs by reportable segment Corporate and the Company as

whole

Change

In thousands

December 25 December 26 December 27
2011 2010 2009 11-10 10-09

News Media Group 1986176 2015728 2182964 1.5 7.7

About Group 67036 74125 70180 9.6 5.6

Corporate 40320 47074 54656 14.3 13.9

Total operating costs 2093532 2136927 2307800 2.0 7.4

News Media Group

In 2011 operating costs for the News Media Group decreased compared with 2010 primarily due to declines in

compensation and benefits costs approximately $29 millionprofessional fees approximately $8 millionoutside

printing costs approximately $4 million and various other costs partially offset by higher promotion approximately

$12 million and severance costs approximately $6 millionCompensation costs declined mainly as result of lower

variable compensation expense The decline in professional fees mainly resulted from the costs incurred in the prior

year associated with our digital initiatives as well as cost-saving initiatives Cost-saving initiatives primarily

contributed to lower outside printing costs Promotion costs were higher mainly in connection with the launch of

digital subscription packages at The Times in 2011 Severance costs were higher due to the level of workforce

reduction programs year-over-year

Change
December 25 December 26 December 27

2011 2010 2009 11-10
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In 2010 operating costs for the News Media Group decreased compared with 2009 primarily due to declines

across most major categories Lower severance costs approximately $46 millioncompensation and benefits costs

approximately $30 millionbad debt expense approximately $17 millionoutside printing and distribution costs

approximately $16 millionand depreciation and amortization costs approximately $13 million were the main

drivers Lower severance costs were due to larger workforce reduction program in 2009 and lower compensation

and benefits costs reflect the impact of our reduced workforce and cost-saving initiatives Lower bad debt expense

was result of improved economic conditions compared with 2009 Lower outside printing and distribution costs

mainly reflect the impact of cost-saving initiatives

About Group

Operating costs for the About Group decreased in 2011 compared with 2010 primarily due to lower

compensation costs $3.1 milliondriven by lower variable compensation expense and one-time benefit from the

sale of UCompareHealthCare.com in February 2011

Operating costs for the About Group increased in 2010 compared with 2009 primarily due to higher

compensation and benefits costs $2.2 million and higher marketing costs $0.3 million

Corporate

Operating costs for Corporate decreased in 2011 compared with 2010 primarily due to lower compensation and

benefits costs $9.6 million mainly driven by lower variable compensation expense offset by various other costs

Operating costs for Corporate decreased in 2010 compared with 2009 primarily due to lower professional fees

$6.7 million and benefits and compensation costs $3.2 millionoffset in part by one-time benefit from the sale of

an asset $1.8 million in the second quarter of 2009

Other Items

Impairment of Assets

2011

In 2011 we recorded $164.4 million impairment charge At the News Media Group the impairment consisted

of the write-down of goodwill at the Regional Media Group of $152.1 million and the write-down of certain assets

held for sale primarily of Baseline totaling $9.2 million At the About Group the impairment consisted of write-

down of an intangible asset at ConsumerSearch Inc of $3.1 million

Regional Media Group

Goodwill is not amortized but tested for impairment annually or in an interim period if certain circumstances

indicate possible impairment may exist Our policy is to perform our annual goodwill impairment test in the fourth

quarter of our fiscal year However due to certain impairment indicators at the Regional Media Group including

lower-than-expected operating results we performed an interim impairment test of goodwill as of June 26 2011 The

Regional Media Group is part of the News Media Group reportable segment See Note 21 of the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for information regarding the sale of the Regional Media Group on January

2012

The interim test resulted in an impairment of goodwill of $152.1 million mainly from lower projected long-term

operating results and cash flows of the Regional Media Group primarily due to the continued decline in print

advertising revenues These factors resulted in the carrying value of the net assets being greater than their fair value

and therefore write-down to fair value was required The impairment charge reduced the carrying value of goodwill

at the Regional Media Group to zero

In determining the fair value of the Regional Media Group we made significant judgments and estimates

regarding the expected severity and duration of the uneven economic environment and the secular changes affecting

the newspaper industry in the Regional Media Group markets The effect of these assumptions on projected long

term revenues along with the continued benefits from reductions to the groups cost structure played significant

role in calculating the fair value of the Regional Media Group
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Property plant and equipment is tested for impairment if certain circumstances indicate possible impairment

may exist Due to the factors discussed above we completed an interim impairment test of property plant and

equipment as of June 26 2011 The impairment test was completed at each newspaper asset group level with the

lowest level of cash flows in the Regional Media Group Our test did not result in an impairment because the sum of

the future undiscounted cash flows at each newspaper was greater than the carrying value of property plant and

equipment

About Group

Our 2011 annual impairment test which was completed in the fourth quarter resulted in non-cash

impairment charge of $3.1 million
relating to the write-down of an intangible asset at ConsumerSearch Inc This

impairment charge reduced the carrying value of the ConsumerSearch trade name to approximately $3 million The
fair value of the trade name was calculated using relief-from-royalty method The asset impairment was driven by
lower cost-per-click advertising revenues

There were no additional impairment charges in connection with our 2011 annual impairment test However
the About Groups estimated fair value was 18% greater than its carrying value in our 2011 impairment test compared
with 60% in our 2010 impairment test significant decline during 2011 The About Group had approximately $367

million of goodwill as of December 25 2011

In determining the fair value of the About Group we made significant judgments and estimates regarding the

expected recovery of display and cost-per-click advertising The effect of these assumptions on projected long-term

revenues along with investments to grow content and traffic play significant role in
calculating the fair value of the

About Group We believe if the long-term pmjected cash flows of the About Group are not met goodwill

impairment charge could be reasonably likely

Assets Held for Sale

In the second quarter of 2011 we classified certain assets as held for sale primarily of Baseline The carrying
value of these assets was greater than their fair value less cost to sell resulting in an impairment of certain

intangible

assets and property totaling $9.2 million The impairment charge reduced the carrying value of
intangible assets to

zero and the property to nominal value The fair value for these assets was determined by estimating the most likely

sale price with third-party buyer based on market data In October 2011 we completed the sale of Baseline which
resulted in nominal gain

2010

We consolidated the printing facility of the Globe in Billerica Mass into the Boston Mass printing facility in

the second quarter of 2009 After exploring different opportunities for the assets at Billerica we entered into an

agreement in the third quarter of 2010 to sell the majority of these assets to third party Therefore assets with

carrying value of approximately $20 million were written down to their fair value resulting in $16.1 million

impairment charge in 2010

2009

In the fourth quarter of 2009 we recorded $4.2 million charge for an impairment of assets due to the reduced

scope of systems project at the News Media Group

Pension Withdrawal Expense

Over the past three years certain events such as amendments to various collective bargaining agreements
resulted in withdrawals from multiemployer pension plans These actions along with reduction in covered

employees have resulted in us estimating withdrawal liabilities to the respective plans for our proportionate share of

any unfunded vested benefits We recorded an estimated charge for pension plan withdrawal obligations of $4.2

million in 2011 $6.3 million in 2010 and $78.9 million in 2009 Our multiemployer pension plan withdrawal
liability

was approximately $100 million as of December 25 2011 This liability is the present value of the
obligations related to

complete and
partial withdrawals from certain plans as well as an estimate of future partial withdrawals that we

considered probable and reasonably estimable The actual liability will not be known until each plan completes final

assessment of the withdrawal liability and issues demand to us Therefore the estimate of our multiemployer

pension plan liability will be adjusted as more information becomes available that allows us to refine our estimates
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Pension Curtailment Gain

We did not make any significant changes to our pension plans during 2011 or 2010 However in 2009 we made

the following changes to certain of our pension plans which resulted in net pension curtailment gain of $54.0

million

We amended Company-sponsored qualified pension plan for non-union employees to discontinue future

benefit accruals under the plan and freeze existing accrued benefits effective December 31 2009 Benefits earned by

participants under the pension plan prior to January 2010 were not affected We also froze non-qualified pension

plan that provides enhanced retirement benefits to select members of management The accrued benefits under

this supplemental benefit plan were determined and frozen based on eligible earnings through December 31 2009

The reduction of benefits under the qualified and non-qualified plans mentioned above and various other non-

qualified plans resulted in curtailment gain of $56.7 million

In 2009 we also froze Company-sponsored qualified pension plan in connection with ratified amendments to

collective bargaining agreement covering the Newspaper Guild of the Globe The amendments resulted in

curtailment loss of $2.5 million

In 2009 we also eliminated certain non-qualified retirement benefits of various employees of the Globe in

connection with the amendment of two union agreements The amendments resulted in curtailment loss of $0.2

million

Loss on Leases and Other Expenses

In 2011 we recorded $4.5 million charge for retirement and consulting agreement in connection with the

retirement of our chief executive officer at the end of 2011

The total loss on leases and other expenses recorded in 2009 was $34.6 million as detailed below

In 2009 we recorded loss of $22.8 million for the present value of remaining rental payments under leases for

property previously occupied by City Suburban Delivery Systems Inc City Suburban in excess of rental

income under potential
subleases We closed City Suburban which operated wholesale distribution business that

delivered The Times and other newspapers and magazines to newsstands and retail outlets in the New York

metropolitan area in January 2009 Also in 2009 we recorded loss of $8.3 million for the present value of remaining

rental payments under lease for office space at The New York Times Media Group in excess of rental income under

potential subleases

In the fourth quarter of 2009 we also recorded $3.5 millioncharge for the early termination of third-party

printing contract

Gain on Sale of Assets

Tn 2009 we sold certain surplus real estate assets at the Regional Media Group and recorded gain on the sales

totaling $5.2 million

Operating ProfitlLoss

Consolidated operating profit/loss by reportable segment Corporate and the Company as whole were as

follows

Change
December 25 December 26 December 27

2011 2010 2009 11-10 10-09In thousands

News Media Group 60853 219242 21163 72.2

About Group 40674 61952 50881 34.3 21.8

Corporate 44820 47074 2015 4.8

Total operating profit 56707 234120 74059 75.8

Represents an increase or decrease in excess of 100%

We discuss the reasons for the year-to-year changes in each segments and Corporates operating profit/loss in

the Revenues Operating Costs and Other Items sections above
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NON-OPERATING ITEMS

Income from Joint Ventures

We have investments in Metm Boston two paper mills Malbaie and Madison quadrantONE and Fenway

Sports Group which were accounted for under the equity method as of December 25 2011 Our proportionate share

of the operating results of these investments is recorded in Income from joint ventures in our Consolidated

Statements of Operations See Note of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information

regarding these investments

In 2011 we had income from joint ventures of $28000 compared with $19.0 million in 2010 In 2010 we
recorded

pre-tax gain of $12.7 million from the sale of an asset at one of the paper mills in which we have an

investment Our share of the pre-tax gain after eliminating the noncontrolling interest portion was $10.2 million The

$12.7 million gain is included in Income from joint ventures in our Consolidated Statements of Operations

Excluding this gain joint venture results in 2011 were negatively impacted by Fenway Sports Groups acquisition of

Liverpool Football Club mainly due to the amortization expense associated with the purchase offset in part by

improved results driven by higher paper selling prices at both paper mills in which we have investments

In 2010 we had income from
joint ventures of $19.0 millioncompared with $20.7 million in 2009 Excluding the

$12.7 million
pre-tax gain from the sale of an asset at one of the paper mills income from joint ventures declined in

2010 compared with 2009 primarily due to decline in results driven by lower paper selling prices at both paper mills

in which we have investments

Gain on Sale of Investments

In 2011 we recognized gain of $71.2 million resulting from the sale of 390 units in Fenway Sports Group $65.3

million and the sale of portion of our interest in Indeed.com $5.9 million job listing aggregator We retain

substantial portion of our initial interest in Indeed.com

In 2010 we recognized gain of $9.1 million resulting from the sale of 50 units in Fenway Sports Group

In February 2012 we sold 100 units in Fenway Sports Group for an aggregate price of $30.0 million We will

record pre-tax gain of approximately $18 million in the first quarter of 2012 Following the sale we own 210 units or

4.97% of Fenway Sports Group We continue to market our remaining units in Fenway Sports Group in whole or in

parts

Effective with this sale given our reduced ownership level and lack of influence on the operations of Fenway

Sports Group we will change the accounting for our investment from the equity method to the cost method

Therefore we will no longer recognize our proportionate share of the operating results of Fenway Sports Group in

Income from
joint ventures in our Consolidated Statements of Operations and our investment will be reclassified

from Investments in joint ventures into Miscellaneous assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheet
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Interest Expense Net

Interest expense net was as follows

In thousands

Cash interest expense 79187 79349 78606

Non-cash amortization of discount on debt 6933 7251 6084

Capitalized interest 427 299 1566

Interest income 450 1239 1423

Total interest expense net 85243 85062 81701

We had lower interest expense in 2011 due to the prepayment in August 2011 of our 14.053% Notes However

this was more than offset by higher interest expense in connection with the issuance of our 6.625% Notes in

November 2010 and lower interest income from loan to third-party which was repaid in October 2010

Interest expense net increased in 2010 compared with 2009 as result of higher interest rates on our debt offset

in part by lower average debt outstanding

Premium on Debt Redemptions

On August 15 2011 we prepaid in full all $250.0 millionoutstanding aggregate principal amount of the 14.053%

Notes The prepayment totaled approximately $280 million comprising the $250.0 million aggregate principal

amount of the 14.053% Notes approximately $3 million representing all interest that was accrued and unpaid on

the 14.053% Notes to August 15 2011 and make-whole premium amount of approximately $27 million due in

connection with the prepayment We funded the prepayment from available cash As result of this prepayment we

recorded $46.4 million pre-tax charge in the third quarter of 2011 and expect to save in excess of $39 million annually

in interest expense through January 15 2015 the original maturity date

In April 2009 we settled the redemption of all $250.0 millionoutstanding aggregate principal amount of our

4.5% notes due March 15 2010 that had been called for redemption in March 2009 The redemption price of

approximately $260 million included $9.3 million premium and was computed under the terms of the notes as the

present value of the scheduled payments of principal and unpaid interest plus accrued interest to the redemption

settlement date

Income Taxes

We had income tax expense of $36.5 million on pre-tax loss of $3.7 million in 2011 The effective tax rate for the

full year 2011 is not meaningful because portion of the non-cash charge in the second quarter of 2011 for the

impairment of the Regional Media Groups goodwill was non-deductible

We had income tax expense of $68.5 million on pre-tax income of $177.2 million in 2010 Our effective tax rate

was 38.7% in 2010 The effective tax rate for 2010 was favorably affected by approximately $22 million for the reversal

of reserves for uncertain tax positions due to the closing of tax audits and the lapse of applicable statutes of

limitations and unfavorably affected by an $11.4 million tax charge as described below

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010

which were enacted in 2010 eliminated the tax deductibility of certain retiree health care costs beginning January

2013 to the extent of federal subsidies received by plan sponsors that provide retiree prescription drug benefits

equivalent to Medicare Part Because the future anticipated retiree health-care liabilities and related subsidies were

already reflected in our financial statements this legislation required us to reduce the related deferred tax asset

recognized in our financial statements As result we recorded tax charge of $11.4 million in 2010 for the reduction

in future tax benefits for retiree health benefits resulting from the federal health-care legislation enacted in 2010

We had $2.2 million of tax expense on pre-tax income of $3.8 million in 2009 Our effective tax rate was 58.4% in

2009 The high tax rate was driven by the impact of certain items including the reduction of deferred tax asset

balances resulting
from lower income tax rates on near break-even results in 2009

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

December 27
2009
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Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations are summarized in the following chart

Revenues 5062

Total operating costs 7082

Pre-tax toss 2020
Income tax benefit 864
Loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes 1156
Gain on sale net of income taxes

Gain on sale 16 34914

Income tax expense 15426

Gain on sale net of income taxes 13 19488

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 13 18332

WQXR-FM

The results of operations for WQXR-FM New York City classical radio station which was sold in October

2009 are presented as discontinued operations We received proceeds related to the sale of approximately $45 million

and recorded
pre-tax gain of approximately $35 million approximately $19 million after tax in the fourth quarter of

2009 In 2010 we recorded post-closing adjustments to the gain

The results of operations for WQXR-FM which were previously consolidated in the results of the News Media

Group are presented as discontinued operations in our Consolidated Financial Statements for all periods presented

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview

The following table presents information about our financial position

Financial Position Summary

Represents an increase in excess of 100%

Change
December 26

2010 11-10

We meet our cash obligations with cash inflows from operations in combination with other financing sources

Our primary sources of cash inflows from operations are advertising and circulation sales Advertising and circulation

provided about 53% and 41% respectively
of total revenues in 2011 The remaining cash inflows from operations are

from other revenue sources such as news services/syndication commercial printing rental income digital archives

and direct mail advertising services Our primary source of cash outflows are for employee compensation pension

and other benefits raw materials services and supplies interest and income taxes Contributions to our qualified

pension plans can have
significant impact on cash flows See Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits for

additional information regarding our pension plans

In thousands
December 26 December 27

2010 2009

December 25
2011In thousands except ratios

Cash and cash equivalents 175151 369668 52.6

Short-term investments 104846 29974

Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations 74920 38

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 698220 996405 29.9

Total New York Times Company stockholders equity 506360 659927 23.3

Ratios

Total debt to total capitalization 60% 60%

Current assets to current liabilities 1.46 1.70 14.1
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We have continued to manage our liquidity position by improving our financial flexibility and our debt profile

As of December 25 2011 we had total debt and capital lease obligations of approximately $773 million and cash cash

equivalents and short-term investments of approximately $280 million Accordingly our total debt and capital lease

obligations net of cash cash equivalents and short-term investments or net debt was approximately $493 million

even after the prepayment of the 14.053% Notes and making contributions totaling approximately $151 million to

certain qualified pension plans in 2011 Our efforts to strengthen our liquidity position
and improve our debt profile

over the past two years allowed us to prepay on August 15 2011 all of our $250.0 million 14.053% Notes In addition

in June 2011 we entered into new $125.0 million asset-backed five-year revolving credit facility that replaced our

$400.0 million revolving credit facility As of December 25 2011 we had no outstanding borrowings under the new

credit facility

We believe our cash balance and cash provided by operations in combination with other financing sources will

be sufficient to meet our financing needs over the next 12 months

Capital Resources

Sources and Uses of Cash

Cash flows provided by/used in by category were as follows

Change
December 25 December 26 December 27

2011 2010 2009 11-10 10-09In thousands

Operating aôtivities 73927 153327 247253 51.8 38.0

Investing activities 18254 40520 8073 55.0

Financing activities 250226 220666 276651

Represents an increase or decrease in excess of 100%

Operating Activities

Operating cash inflows include cash receipts from advertising and circulation sales and other revenue

transactions Operating cash outflows include payments for employee compensation pension and other benefits raw

materials services and supplies interest and income taxes

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased in 2011 compared with 2010 primarily due to higher

working capital requirements including approximately $30 million associated with the prepayment of the 14.053%

Notes partially
offset by lower pension contributions to certain qualified pension plans which totaled approximately

$151 million in 2011 compared with $176 million in 2010

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased in 2010 compared with 2009 primarily driven by

contributions totaling approximately $176 million to certain qualified pension plans offset in part by improved

operating performance as result of cost-saving initiatives in recent years

Investing Activities

Cash from investing activities generally includes proceeds from short-term investments that have matured and

the sale of assets or business Cash used in investing activities generally includes purchases of short-term

investments payments for capital projects restricted cash subject to collateral requirements primarily for obligations

under our workers compensation programs acquisitions of new businesses and investments

Net cash used in investing activities in 2011 was mainly due to purchases of short-term investments capital

expenditures and changes in restricted cash offset in part by proceeds from the short-term investments that have

matured proceeds from the sales of 390 of our units in Fenway Sports Group and portion of our interest in

Indeed.com as well as proceeds primarily from the sales of UCompareHealthCare.com and Baseline in 2011

Net cash used in investing activities in 2010 was primarily for capital expenditures and the purchase of short

term investments partially offset by loan repayments from third-party circulation service provider and proceeds

from the sale of 50 of our units in Fenway Sports Group

Net cash provided by investing activities in 2009 was primarily due to the proceeds from the sale of WQXR-FM
and other assets offset in part by capital expenditures

Capital expenditures were $44.9 million in 2011 $33.6 million in 2010 and $51.1 million in 2009
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Financing Activities

Cash from financing activities generally includes borrowings under third-party financing arrangements and the

issuance of long-term debt Cash used in financing activities generally includes the repayment of amounts

outstanding under third-party financing arrangements and long-term debt

Net cash used in financing activities in 2011 was primarily for the prepayment of our 14.053% Notes see

Third-Party Financing below

Net cash provided by financing activities in 2010 consisted mainly of debt incurred under the issuance of

6.625% senior unsecured notes see Third-Party Financing below

Net cash used in financing activities in 2009 consisted mainly of repayments under our revolving credit

agreements repayments in connection with the early redemption of our 4.5% notes due March 15 2010 and the

repurchase of medium-term notes partially offset by debt incurred under the issuance of 14.053% Notes and sale

leaseback financing see Third-Party Financing below

See our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for additional information on our sources and uses of cash

Restricted Cash

We were required to maintain $27.6 million of restricted cash as of December 25 2011 subject to certain

collateral requirements primarily for obligations under our workers compensation programs These collateral

requirements were previously supported by letters of credit under our $400.0 million revolving credit facility that was

replaced in June 2011

Third-Party Financing

Our total debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the following

In thousands except percentages Coupon Rate

Senior notes due in 2012 net of unamortized debt costs of $100 in 2011 and $229
in 2010 4.610% 74900 74771

Senior notes due in 2015 net of unamortized debt costs of $109 in 2011 and $140

in 2010 5.0% 249891 249860

Senior notes due in 2015 called in 2011 net of unamortized debt costs of

$22320 in 2010 14.053% 227680

Senior notes due in 2016 net of unamortized debt costs of $4213 in 2011 and

$4898 in 2010 6.625% 220787 220102

Option to repurchase ownership interest in headquarters building in 2019 net of

unamortized debt costs of $29139 in 2011 and $32694 in 2010 220861 217306

Total debt 766439 989719

Capital lease obligations 6701 6724

Total debt and capital lease obligations 773140 996443

Based on borrowing rates currently available for debt with similar terms and average maturities the fair value

of our long-term debt was approximately $800 million as of December 25 2011 and approximately $1.1 billion as of

December 26 2010 We were in compliance with our covenants under our third-party financing arrangements as of

December 25 2011

4.610% Notes

We have $75.0 million aggregate principal amount of 4.610% senior notes due September 26 2012 outstanding

the 4.610% Notes The 4.610% Notes were reclassified to Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease

obligations in our Consolidated Balance Sheet in the fourth quarter of 2011

The 4.610% Notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time at price equal to 100% of the principal

amount of the notes redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date plus make-whole

premium The 4.610% Notes are not otherwise callable

December 25
2011

December 26
2010
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The 4.610% Notes are subject to certain covenants that among other things limit subject to customary

exceptions our ability and the ability
of certain material subsidiaries to

create liens on certain assets to secure debt and

enter into certain sale-leaseback transactions

5.0% Notes

We have $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of 5.0% senior unsecured notes due March 15 2015

outstanding the 5.0% Notes

The 5.0% Notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time at price equal to 100% of the principal

amount of the notes redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date plus make-whole

premium The 5.0% Notes are not otherwise callable

The 5.0% Notes are subject to certain covenants that among other things limit subject to customary

exceptions our ability and the ability of certain material subsidiaries to

create liens on certain assets to secure debt and

enter into certain sale-leaseback transactions

14.053% Notes

In January 2009 pursuant to securities purchase agreement with Inmobiliaria Carso S.A de C.V and Banco

Inbursa S.A Institución de Banca Multiple Grupo Financiero Inbursa each an Investor and collectively the

Investors we issued for an aggregate purchase price of $250.0 million $250.0 million aggregate principal

amount of 14.053% senior unsecured notes due January 15 2015 and detachable warrants to purchase 15.9 million

shares of our Class Common Stock at price of $6.3572 per share The warrants are exercisable at the holders

option at any time and from time to time in whole or in part until January 15 2015 Each Investor is an affiliate of

Carlos Slim Helü the beneficial owner of approximately 8% of our Class Common Stock excluding the warrants

Each Investor purchased an equal number of 14.053% Notes and warrants

On August 15 2011 we prepaid in full all $250.0 millionoutstanding aggregate principal amount of the 14.053%

Notes The prepayment totaled approximately $280 million comprising the $250.0 million aggregate principal

amount of the 14.053% Notes approximately $3 million representing all interest that was accrued and unpaid on

the 14.053% Notes to August 15 2011 and make-whole premium amount of approximately $27 million due in

connection with the prepayment We funded the prepayment from available cash As result of this prepayment we

recorded $46.4 million pre-tax charge in the third quarter of 2011 This charge is included in Premium on debt

redemptions in our Consolidated Statements of Operations

6.625% Notes

In November 2010 we completed an offering of $225.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.625% senior

unsecured notes due December 15 2016 6.625% Notes

We received proceeds of approximately $220 million purchase price of $225.0 million net of approximately $5

million in transaction costs The effective interest rate on this transaction was approximately 7%

We have the option to redeem all or portion of the 6.625% Notes at any time at price equal to 100% of the

principal amount of the notes redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date plus make
whole premium The 6.625% Notes are not otherwise callable

The 6.625% Notes are subject to certain covenants that among other things limit subject to customary

exceptions our ability and the ability of our subsidiaries to

incur additional indebtedness and issue preferred stock

pay dividends or make other equity distributions

agree to any restrictions on the ability of our restricted subsidiaries to make payments to us

create liens on certain assets to secure debt

make certain investments
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merge or consolidate with other companies or transfer all or substantially all of our assets and

engage in sale and leaseback transactions

Sale-Leaseback Financing

In March 2009 an affiliate of our Company entered into an agreement to sell and simultaneously lease back

portion of our leasehold condominium interest in our Companys headquarters building located at 620 Eighth Avenue

in New York City the Condo Interest The sale price for the Condo Interest was $225.0 million We have an option

exercisable in 2019 to repurchase the Condo Interest for $250.0 million The lease term is 15 years and we have three

renewal options that could extend the term for an additional 20 years

The transaction is accounted for as financing transaction As such we have continued to depreciate the Condo

Interest and account for the rental payments as interest expense The difference between the purchase option price of

$250.0 million and the net sale proceeds of approximately $211 million or approximately $39 million is being

amortized over 10-year period through interest expense The effective interest rate on this transaction was

approximately 13%

Revolving Credit Facility

In June 2011 we entered into new $125.0 million asset-backed five-year revolving credit facility This new
credit facility replaced our $400.0 million revolving credit facility which was to expire on June 21 2011 As of

December 25 2011 there were no outstanding borrowings under the new credit facility

Borrowings under the new credit facility will be secured by lien on certain advertising receivables In

addition borrowings bear interest at specified margins based on our utilization and at rates that vary between the

LII3OR and prime rates as defined by the credit agreement depending on the term to maturities we specify The new
credit facility contains various customary affirmative and negative covenants including springing financial

covenant and various incurrence-based negative covenants described below

The springing financial covenant provides that when
availability under the new credit facility falls below the

greater of $16.7 million or 15% of the commitment for three consecutive business days we will be required to

maintain on trailing four-quarter basis fixed charge coverage ratio of not less than 1.001.00 The fixed charge

coverage ratio is defined as the ratio of EBITDA as defined by the credit agreement minus unfinanced capital

expenditures and tax payments paid in cash during the applicable period to fixed charges as defined by the credit

agreement for such period Under the credit agreement EBITDA for period is generally defined as the sum for such

period of net income plus interest expense provision for income taxes depreciation and amortization non-cash items

including without limitation stock compensation expenses and pension expenses and other non-recurring expenses
which do not represent cash item in such period or any future period minus to the extent included in net income
income tax credits and non-cash items increasing net income for such period Fixed charges for period are generally

defined by the credit agreement as the sum for such period of interest expense cash dividends or other distributions

paid accrued or scheduled to be paid scheduled payments of principal and mandatory pension payments made in

cash

In addition the new credit facility contains incurrence-based negative covenants that subject to customary

exceptions and cure periods restrict our ability and the ability of our subsidiaries to

incur debt directly or by third-party guarantees

grant liens

pay dividends

make investments

make
acquisitions or dispositions and

prepay debt

As long as we have not drawn an amount in excess of $250000 for period of 90 days under the new credit

facility the negative covenants generally do not apply In addition to the extent we have borrowings under the new
credit facility we may engage in transactions restricted by the covenants so long as we meet on pro forma basis the

1.001.00 fixed charge coverage ratio test availability under the new credit facility for the preceding 30 days is equal to

at least $62.5 million net of restricted cash in an amount up to $25.0 million and no default has occurred
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Contractual Obligations

The information provided is based on managements best estimate and assumptions of our contractual

obligations as of December 25 2011 Actual payments in future periods may vary from those reflected in the

table

Payment due in

in thousands Total 2012 2013-2014 2015-2016 Later Years

Long-term debt 1111511 131497 108414 564224 309376

Capital Ieases2 11130 573 1104 1104 8349

Operating Ieases2 65758 16096 21890 13884 13888

Benefit plans3 1619505 135606 275858 300635 907406

Total 2807904 283772 405266 879847 1239019

Includes estimated interest payments on long-term debt and our 4.610% Notes due September 26 2012 See Note of the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for additional in formation related to our total debt

See Note 20 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional in formation related to our capital and operating leases

Includes estimated benefits payments under our Company-sponsored pension and other postretirement benefit plans Payments for these

plans have been estimated over 10-year period therefore the amounts included in the Later Yeats column on include payments for the

period of 2017-2021 While benefit payments under these plans are expected to continue beyond 2021 believe that an estimate beyond

this period is impracticable Benefit plans in the table above also include estimated payments for multiemployer pension plan withdrawal

liabilities See Notes 11 and 12 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional in formation related to our pension and

other postretirement benefits plans

Other Liabilities Other in our Consolidated Balance Sheets include liabilities related to deferred

compensation primarily consisting of our deferred executive compensation plan the DEC plan our liability for

uncertain tax positions and various other liabilities These liabilities are not included in the table above primarily

because the future payments are not determinable

The DEC plan enables certain eligible executives to elect to defer portion of their compensation on pre-tax

basis While the initial deferral period is for minimum of two years up to maximum of 15 years after which time

taxable distributions must begin the executive has the option to extend the deferral period Therefore the future

payments under the DEC plan are not determinable See Note 13 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for additional information on Other Liabilities Other

Our tax liability for uncertain tax positions was approximately $64 million including approximately $16 million

of accrued interest and penalties as of December 25 2011 Until formal resolutions are reached between us and the tax

authorities the timing and amount of possible audit settlement for uncertain tax benefits is not practicable

Therefore we do not include this obligation in the table of contractual obligations See Note 14 of the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on Income Taxes

We have contract with major paper supplier to purchase newsprint The contract requires us to purchase

annually the lesser of fixed number of tons or percentage of our total newsprint requirement at market rate in an

arms length transaction Since the
quantities of newsprint purchased annually under this contract are based on our

total newsprint requirement the amount of the related payments for these purchases is excluded from the table

above

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We did not have any material off-balance sheet arrangements as of December 25 2011 We had letters of credit

outstanding of approximately $62 million as of December 26 2010 under our $400.0 million revolving credit facility

which supported our obligations under our workers compensation program sale-leaseback financing and the

acquisition of our New York headquarters site In June 2011 the $400.0 million revolving credit facility was replaced

See Third-Party Financing Revolving Credit Facility for additional information
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP The preparation of these

financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the

Consolidated Financial Statements for the periods presented

We continually evaluate the policies and estimates we use to prepare our Consolidated Financial Statements In

general managements estimates are based on historical experience information from third-party professionals and

various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the facts and circumstances Actual results may
differ from those estimates made by management

We believe our critical accounting policies include our accounting for long-lived assets retirement benefits

stock-based compensation income taxes self-insurance liabilities and accounts receivable allowances Specific risks

related to our critical accounting policies are discussed below

Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate whether there has been an impairment of goodwill or intangible assets not amortized on an annual

basis or in an interim period if certain circumstances indicate that possible impairment may exist All other long-

lived assets are tested for impairment if certain circumstances indicate that possible impairment exists

In thousands

Long lived assets 1591699 836 665

Total assets 2883450 3285741

Percentage of long-lived assets to total assets 55% 56%

The impairment analysis is considered critical to our segments because of the significance of long-lived assets to

our Consolidated Balance Sheets

We test for goodwill impairment at the reporting unit level which are our operating segments Separate

financial information about these segments is regularly evaluated by our chief operating decision-maker in deciding

how to allocate resources We first perform qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not

that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying value The result of this assessment determines whether

it is necessary to perform the goodwill impairment two-step test

If we determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying

value in the first step we compare the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount including goodwill

Fair value is calculated by combination of discounted cash flow model and market approach model In

calculating fair value for each reporting unit we generally weigh the results of the discounted cash flow model more

heavily than the market approach because the discounted cash flow model is specific to our business and long-term

projections If the fair value exceeds the carrying amount goodwill is not considered impaired If the carrying amount

exceeds the fair value the second step must be performed to measure the amount of the impairment loss if any In the

second step we compare the implied fair value of the reporting units goodwill with the carrying amount of that

goodwill An impairment loss would be recognized in an amount equal to the excess of the carrying amount of the

goodwill over the implied fair value of the goodwill

The discounted cash flow analysis requires us to make various judgments estimates and assumptions many of

which are interdependent about future revenues operating margins growth rates capital expenditures working

capital and discount rates The starting point for the assumptions used in our discounted cash flow analysis is the

annual long-range financial forecast The annual planning process that we undertake to prepare the long-range

financial forecast takes into consideration multitude of factors including historical growth rates and operating

performance related industry trends macroeconomic conditions and marketplace data among others Assumptions
are also made for perpetual growth rates for periods beyond the long-range financial forecast period Our estimates of

fair value are sensitive to changes in all of these variables certain of which relate to broader macroeconomic

conditions outside our control

The market approach analysis includes applying multiple based on comparable market transactions to

certain operating metrics of the reporting unit

December 25
2011

December 26
2010
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We compare the sum of the fair values of our reporting units to our market capitalization to determine whether

our estimates of reporting unit fair value are reasonable

Intangible assets that are not amortized trade names are tested for impairment at the asset level by comparing

the fair value of the asset with its carrying amount Fair value is calculated as the discounted cash flows utilizing the

relief-from-royalty method This method is based on applying royalty rate which would be obtained through

lease to the cash flows derived from the asset being tested The royalty rate is derived from market data If the fair

value exceeds the carrying amount the asset is not considered impaired If the carrying amount exceeds the fair

value an impairment loss would be recognized in an amount equal to the excess of the carrying amount of the asset

over the fair value of the asset

All other long-lived assets intangible assets that are amortized such as content and customer lists are tested

for impairment at the asset group level associated with the lowest level of cash flows An impairment exists if the

carrying value of the asset is not recoverable the carrying value of the asset is
greater

than the sum of

undiscounted cash flows and is greater than its fair value

The significant estimates and assumptions used by management in
assessing

the recoverability of goodwill

other intangible assets acquired and other long-lived assets are estimated future cash flows discount rates growth

rates as well as other factors Any changes in these estimates or assumptions could result in an impairment charge

The estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections require managements subjective

judgment Depending on the assumptions and estimates used the estimated results of the impairment tests can vary

within range of outcomes

In addition to annual testing management uses certain indicators to evaluate whether the carrying values of its

long-lived assets may not be recoverable and an interim impairment test may be required These indicators include

current-period operating or cash flow declines combined with history of operating or cash flow declines or

projection/forecast that demonstrates continuing declines in the cash flow or the inability to improve our operations

to forecasted levels significant adverse change in the business climate whether structural or technological and

decline in our stock
price

and market capitalization

Management has applied what it believes to be the most appropriate valuation methodology for its impairment

testing See Note of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Retirement Benefits

Our single-employer pension and other postretirement benefit costs are accounted for using actuarial

valuations We recognize the funded status of these plans measured as the difference between plan assets if funded

and the benefit obligation on the balance sheet and recognize changes in the funded status that arise during the

period but are not recognized as components of net periodic pension cost within other comprehensive income net of

income taxes The assets related to our funded pension plans are measured at fair value

We consider accounting for retirement plans critical to all of our operating segments because management is

required to make significant subjective judgments about number of actuarial assumptions which include discount

rates health-care cost trend rates long-term return on plan assets and mortality rates These assumptions may have

an effect on the amount and timing of future contributions Depending on the assumptions and estimates used the

impact from our pension and other postretirement benefits could vary within range of outcomes and could have

material effect on our Consolidated Financial Statements

We also recognize the present value of pension liabilities associated with the withdrawal from multiemployer

pension plans

See Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits below for more information on our retirement benefits

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with the fair value recognition provisions Stock-based

compensation cost is measured at the grant date and for certain awards at the end of each reporting period based on

the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense over the appropriate vesting period Determining the fair

value of stock-based awards at the grant date
requires judgment including estimating the expected term of stock

options the expected volatility of our stock and expected dividends In addition judgment is required in estimating

the amount of stock-based awards that are expected to be forfeited If actual results differ significantly from these

estimates or different key assumptions were used it could have material effect on our Consolidated Financial
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Statements See Note 17 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding

stock-based compensation expense

Income Taxes

We consider accounting for income taxes critical to our operations because management is required to make

significant subjective judgments in developing our provision for income taxes including the determination of

deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowances that may be required against deferred tax assets

Income taxes are recognized for the following amount of taxes payable for the current year and deferred

tax assets and liabilities for the future tax consequence of events that have been recognized differently in the financial

statements than for tax purposes Deferred tax assets and liabilities are established using statutory tax rates and are

adjusted for tax rate changes in the period of enactment

We assess whether our deferred tax assets shall be reduced by valuation allowance if it is more likely than not

that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized Our process includes collecting positive e.g
sources of taxable income and negative e.g recent historical losses evidence and assessing based on the evidence

whether it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized

We recognize in our financial statements the impact of tax position if that tax position is more likely than not

of being sustained on audit based on the technical merits of the tax position This involves the identification of

potential uncertain tax positions the evaluation of tax law and an assessment of whether liability for uncertain tax

positions is necessary Different conclusions reached in this assessment can have material impact on the

Consolidated Financial Statements

We operate within multiple taxing jurisdictions and are subject to audit in these jurisdictions These audits can

involve complex issues which could require an extended period of time to resolve Until formal resolutions are

reached between us and the tax authorities the timing and amount of possible audit settlement for uncertain tax

benefits is difficult to predict

Self-Insurance

We self-insure for workers compensation costs automobile and general liability claims up to certain

deductible limits as well as for certain employee medical and
disability benefits The recorded liabilities for self-

insured risks are primarily calculated using actuarial methods The liabilities include amounts for actual claims claim

growth and claims incurred but not yet reported Actual experience including claim frequency and severity as well as

health-care inflation could result in different liabilities than the amounts currently recorded The recorded liabilities

for self-insured risks were approximately $52 million as of December 25 2011 and $63 million as of December 26
2010

Accounts Receivable Allowances

Credit is extended to our advertisers and subscribers based upon an evaluation of the customers financial

condition and collateral is not required from such customers We use prior credit losses as percentage of credit sales

the aging of accounts receivable and specific identification of potential losses to establish reserves for credit losses on

accounts receivable In addition we establish reserves for estimated rebates returns rate adjustments and discounts

based on historical experience

In thousands

Accounts receivable allowances 18637 30209

Accounts receivable net 288355 302245

Accounti receivable gross 306992 332454

Total current assets 748589 857232

Percentage of accounts receivable allowances to gross accounts receivable 6% 9%

Percentage of net accounts receivable to current assets 39% 35%

We consider accounting for accounts receivable allowances critical to all of our operating segments because of

the significance of accounts receivable to our current assets and operating cash flows If the financial condition of our

customers were to deteriorate resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments additional allowances

may be required which could have material effect on our Consolidated Financial Statements

December 25
2011

December 26
2010
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PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

We sponsor several single-employer defined benefit pension plans the majority of which have been frozen

participate
in The New York Times Newspaper Guild pension plan joint Company and Guild-sponsored plan and

make contributions to several multiemployer pension plans in connection with collective bargaining agreements

These plans cover the majority of our employees The table below includes the liability for all of these plans

In thousands

Pension and other postretirement liabilities 1013091 931638

Total liabilities 2373941 2621665

Percentage of pension and other postretirement liabilities to total liabilities 43% 36%

Pension Benefits

Our Company-sponsored defined benefit pension plans include
qualified plans funded as well as non-

qualified plans unfunded These plans provide participating employees with retirement benefits in accordance with

benefit formulas detailed in each plan Our non-qualified plans provide enhanced retirement benefits to select

members of management The New York Times Newspaper Guild pension plan is qualified plan and is also

included in the table below

We also have foreign-based pension plan for certain IHT employees the foreign plan The information for

the foreign plan is combined with the information for U.S non-qualified plans The benefit obligation of the foreign

plan is immaterial to our total benefit obligation

The funded status of our qualified and non-qualified pension plans as of December 25 2011 is as follows

December 25 2011

Qualified Non-Qualified

In thousands Plans Plans All Plans

Pension obligation 1986502 277060 2263562

Fair value of plan assets 1464729 1464729

Pension underfunded/unfunded obligation 521773 277060 798833

We made contributions of approximately $151 million to certain qualified pension plans in 2011 The majority of

these contributions were discretionary We expect to make mandatory contributions primarily contractual

contributions in connection with The New York Times Newspaper Guild pension plan of approximately $45 million

in 2012 We may make discretionary contributions in 2012 to our Company-sponsored qualified pension plans

depending on cash flows pension asset performance interest rates and other factors

Pension expense is calculated using number of actuarial assumptions including an expected long-term rate of

return on assets for qualified plans and discount rate Our methodology in selecting these actuarial assumptions is

discussed below

In determining the expected long-term rate of return on assets we evaluated input from our investment

consultants actuaries and investment management firms including our review of asset class return expectations as

well as long-term historical asset class returns Projected returns by such consultants and economists are based on

broad equity and bond indices Our objective is to select an average rate of earnings expected on existing plan assets

and expected contributions to the plan during the year The expected long-term rate of return determined on this

basis was 8.25% in 2011 Our plan assets had rate of return of approximately 2% in 2011 and an average annual

return of approximately 13% over the three-year period 2009-2011 We
regularly review our actual asset allocation and

periodically rebalance our investments to meet our investment strategy

The value market-related value of plan assets is multiplied by the expected long-term rate of return on

assets to compute the expected return on plan assets component of net periodic pension cost The market-related

value of plan assets is calculated value that recognizes changes in fair value over three years

December 25
2011

December 26
2010
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Based on the composition of our assets at the beginning of the year we estimated our 2012 expected long-term

rate of return to be 8.00% decline from 8.25% in 2011 If we had decreased our expected long-term rate of return on

our plan assets by 50 basis points to 7.75% in 2011 pension expense would have mcreased by approximately $7

million in 2011 for our qualified pension plans Our funding requirements would not have been materially affected

We determined our discount rate using Ryan ALM Inc Curve the Ryan Curve The Ryan Curve provides

the bonds included in the curve and allows adjustments for certain outliers e.g bonds on watch We believe the

Ryan Curve allows us to calculate an appropriate discount rate

To determine our discount rate we project cash flow based on annual accrued benefits For active

participants the benefits under the respective pension plans are projected to the date of termination The projected

plan cash flow is discounted to the measurement date which is the last day of our fiscal year using the annual spot

rates provided in the Ryan Curve single discount rate is then computed so that the present value of the benefit cash

flow equals the present value computed using the Ryan Curve rates

The discount rate determined on this basis was 5.05% for our qualified plans and 4.80% for our non-qualified

plans as of December 25 2011

If we had decreased the expected discount rate by 50 basis points to 4.55% for our qualified plans and 4.30% for

our non-qualified plans in 2011 pension expense would have increased by approximately $4 million and $0.2 million

respectively and as of December 25 2011 our pension obligation would have increased by approximately

$135 million and $14 million respectively

We will continue to evaluate all of our actuarial assumptions generally on an annual basis and will adjust as

necessary Actual pension expense will depend on future investment performance changes in future discount rates

the level of contributions we make and various other factors

We also recognize the present value of pension liabilities associated with the withdrawal from multiemployer

pension plans Our multiemployer pension plan withdrawal liability was approximately $100 million as of December

25 2011 This liability is the present value of the obligations related to complete and partial withdrawals from certain

plans as well as an estimate of future partial withdrawals that we considered probable and reasonably estimable The

actual liability will not be known until each plan completes final assessment of the withdrawal liability and issues

demand to us Therefore the estimate of our multiemployer pension plan liability will be adjusted as more

information becomes available that allows us to refine our estimates

See Note 11 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding our

pension plans

Other Postretirement Benefits

We provide health benefits to retired employees and their eligible dependents who meet the definition of an

eligible participant and certain age and service requirements as outlined in the plan document While we offer pre

age 65 retiree medical coverage to employees who meet certain retiree medical eligibility requirements we no longer

provide post-age 65 retiree medical benefits for employees who retire on or after March 2009 We also contribute to

postretirement plan under the provisions of collective bargaining agreement We accrue the costs of postretirement

benefits during the employees active years of service and our policy is to pay our portion of insurance premiums and

claims from our assets

The annual postretirement expense was calculated using number of actuarial assumptions including health-

care cost trend rate and discount rate The health-care cost trend rate decreased to 7.33% as of December 25 2011
from 7.75% as of December 26 2010 one-percentage point change in the assumed health-care cost trend rate would

result in an increase of $0.4 million or decrease of $0.3 millionin our 2011 service and interest costs respectively two

factors included in the calculation of postretirement expense one-percentage point change in the assumed health

care cost trend rate would result in an increase of approximately $5 million or decrease of approximately $5 million

in our accumulated benefit obligation as of December 25 2011 Our discount rate assumption for postretirement

benefits is consistent with that used in the calculation of pension benefits See Pension Benefits above for

information on our discount rate assumption

See Notes 11 and 12 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information
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RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB amended its guidance on goodwill

impairment testing to reduce the cost and complexity of testing goodwill for impairment by providing the option to

first perform qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting

unit is less than its carrying value The result of this assessment will determine whether it is necessary to perform the

two-step test The provisions of this new guidance are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2011

with early adoption permitted We adopted the new guidance early when we conducted our annual goodwill

impairment test in the fourth quarter of 2011 The adoption of this guidance did not have material impact on our

financial statements

In June 2011 the FASB amended its guidance on the presentation of comprehensive income in financial

statements to improve the comparability consistency and transparency of financial reporting and to increase the

prominence of items that are recorded in other comprehensive income The new accounting guidance requires entities

to report components of comprehensive income in either continuous statement of comprehensive income or

two separate but consecutive statements The provisions of this guidance are effective for fiscal years and interim

periods within those years beginning after December 15 2011 We do not anticipate the adoption of this guidance will

have material impact on our financial statements

In May 2011 the FASB amended its guidance related to fair value measurements in order to align
the definition

of fair value measurements and the related disclosure requirements between accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America and International Financial Reporting Standards These amendments which are

effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011 also change certain existing
fair value

measurement principles
and disclosure requirements We do not anticipate

the adoption of this guidance will have

material impact on our financial statements
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ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our market risk is principally associated with the following

We do not have interest rate risk related to Our debt because as of December 25 2011 our portfolio does not

include variable-rate debt

Newsprint is commodity subject to supply and demand market conditions We have equity investments in

two paper mills which provide partial hedge against price volatility The cost of raw materials of which

newsprint expense is major component represented 8% of our total operating costs in 2011 and 2010 Based

on the number of newsprint tons consumed in 2011 and 2010 $10 per ton increase in newsprint prices

would have resulted in additional newsprint expense of $2.2 million pre-tax in 2011 and $2.3 million pre
tax in 2010

significant portion of our employees are unionized and our results could be adversely affected if labor

negotiations were to restrict our ability to maximize the efficiency of our operations In addition if we were to

experience labor unrest strikes or other business interruptions in connection with labor negotiations or if we
are unable to negotiate labor contracts on reasonable terms our ability to produce and deliver our most

significant products could be impaired

See Notes 78 and 20 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

P.54- THE NEW YORK TIMES COMPANY



ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

THE NEW YORK TIMES COMPANY 2011 FINANCIAL REPORT

INDEX PAGE

Managements Responsibilities Report
56

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 57

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Consolidated Financial Statements 58

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial

Reporting
59

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 25 2011 December 26 2010

and December 27 2009 60

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 25 2011 and December 26 2010 62

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 25 2011 December 26 2010

and December 27 2009 64

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity for the years ended December 25 2011

December 26 2010 and December 27 2009 66

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 69

Basis of Presentation 69

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 69

Short-Term Investments 73

Inventories 74

Impairment of Assets 74

Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets Acquired 76

Investments in Joint Ventures 77

Debt Obligations
79

Other 81

10 Fair Value Measurements 83

11 Pension Benefits 84

12 Other Postretirement Benefits 94

13 Other Liabilities 97

14 Income Taxes 98

15 Discontinued Operations
100

16 Earnings/Loss Per Share 101

17 Stock-Based Awards 101

18 Stockholders Equity
105

19 Segment Information 106

20 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 108

21 Subsequent Events 109

Quarterly Information Unaudited 111

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the three years ended December 25 2011 114

THE NEW YORK TIMES COMPANY P.55



MANAGEMENTS RESPONSIBILITIES REPORT

The Companys consolidated financial statements were prepared by management who is responsible for their

integrity and objectivity The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America GAAP and as such include amounts based on

managements best estimates and judgments

Management is further responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as defified in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 The Companys
internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP The

Company follows and continuously monitors its policies and procedures for internal control over financial reporting

to ensure that this objective is met see Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting below

The consolidated financial statements were audited by Ernst Young LLP an independent registered public

accounting firm in 2011 2010 and 2009 Its audits were conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States and its report is shown on Page 58

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors which is composed solely of independent directors meets

regularly
with the independent registered public accounting firm internal auditors and management to discuss

specific accounting financial reporting and internal control matters Both the independent registered public

accounting firm and the internal auditors have full and free access to the Audit Committee Each year the Audit

Committee selects subject to ratification by stockholders the firm which is to perform audit and other related work

for the Company

THE NEW Yo TIMES CoMPA THE NEW Yoi TIMES CoMPAN

BY Is ARTHUR SULzBERGER JR BY /s JAMES FOLLO

Arthur Suizberger Jr James Folio

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

February 23 2012 February 23 2012
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MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 The

Companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance

with GAAP The Companys internal contml over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and dispositions
of the assets of the Company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with GAAP and that mceipts and expenditures of the Company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the Companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies

or procedures may deteriorate

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of

December 25 2011 In making this assessment management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control Integrated Framework Based on its

assessment management concluded that the Companys internal control over financial reporting was effective as of

December 25 2011

The Companys independent registered public accounting firmErnst Young LLP that audited the

consolidated financial statements of the Company included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K has issued an

attestation report on the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 25 2011 which is

included on Page 59 in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

The New York Times Company
New York NY

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The New York Times Company as of

December 25 2011 and December 26 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations changes in

stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the thme fiscal years in the period ended December 25 2011 Our

audits also included the financial statement schedule listed at Item 15A2 of The New York Times Companys 2011

Annual Report on Form 10-K These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of The New York Times

Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule

based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material ispects the consolidated

financial
position

of The New York Times Company at December 25 2011 and December 26 2010 and the

consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended

December 25 2011 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related

financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as whole presents

fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States The New York Times Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 25 2011
based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 23 2012 expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon

1sf Ernst Young LLP

New York New York

February 23 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

The New York Times Company
New York NY

We have audited The New York Times Companys internal contml over financial reporting as of December 25

2011 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria The New York Times Companys

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment

of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report

on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on The New York Times

Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included

obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness

exists testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and

performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit

provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that

could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies

or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion The New York Times Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control

over financial reporting as of December 25 2011 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated balance sheets of The New York Times Company as of December 25 2011 and

December 26 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations changes in stockholders equity and cash

flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 25 2011 and our report dated February 23 2012

expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

1sf Ernst Young LLP

New York New York

February 23 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

December 27
2009In thousands

Revenues

Advertising 1221497 1300361 1336291

Circulation 941468 931493 936486

Other 160436 161609 167662

Total 2323401 2393463 2440439

Operating costs

Production costs

Raw materials 161691 160422 166387

Wages and benefits 495607 498270 524782

Other 300169 303086 330061

Total production costs 957467 961778 1021230

Selling general and administrative costs 1019611 1054199 1152874

Depreciation and amortization 116454 120950 133696

Total operating costs 2093532 2136927 2307800

Impairment of assets 164434 16148 4179

Pension withdrawal expense 4228 6268 78931

Loss on leases and other expenses 4500 34633

Net pension curtailment gain 53965

Gain on sale of assets 5198

Operating profit 56707 234120 74059

Gain on sale of investments 71171 9128

Income from joint ventures 28 19035 20667

Premium on debt redemptions 46381 9250

Interest expense net 85243 85062 81701

Loss/income from continuing operations before income taxes 3718 177221 3775

Income tax expense 36506 68516 2206

Loss/income from continuing operations 40224 108705 1569

Discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes 1156

Gain on sale net of income taxes 13 19488

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 13 18332

Net loss/income 40224 108718 19901

Net Ioss/income attributable to the noncontrolling interest 555 1014 10

Net lossIincome attributable to The New York Times Company common
stockholders 39669 107704 19891

Amounts attributable to The New York Times Company common stockholders

Loss/income from continuing operations 39669 107691 559

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 13 18332

Net Ioss/income 39669 107704 19891

See Notes to the Consolidated Rnancial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS continued

In thousands except per share data

Average number of common shares outstanding

Basic

Years Ended

December 25 December 26 December 27
2011 2010 2009

147190 145636 144188

Diluted 147190 152600 146367

Basic Ioss/earnirigs per share attributable to The New York Times Company
common stockholders

Loss/income from continuing operations 0.27 0.74 0.01

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 0.00 0.00 0.13

Net Ioss/income 0.27 0.74 0.14

Diluted Ioss/earnings per share attributable to The New York Times Company
common stockholders

Loss/income from continuing operations 0.27 0.71 0.01

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 0.00 0.00 0.13

Net Ioss/income 0.27 0.71 0.14

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

In thousands except share and per share data

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 175151 369668

Short-term investments 104846 29974

Restricted cash 27628

Accounts receivable net of allowances 2011 $18637 2010 $30209 288355 302245

Inventories 21087 16132

Deferred income taxes 73055 68875

Other current assets 58467 70338

Total current assets 748589 857232

Investments In joint ventures 82019 134641

Property plant and equipment

Equipment 1189768 1166697

Buildings building equipment and improvements 865330 873801

Land 140413 140997

Assets in progress 15032 24247

Total at cost 2210543 2205742

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 1125353 1048956

Property plant and equipment net 1085190 1156786

Intangible assets acquired

Goodwill less accumulated impairment losses of $957311 in 2011 and $805218 in 2010 488894 644464

Other intangible assets acquired less accumulated amortization of $71223 in 2011 and $69383
in 2010 17615 35415

Total intangible assets acquired 506509 679879

Deferred income taxes 280283 255701

Miscellaneous assets 180860 201502

Total assets 2883450 3285741

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS continued

In thousands except share and per share data

December 25
2011

Liabilities and stockholders equity

Current liabilities

December 26
2010

Accounts payable 103894 113968

Accrued payroll and other related liabilities 112024 143850

Unexpired subscriptions 74350 72896

Accrued expenses 148120 173625

Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations 74920 38

Total current liabilities 513308 504377

Other liabilities

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 698220 996405

Pension benefits obligation 880504 772785

Postretirement benefits obligation 104192 130623

Other 177717 217475

Total other liabilities 1860633 2117288

Stockholders equity

Serial preferred stock of $1 par value authorized 200000 shares none issued

Common stock of $.10 par value

Class authorized 300000000 shares issued 2011 150007446
2010 149302487 including treasury shares 2011 2979786
20103970238 15001 14930

Class convertible authorized and issued shares 2011 818885
2010819125 including treasury shares 2011 none 2010 none 82 82

Additional paid-in capital 32024 40155

Retained earnings 1086625 1126294

Common stock held in treasury at cost 110974 134463

Accumulated other comprehensive loss net of income taxes

Foreign currency translation adjustments 10928 1298

Unrealized derivative loss on cash-flow hedge of equity method investment 652 1143

Funded status of benefit plans 526674 397226

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss net of income taxes 516398 387071

Total New York Times Company stockholders equity 506360 659927

Noncontrolling interest 3149 4149

Total stockholders equity 509509 664076

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 2883450 3285741

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

164434

4228

4500

71171

46381

116454

8497

3435

60741

141714

462

12603

4955

1820

93581

2941

73927

Years Ended

16148

6268

9128

16

120950

7029

10710

61271

167498

5611

39830

171

572

20137

4608
153327

19901

4179

78931

34633

9250

53965

34914

5198

133775

11250

17892

44431

13936

9816

52817

8324

15798

75432

2387

247253

December 25 December 26 December 27
2011 2010 2009

40224 108718

In thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net 1055/income

Adjustments to reconcile net loss/income to net cash provided by operating activities

Impairment of assets

Pension withdrawal expense

Loss on leases and other expenses

Gain on sale of investments

Premium on debt redemptions

Net pension curtailment gain

Gain on sale of Radio Operations

Gain on sale of assets

Depreciation and amortization

Stock-based compensation expense

Undistributed loss/income of equity method investments net of dividends

Deferred income taxes

Long-term retirement benefit obligations

Other net

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of dispositions

Accounts receivable net

Inventories

Other current assets

Accounts payable and other liabilities

Unexpired subscriptions

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of short-term investments

Maturities of short-term investments

Proceeds from sale/purchase of investments net

Capital expenditures

Change in restricted cash

Proceeds from the sale of assets

Loan repayments/issuance net

Proceeds from the sale of Radio Operations

Net cash used in/provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Long-term obligations

279721 29974

204849

117966 9254 1338

44887 33565 51056

27628

11167 2265 26543

11500 11500

45424

18254 40520 8073

Proceeds from issuance of senior unsecured notes 220248 221322

Repayments 590 592 98958
Proceeds from sale-leaseback financing 210502

Redemption of long-term debt 250000 250000

Capital shares

Issuance 364 1010 443

Repurchases 489
Proceeds from sale of warrants 20529

Repayments under revolving credit agreements net 380000
Net cash used in/provided by financing activities 250226 220666 276651
Net decrease/increase in cash and cash equivalents 194553 333473 21325
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 36 325 1061

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 369668 36520 56784

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 175151 369668 36520

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash Flow Information

Years Ended

December 25 December 26
2011 2010In thousands

Cash payments

Interest 98763 76748 68976

Income tax refundsIpaid net 22757 18948 23692

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 27
2009
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

In thousands

except share and

per share data

Balance December 28 2008

Capital

Stock

Class

and
Class

Common

14889

Additional

Paid-in

Capital

22149

Common
Stock

Held in

Treasury
at Cost

159679

Retained

Earnings

998699

Accumulated
Other

Compre
hensive

Loss Net of

Income

Taxes

372095

Total

New York

Times

Company
Stock

holders

Equity

503963

Non-

controlling

Interest

3066

Total

Stock
holders

Equity

507029

Comprehensive income

Net income 19891 19891 10 19901

Foreign currency

translation income net of

tax expense of $533 2345 2345 2345

Unrealized derivative loss

on cash-flow hedge of

equity method investment

net of tax benefit of $523 697 697 697

Change in unrecognized
amounts included in

pension and postretirement

obligations net of tax

expense of $24754 46683 46683 125 46808

Comprehensive income 68222 135 68357

Issuance of warrants 20529 20529 20529

Issuance of shares

Retirement units 3385
Class shares 30 75

Employee stock purchase

plan 139904 Class

shares 14 827 841 841

Stock options 118400
Class shares 12 417 429 429

Stock conversions 159

Class shares to shares

Restricted shares forfeited

2585 Class shares 57 57

Restricted stock units

vested 57520 Class

shares 1079 908 171 171

401k Company stock

match 444936 Class

shares 7466 9940 2474 2474

Stock-based compensation 10433 10433 10433

Tax shortfall from equity award

exercises 2234 2234 2234

Repurchase of stock 52412
Class shares 489 489 489

Balance December 27 2009 14915 43603 1018590 149302 323764 604042 3201 607243

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY continued

In thousands

except share and

per share data

Comprehensive income

Net income

Foreign currency

translation loss net of tax

benefit of $4076

Unrealized derivative loss

on cash-flow hedge of

equity method investment

net of tax benefit of $316

Change in unrecognized
amounts included in

pension and postretirement

obligations net of tax

benefit of $39281

Comprehensive income

Issuance of shares

Retirement units 18038
Class shares

Employee stock purchase

plan 722916 Class

shares

Stock options 257600
Class shares

Stock conversions 6350
Class shares to shares

Restricted stock units

vested 203566 Class

shares

401k Company stock

match 435895 Class

shares

Stock-based compensation

Tax shortfall from equity award

exercises

Balance December 26 2010

Accumulated Total

Capital Other New York

Stock Common Compre- Times

CiiA Stock hensive Company
Total

and Additional Held in Loss Net of Stock-
Non- Stock-

Class Paid-in Retained Tieasury Income holders controlling holders

Common Capital Earnings at Cost
Taxes Equity

Interest Equity

107704 107704 1014 108718

5540 5540 5540

446 446 446

57321 57321 66 57387

44397 948 45345

109 427 318 318

72 3761 3833 3833

25 913 938 938

6180 4828 1352 1352

5106 9584 4478 4478

7119 7119 7119

3846 3846 3846

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15012 40155 1126294 134463 387071 659927 4149 664076
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY continued

Comprehensive loss

Net loss

Foreign currency

translation loss net of tax

benefit of $153

Unrealized derivative gain

on cash-flow hedge of

equity method investment

net of tax expense of

$348

39669 39669

370 370

491 491

555 40224

370

491

Change in unrecognized
amounts included in

pension and postretirement

obligations not of tax

benefit of $89697

Comprehensive loss

Issuance of shares

Employee stock purchase
plan 603114 Class

shares

Stock options 100200
Class shares

Stock conversions 240
Class shares to shares

Restricted stock units

vested 210769 Class

shares

401k Company stock

match 781088 Class

shares

Stock-based compensation

Tax shortfall from equity award
exercises

Balance December 25 2011

In thousands

except share and

per share data

Capital

Stock
Class

and

Class

Common

Accumulated Total

Other New York

Common Compre- Times
Stock hensive Company

Additional Held in Loss Net of Stock-

Paid-in Retained Treasury Income holders

Capital Earnings at Cost
Taxes EquIty

Non-

controlling

Interest

Total

Stock

holders

Equity

129448 129448 445 129893

168996 1000 169996

60 4258 4318 4318

11 353 364 364

6250 4965 1285 1285

11800 18524 6724 6724

9410 9410 9410

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4102 4102 4102

15083 32024 1086625 110974 516398 506360 3149 509509
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of Presentation

Nature of Operations

The New York Times Company is leading global multimedia news and information company that currently

includes newspapers digital businesses investments in paper mills and other investments see Note The New
York Times Company and its consolidated subsidiaries are referred to collectively as the Company we us or

our Our major source of revenue is advertising predominantly from our newspaper business The newspapers

primarily operate in the Northeast markets in the United States

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of our Company and our wholly and majority-

owned subsidiaries after elimination of all significant intercompany transactions

The portion of the net income or loss and equity of subsidiary attributable to the owners of subsidiary other

than the Company noncontrolling interest is included within net income or loss in our Consolidated Statements of

Operations and as component of consolidated stockholders equity in our Consolidated Balance Sheets and

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity

Fiscal Year

Our fiscal year end is the last Sunday in December Fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 each comprise 52 weeks

Our fiscal years ended as of December 25 2011 December 26 2010 and December 27 2009

Reclassifications

For comparability certain prior year amounts have been mclassified to conform with the 2011 presentation

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of months or less to be cash

equivalents

Short-Teim Investments

We have the intention and ability to hold our short-term investments to maturity These investments am

classified as held-to-maturity and are reported at amortized cost The changes in the value of these securities other

than impairment charges are not reported in our Consolidated Financial Statements

Accounts Receivable

Credit is extended to our advertisers and our subscribers based upon an evaluation of the customers financial

condition and collateral is not required from such customers Allowances for estimated credit losses rebates returns

rate adjustments and discounts are generally established based on historical experience

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or current market value Inventory cost is generally based on the last-

in first-out LIFO method for newsprint and the first-in first-out FIFO method for other inventories

In vestments

Investments in which we have at least 20% but not more than 50% interest are generally accounted for

under the equity method Investment interests below 20% are generally accounted for under the cost method except

if we could exercise significant influence the investment would be accounted for under the equity method We have

an investment interest below 20% in Fenway Sports Group which is accounted for under the equity method see

Notes and 21
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Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment are stated at cost Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method over the

shorter of estimated asset service lives or lease terms as follows buildings building equipment and improvements
10 to 40 years equipment to 30 years We capitalize interest costs and certain staffing costs as part of the cost of

major projects

We evaluate whether there has been an impairment of long-lived assets primarily property plant and

equipment if certain circumstances indicate that possible impairment may exist These assets are tested for

impairment at the asset group level associated with the lowest level of cash flows An impairment exists if the

carrying value of the asset is not recoverable the carrying value of the asset is greater than the sum of

undiscounted cash flows and is greater than its fair value

Goodwill and Intangible Assets Acquired

Goodwill is the excess of cost over the fair value of tangible and other intangible net assets acquired Goodwill

is not amortized but tested for impairment annually or in an interim period if certain circumstances indicate

possible impairment may exist Our annual impairment testing date is the first day of our fiscal fourth quarter

Other intangible assets acquired consist primarily of trade names on various acquired properties content

customer lists and other assets Other
intangible assets acquired that have indefinite lives trade names are not

amortized but tested for impairment annually or in an interim period if certain circumstances indicate possible

impairment may exist Certain other
intangible assets acquired content customer lists and other assets are

amortized over their estimated useful lives and tested for impairment if certain circumstances indicate an impairment

may exist

We test for goodwill impairment at the reporting unit level which are our operating segments Separate

financial information about these segments is regularly evaluated by our chief operating decision-maker in deciding

how to allocate resources We first perform qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not

that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying value The result of this assessment will determine

whether it is necessary to perform the goodwill impairment two-step test

If we determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying

value in the first step we compare the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount including goodwill

Fair value is calculated by combination of discounted cash flow model and market approach model In

calculating fair value for each reporting unit we generally weigh the results of the discounted cash flow model more

heavily than the market approach because the discounted cash flow model is specific to our business and long-term

projections If the fair value exceeds the carrying amount goodwill is not considered impaired If the carrying amount

exceeds the fair value the second step must be performed to measure the amount of the impairment loss if any In the

second step we compare the implied fair value of the reporting units goodwill with the carrying amount of that

goodwill An impairment loss would be recognized in an amount equal to the excess of the carrying amount of the

goodwill over the implied fair value of the goodwill

The discounted cash flow analysis requires us to make various judgments estimates and assumptions many of

which are interdependent about future revenues operating margins growth rates capital expenditures working

capital and discount rates The starting point for the assumptions used in our discounted cash flow analysis is the

annual long-range financial forecast The annual planning process that we undertake to prepare the long-range

financial forecast takes into consideration multitude of factors including historical growth rates and operating

performance related industry trends macroeconomic conditions and marketplace data among others Assumptions
are also made for perpetual growth rates for periods beyond the long-range financial forecast period Our estimates of

fair value are sensitive to changes in all of these variables certain of which relate to broader macroeconomic

conditions outside our control

The market approach analysis includes applying multiple based on comparable market transactions to

certain operating metrics of the reporting unit

We compare the sum of the fair values of our reporting units to our market capitalization to determine whether

our estimates of reporting unit fair value are reasonable
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Intangible assets that are not amortized trade names are tested for impairment at the asset level by comparing

the fair value of the asset with its carrying amount Fair value is calculated as the discounted cash flows utilizing the

relief-from-royalty method This method is based on applying royalty rate which would be obtained through

lease to the cash flows derived from the asset being tested The royalty rate is derived from market data If the fair

value exceeds the carrying amount the asset is not considered impaired If the carrying amount exceeds the fair

value an impairment loss would be recognized in an amount equal to the excess of the carrying amount of the asset

over the fair value of the asset

All other long-lived assets intangible assets that are amortized such as content and customer lists are tested

for impairment at the asset group level associated with the lowest level of cash flows An impairment exists if the

carrying value of the asset is not recoverable the carrying value of the asset is greater than the sum of

undiscounted cash flows and is greater than its fair value

The significant estimates and assumptions used by management in assessing the recoverability of goodwill

other intangible assets acquired and other long-lived assets are estimated future cash flows discount rates growth

rates as well as other factors Any changes in these estimates or assumptions could result in an impairment charge

The estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections require managements subjective

judgment Depending on the assumptions and estimates used the estimated results of the impairment tests can vary

within range of outcomes

In addition to annual testing management uses certain indicators to evaluate whether the carrying values of its

long-lived assets may not be recoverable and an interim impairment test may be required These indicators include

current-period operating or cash flow declines combined with history of operating or cash flow declines or

projection/forecast that demonstrates continuing declines in the cash flow or the inability to improve our operations

to forecasted levels significant
adverse change in the business climate whether structural or technological and

decline in our stock price and market capitalization

Management has applied what it believes to be the most appropriate valuation methodology for its impairment

testing See Note

Self-Insurance

We self-insure for workers compensation costs automobile and general liability claims up to certain

deductible limits as well as for certain employee medical and disability benefits The recorded liabilities for self-

insured risks are primarily calculated using actuarial methods The liabilities include amounts for actual claims claim

growth and claims incurred but not yet reported The recorded liabilities for self-insured risks were approximately

$52 million as of December 25 2011 and $63 million as of December 26 2010

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Our single-employer pension and other postretirement benefit costs are accounted for using actuarial

valuations We recognize the funded status of these plans measured as the difference between plan assets if funded

and the benefit obligation on the balance sheet and recognize changes in the funded status that arise during the

period but are not recognized as components of net periodic pension cost within other comprehensive income net of

income taxes The assets related to our funded pension plans are measured at fair value

We make significant subjective judgments about number of actuarial assumptions which include discount

rates health-care cost trend rates long-term return on plan assets and mortality rates Depending on the assumptions

and estimates used the impact from our pension and other postretirement benefits could vary within range of

outcomes and could have material effect on our Consolidated Financial Statements

We also recognize the present value of pension liabilities associated with the withdrawal from multiemployer

pension plans We assess liability for obligations related to complete and partial withdrawals from multiemployer

pension plans as well as estimate obligations for future partial withdrawals that we consider probable and reasonably

estimable The actual liability is not known until each plan completes final assessment of the withdrawal liability

and issues demand to us Therefore we adjust the estimate of our multiemployer pension plan liability as more

information becomes available that allows us to refine our estimates

See Notes 11 and 12 for additional information regarding pension and other postretirement benefits
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Revenue Recognition

Advertising revenues are recognized when advertisements are published in newspapers or placed on digital

platforms or with
respect to certain digital advertising each time user clicks on certain ads net of provisions for

estimated rebates rate adjustments and discounts

We recognize rebate obligation as reduction of revenues based on the amount of estimated rebates that

will be earned and claimed related to the underlying revenue transactions during the period Measurement

of the rebate obligation is estimated based on the historical experience of the number of customers that

ultimately earn and use the rebate

Rate adjustments primarily represent credits given to customers related to billing or production errors and

discounts represent credits given to customers who pay an invoice prior to its due date Rate adjustments and

discounts are accounted for as reduction of revenues based on the amount of estimated rate adjustments or

discounts related to the underlying revenues during the period Measurement of rate adjustments and

discount obligations are estimated based on historical experience of credits actually issued

Circulation revenues include single-copy and subscription revenues Circulation revenues are based on the

number of copies of the printed newspaper through home-delivery subscriptions and single-copy sales and digital

subscriptions sold and the rates charged to the
respective customers Single-copy revenue is recognized based on date

of publication net of provisions for related returns Proceeds from subscription revenues are deferred at the time of

sale and are recognized in earnings on pro rata basis over the terms of the subscriptions

Other revenues are recognized when the related service or product has been delivered

Income Taxes

Income taxes are recognized for the following amount of taxes payable for the current year and deferred

tax assets and liabilities for the future tax consequence of events that have been recognized differently in the financial

statements than for tax purposes Deferred tax assets and liabilities are established using statutory
tax rates and are

adjusted for tax rate changes in the period of enactment

We assess whether our deferred tax assets should be reduced by valuation allowance if it is more likely than

not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized Our process includes collecting positive

e.g sources of taxable income and negative e.g recent historical losses evidence and assessing based on the

evidence whether it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized

We recognize in our financial statements the impact of tax position if that tax position is more likely than not

of being sustained on audit based on the technical merits of the tax position This involves the identification of

potential uncertain tax positions the evaluation of tax law and an assessment of whether liability for uncertain tax

positions is necessary Different conclusions reached in this assessment can have material impact on our

Consolidated Financial Statements

We operate within multiple taxing jurisdictions and are subject to audit in these jurisdictions
These audits can

involve complex issues which could require an extended period of time to resolve Until formal resolutions are

reached between us and the tax authorities the timing and amount of possible audit settlement for uncertain tax

benefits is difficult to predict

Stock-Based Compensation

We establish fair value for our stock-based awards to determine our cost and recognize the related expense over

the appropriate vesting period We recognize compensation expense for outstanding stock options stock-settled

restricted stock units cash-settled restricted stock units stock appreciation rights Common Stock under our

Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP and awards under Long-Term Incentive Plan LTIP together the

Stock-Based Awards See Note 17 for additional information related to stock-based compensation expense
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Earnings/Loss Per Share

Basic earnings/loss per share is calculated by dividing net earnings/loss available to common stockholders

by the weighted-average common shares outstanding Diluted earnings/loss per share is calculated similarly except

that it includes the dilutive effect of the assumed exercise of securities including outstanding warrants and the effect

of shares issuable under our Companys stock-based incentive plans if such effect is dilutive

Foreign Currency Translation

The assets and liabilities of foreign companies are translated at year-end exchange rates Results of operations

are translated at average rates of exchange in effect during the year The resulting translation adjustment is included

as separate component in the Stockholders Equity section of our Consolidated Balance Sheets in the caption

Accumulated other comprehensive loss net of income taxes

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts

reported in our Consolidated Financial Statements Actual results could differ from these estimates

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB amended its guidance on goodwill

impairment testing to reduce the cost and complexity of testing goodwill for impairment by providing the option to

first perform qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting

unit is less than its carrying value The result of this assessment will determine whether it is necessary to perform the

two-step test The provisions of this new guidance are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2011

with early adoption permitted We adopted the new guidance early when we conducted our annual goodwill

impairment test in the fourth quarter of 2011 The adoption of this guidance did not have material impact on our

financial statements

In June 2011 the FASB amended its guidance on the presentation of comprehensive income in financial

statements to improve the comparability consistency and transparency of financial reporting and to increase the

prominence of items that are recorded in other comprehensive income The new accounting guidance requires entities

to report components of comprehensive income in either continuous statement of comprehensive income or

two separate but consecutive statements The provisions of this guidance are effective for fiscal years and interim

periods within those years beginning after December 15 2011 We do not anticipate the adoption of this guidance will

have material impact on our financial statements

In May 2011 the FASB amended its guidance related to fair value measurements in order to align the definition

of fair value measurements and the related disclosure requirements between GAAP and International Financial

Reporting Standards These amendments which are effective for interim and annual periods beginning after

December 15 2011 also change certain existing fair value measurement principles and disclosure requirements We
do not anticipate the adoption of this guidance will have material impact on our financial statements

Short-Term Investments

We have short-term investments with original maturities of longer than months in U.S Treasury securities as

of December 25 2011 and as of December 26 2010 The carrying value of the short-term investments which

approximated the fair value was $104.8 million in U.S Treasury securities as of December 25 2011 and $30.0 million

in U.S Treasury securities as of December 26 2010 The short-term investments have remaining maturities of about

month to months as of December 25 2011
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Inventories

Inventories as shown in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows

December 25 December 26
In thousands 2011 2010

Newsprint and magazine paper 16927 12596

Other inventory 4160 3536

Total 21087 16132

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or current market value Cost was determined utilizing the LIFO

method for 71% of inventory in 2011 and 66% of inventory in 2010 The excess of replacement or current cost over

stated LIFO value was approximately $5 million as of December 25 2011 and December 26 2010 The remaining

portion of inventory is accounted for under the FIFO method

Impairment of Assets

2011

In 2011 we recorded $164.4 million impairment charge At the News Media Group the impairment consisted

of the write-down of goodwill at the Regional Media Group of $152.1 million and the write-down of certain assets

held for sale primarily of Baseline totaling $9.2 million At the About Group the impairment consisted of write-

down of an intangible asset at ConsumerSearch Inc of $3.1 million

Regional Media Group

Goodwill is not amortized but tested for impairment annually or in an interim period if certain circumstances

indicate possible impairment may exist Our policy is to perform our annual goodwill impairment test in the fourth

quarter of our fiscal year However due to certain impairment indicators at the Regional Media Group including

lower-than-expected operating results we performed an interim impairment test of goodwill as of June 26 2011 The

Regional Media Group is part of the News Media Group reportable segment See Note 21 for information regarding

the sale of the Regional Media Group on January 2012

The interim test resulted in an impairment of goodwill of $152.1 million mainly from lower projected long-term

operating results and cash flows of the Regional Media Group primarily due to the continued decline in print

advertising revenues These factors resulted in the carrying value of the net assets being greater
than their fair value

and therefore write-down to fair value was required The impairment charge reduced the carrying value of goodwill

at the Regional Media Group to $0

Irt determining the fair value of the Regional Media Group we made significant judgments and estimates

regarding the expected severity and duration of the uneven economic environment and the secular changes affecting

the newspaper industry in the Regional Media Group markets The effect of these assumptions on projected long-

term revenues along with the continued benefits from reductions to the groups cost structure played significant

role in calculating the fair value of the Regional Media Group

The fair value of the Regional Media Groups goodwill was the residual fair value after allocating the total fair

value of the Regional Media Group to its other assets net of liabilities The total fair value of the Regional Media

Group was determined using combination of discounted cash flow model present value of future cash flows and

market approach model based on comparable businesses We estimated flat annual growth rate to arrive at

residual year representing the perpetual cash flows of the Regional Media Group The residual year cash flow was

capitalized to arrive at the terminal value of the Regional Media Group Utilizing discount rate of 10.7% the present

value of the cash flows during the projection period and terminal value were aggregated to estimate the fair value of

the Regional Media Group In the 2010 annual impairment test we assumed 2.0% annual growth rate and

discount rate of 10.5% In determining the appropriate discount rate we considered the weighted-average cost of

capital for comparable companies
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Property plant and equipment is tested for impairment if certain circumstances indicate possible impairment

may exist Due to the factors discussed above we completed an interim impairment test of property plant and

equipment as of June 26 2011 The impairment test was completed at each newspaper asset group level with the

lowest level of cash flows in the Regional Media Group Our test did not result in an impairment because the sum of

the future undiscounted cash flows at each newspaper was greater than the carrying value of property plant and

equipment

About Group

Our 2011 animal impairment test which was completed in the fourth quarter resulted in non-cash

impairment charge of $3.1 million relating to the write-down of an intangible asset at ConsumerSearch Inc This

impairment charge reduced the carrying value of the ConsumerSearch trade name to approximately $3 million The

fair value of the trade name was calculated using relief-from-royalty method The impairment was driven by lower

cost-per-click advertising revenues

There were no additional impairment charges in connection with our 2011 annual impairment test However
the About Groups estimated fair value was 18% greater than its carrying value in our 2011 impairment test compared
with 60% in our 2010 impairment test significant decline during 2011 The About Group had approximately $367

million of goodwill as of December 25 2011

In determining the fair value of the About Group we made significant judgments and estimates regarding the

expected recovery of display and cost-per-click advertising The effect of these assumptions on projected long-term

revenues along with investments to grow content and traffic play significant role in calculating the fair value of the

About Group We believe if the long-term pmjected cash flows of the About Group are not met goodwill

impairment charge could be reasonably likely

Assets Held for Sale

In the second quarter of 2011 we classified certain assets as held for sale primarily of Baseline The carrying

value of these assets was greater
than their fair value less cost to sell resulting in an impairment of certain intangible

assets and property totaling $9.2 million The impairment charge reduced the carrying value of intangible assets to $0

and the property to nominal value The fair value for these assets was determined by estimating the most likely sale

price with third-party buyer based on market data In October 2011 we completed the sale of Baseline which

resulted in nominal gain

2010

We consolidated the printing facility
of The Boston Globe the Globe in Billerica Mass into the Boston

Mass printing facility in the second quarter of 2009 After exploring different opportunities for the assets at Billerica

we entered into an agreement in the third quarter of 2010 to sell the majority of these assets to third party Therefore

assets with carrying value of approximately $20 million were written down to their fair value resulting in $16.1

million impairment charge in 2010 The fair value for these assets was calculated utilizing an offer from third party

to buy equipment from us and real estate appraisal

2009

In the fourth quarter of 2009 we recorded $4.2 million charge for an impairment of assets due to the reduced

scope of systems project at the News Media Group The assets were written down to $0 as the costs associated with

this portion of the systems project was not utilized
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Acquired

Goodwill

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill in 2011 and 2010 were as follows

TotalIn thousands

Balance as of December 27 2009

Goodwill 1087436 369978 1457414

Accumulated impairment losses 805218 805218

Balance as of December 27 2009 282218 369978 652196

Foreign currency translation 7732 7732

Balance as of December 26 2010

Goodwill 1079704 369978 1449682

Accumulated impairment losses 805218 805218

Balance as of December 26 2010 274486 389978 644464

Goodwill impaired during year 152093 152093

Goodwill disposed during year 300 2702 3002

Foreign currency translation 475 475

Balance as of December 25 2011

Goodwill 1078929 367276 1446205

Accumulated impairment losses 957311 957311

Balance as of December 25 2011 121618 367276 488894

The table above includes goodwill impaired during 2011 see Note Goodwill disposed of during 2011 was

related to the sales of UCompareHealthCare.com which was part of the About Group and Baseline which was part

of the News Media Group The foreign currency translation line item reflects changes in goodwill resulting from

fluctuating exchange rates related to the consolidation of the International Herald Tribune IHT
Other Intangible Assets Acquired

Other intangible assets acquired were as follows

News Media About

Group Group

December 25 2011

Gross

Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

December 26 2010

Weighted

Average
Useful Life

yearsNet

Gross

Carrying
Amount

Accumulated

Amortization

Weighted

Average
Useful Life

yearsNetIn thousands except years

Amortized other intangible assets

Content 21384 18133 3251 25712 16510 9202

Customer lists 24495 21842 2853 28 316 21 281 035

Other 33074 31248 1826 36390 31592 4798

Total 78953 71223 7730 90418 69383 21035

Unamortized other intangible assets

Trade names 9885 14380

Total other intangible assets

acquired 17615 35415

The table above includes the foreign currency translation adjustment related to the consolidation of the IHT In

addition the table above includes other intangible assets impaired during the second and fourth quarters
of 2011 see

Note and disposed of during the first quarter of 2011 related to the sale of UCompareHealthCare.com which was

part
of the About Group
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Amortization expense related to other intangible assets acquired that are subject to amortization was $7.1

million in 2011 $8.1 million in 2010 and $8.2 million in 2009

Amortization expense for the next five years related to these intangible assets is expected to be as follows

In thousands

Year Amount

2012 4800

2013 1600

2014 600

2015 350

2016 270

Investments in Joint Ventures

As of December 25 2011 our Companys investments in joint ventures consisted of equity ownership interests

in the following entities

Company
Approximate

Ownership

Metro Boston LLC Metro Boston 49%

Donohue Malbaie Inc Malbaie 49%

Madison Paper Industries Madison 40%

quadrantONE LLC quadrantONE 25%

Fenway Sports Group 7.3%

Our Companys investments above are accounted for under the equity method and are recorded in

Investments in joint ventures in our Consolidated Balance Sheets Our proportionate shares of the operating results

of our investments are recorded in Income from joint ventures in our Consolidated Statements of Operations and in

Investments in joint ventures in our Consolidated Balance Sheets

Metro Boston

We own 49% interest in Metro Boston which publishes free daily newspaper in the
greater Boston area

Malbaie Madison

We also have investments in Canadian newsprint company Malbaie and partnership operating

supercalendered paper mill in Maine Madison together the Paper Mills

Our Company and UPM-Kymmene Corporation Finnish paper manufacturing company are partners

through subsidiary companies in Madison Our Companys percentage ownership of Madison which represents 40%
is through an 80%-owned consolidated subsidiary UPM-Kymmene owns 10% interest in Madison through 20%

noncontrolling interest in the consolidated subsidiary of our Company

We received distributions from Malbaie of $0 million in 2011 $0 million in 2010 and $2.8 million in 2009

We received distributions from Madison of $0 million in 2011 $5.3 million in 2010 and $0 million in 2009

The News Media Group purchased newsprint and supercalendered paper from the Paper Mills at competitive

prices Such purchases aggregated approximately $34 million in 2011 $33 million in 2010 and $39 million in 2009

In 2010 we recorded pre-tax gain of $12.7 million from the sale of an asset at one of the Paper Mills Our share

of the pre-tax gain after eliminating the noncontrolling interest portion was $10.2 million The $12.7 million gain is

included in Income from joint ventures in our Consolidated Statements of Operations
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quadrantONE

We own 25% interest in quadrantONE an online advertising network that sells bundled premium targeted

display advertising onto local newspaper and other Web sites

Fenway Sports Group

As of December 25 2011 we owned 7.3% interest in Fenway Sports Group which owns the Boston Red Sox

baseball club Liverpool Football Club soccer team in the English Premier League approximately 80% of New

England Sports Network regional cable sports network and 50% of Roush Fenway Racing leading NASCAR
team

On July 2011 we sold 390 of our units in Fenway Sports Group for $117.0 million We recorded pre-tax gain

of $65.3 million in the third quarter of 2011 This transaction is in addition to the sale of 50 of our units in Fenway

Sports Group that resulted in pre-tax gain of $9.1 millionin the second quarter of 2010 Following these transactions

we owned 310 units or 7.3% of Fenway Sports Group

On February 2012 we sold additional units of Fenway Sports Group See Note 21 for additional information

regarding the sale We continue to market our remaining units in Fenway Sports Group in whole or in parts

The following tables present summarized combined information for our Companys unconsolidated joint

ventures Separate financial statements of these unconsolidated joint ventures are not required since none of our

investments are considered individually significant Summarized unaudited condensed combined balance sheets of

our Companys unconsolidated joint ventures were as follows as of

Current assets 262203 272672

Non-current assets 1405110 1421083

Total assets 1667313 1693755

Current liabilities 551105 426020

Non-current liabilities 518723 613971

Total liabilities 1069828 1039991

Equity 522930 580603

Noncontrolling interest 74555 73161

Total liabilities and equity 1667313 1693755

Summarized unaudited condensed combined income statements of our Companys unconsolidated joint

ventures were as follows for the years ended

December 31
2011

December 31
2010

December 31
2009

In thousands

December 31 December 31
2011 2010

In thousands

Revenues 1203537 936223 844950

Costs and expenses 1203181 850950 739289

Operating income 356 85273 105661

Other expense/income 10014 14724 5418

Pre-tax Ioss/income 9658 99997 111079

Income tax benefit/expense 25004 11 932

Net income 15346 100108 110147

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 23517 23725 20631

Net loss/income less noncontrolling interest 8171 76383 89516
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Debt Obligations

Our total debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the following

December 25 December 26
In thousands except percentages Coupon Rate 2011 2010

Senior notes due in 2012 net of unamortized debt costs of $100 in 2011 and $229

in 2010 4.610% 74900 74771

Senior notes due in 2015 net of unamortized debt costs of $109 in 2011 and $140

in 2010 5.0% 249891 249860

Senior notes due in 2015 called in 2011 net of unamortized debt costs of

$22320 in 2010 14.053% 227680

Senior notes due in 2016 net of unamortized debt costs of $4213 in 2011 and

$4898 in 2010 6.625% 220787 220102

Option to repurchase ownership interest in headquarters building in 2019 net of

unamortized debt costs of $29139 in 2011 and $32694 in 2010 220861 217306

Total debt 766439 989719

Capital lease obligations 6701 6724

Total debt and capital lease obligations 773140 996443

Based on borrowing rates currently available for debt with similar terms and average maturities the fair value

of our long-term debt was approximately $800 million as of December 25 2011 and approximately $1.1 billion as of

December 26 2010

The aggregate face amount of maturities of debt over the next five years and thereafter is as follows

In thousands Amount

2012 75000

2013

2014

2015 250000

2016 225000

Thereafter 250000

Total face amount of maturities 800000

Less Unamortized debt costs 33561

Carrying value of debt 766439

Interest expense net as shown in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations was as follows

December 25 December 26 December 27
In thousands 2011 2010 2009

Cash interest expense 79187 79349 78606

Non-cash amortization of discount on debt 6933 7251 6084

Capitalized interest 427 299 1566

Interest income 450 1239 1423

Total interest expense net 85243 85062 81701
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4.610% Notes

We have $75.0 million aggregate principal amount of 4.610% senior notes due September 26 2012 outstanding

the 4.610% Notes The 4.610% Notes were reclassified to Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease

obligations in our Consolidated Balance Sheet in the fourth quarter of 2011

The 4.610% Notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time at price equal to 100% of the principal

amount of the notes redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date plus make-whole

premium The 4.610% Notes are not otherwise callable

The 4.610% Notes are subject to certain covenants that among other things limit subject to customary

exceptions our ability
and the ability of certain material subsidiaries to

create liens on certain assets to secure debt and

enter into certain sale-leaseback transactions

5.0% Notes

We have $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of 5.0% senior unsecured notes due March 15 2015

outstanding the 5.0% Notes

The 5.0% Notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time at price equal to 100% of the principal

amount of the notes redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date plus make-whole

premium The 5.0% Notes are not otherwise callable

The 5.0% Notes are subject to certain covenants that among other things limit subject to customary

exceptions our ability and the ability of certain material subsidiaries to

create liens on certain assets to secure debt and

enter into certain sale-leaseback transactions

14.053% Notes

In January 2009 pursuant to securities purchase agreement with Inmobiliaria Carso S.A de C.V and Banco

Inbursa S.A Institución de Banca Multiple Grupo Financiero Inbursa each an Investor and collectively the

Investors we issued for an aggregate purchase price of $250.0 million $250.0 million aggregate principal

amount of 14.053% senior unsecured notes due January 15 2015 the 14.053% Notes and detachable warrants to

purchase 15.9 million shares of our Class Common Stock at price of $6.3572 per share The warrants are

exercisable at the holders option at any time and from time to time in whole or in part until January 15 2015 Each

Investor is an affiliate of Carlos Slim HelU the beneficial owner of approximately 8% of our Class Common Stock

excluding the warrants Each Investor purchased an equal number of 14.053% Notes and warrants

On August 15 2011 we prepaid in full all $250.0 million outstanding aggregate principal amount of the 14.053%

Notes The prepayment totaled approximately $280 million comprising the $250.0 million aggregate principal

amount of the 14.053% Notes approximately $3 millionrepresenting all interest that was accrued and unpaid on

the 14.053% Notes to August 15 2011 and make-whole premium amount of approximately $27 million due in

connection with the prepayment We funded the prepayment from available cash As result of this prepayment we
recorded $46.4 million pre-tax charge in the third quarter of 2011 This charge is included in Premium on debt

redemptions in our Consolidated Statements of Operations

6.625% Notes

In November 2010 we completed an offering of $225.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.625% senior

unsecured notes due December 15 2016 6.625% Notes

We received proceeds of approximately $220 million purchase price of $225.0 million net of approximately $5

million in transaction costs The effective interest rate on this transaction was approximately 7%

We have the option to redeem all or portion of the 6.625% Notes at any time at price equal to 100% of the

principal amount of the notes redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date plus make
whole premium The 6.625% Notes are not otherwise callable
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The 6.625% Notes are subject to certain covenants that among other things limit subject to customary

exceptions our ability and the ability of our subsidiaries to

incur additional indebtedness and issue preferred stock

pay dividends or make other equity distributions

agree to any restrictions on the ability of our restricted subsidiaries to make payments to us

create liens on certain assets to secure debt

make certain investments

merge or consolidate with other companies or transfer all or substantially all of our assets and

engage in sale and leaseback transactions

Sale-Leaseback Financing

In March 2009 an affiliate of our Company entered into an agreement to sell and simultaneously lease back

portion of our leasehold condominium interest in our Companys headquarters building located at 620 Eighth Avenue

in New York City the Condo Interest The sale price for the Condo Interest was $225.0 million We have an option

exercisable in 2019 to repurchase the Condo Interest for $250.0 million The lease term is 15 years and we have three

renewal options that could extend the term for an additional 20 years

The transaction is accounted for as financing transaction As such we have continued to depreciate the Condo

interest and account for the rental payments as interest expense The difference between the purchase option price of

$250.0 million and the net sale proceeds of approximately $211 million or approximately $39 million is being

amortized over 10-year period through interest expense The effective interest rate on this transaction was

approximately 13%

Revolving Credit Facility

In June 2011 we entered into new $125.0 million asset-backed 5-year revolving credit facility This new credit

facility replaced our $400.0 million revolving credit facility which was to expire on June 21 2011 As of December 25

2011 there were $0 outstanding borrowings under the new credit facility

Borrowings under the new credit facility will be secured by lien on certain advertising receivables In

addition borrowings bear interest at specified margins based on our utilization and at rates that vary between the

LIBOR and prime rates as defined by the credit agreement depending on the term to maturities we specify The new

credit facility contains various customary affirmative and negative covenants

Premium on Debt Redemptions

In August 2011 we recorded $46.4 million pre-tax charge in connection with the prepayment of our 14.053%

Notes

In April 2009 we settled the redemption of all $250.0 million outstanding aggregate principal amount of our

4.5% notes due March 15 2010 that had been called for redemption in March 2009 The redemption price
of

approximately $260 million included $9.3 million premium and was computed under the terms of the notes as the

present value of the scheduled payments of principal and unpaid interest plus accrued interest to the redemption

settlement date

Other

Severance Costs

We recognized severance costs of $13.6 million in 2011 $6.8 million in 2010 and $53.9 million in 2009 In 2011

2010 and 2009 these costs were primarily recognized at the News Media Group related to various initiatives and are

primarily recorded in Selling general and administrative costs in our Consolidated Statements of Operations We
had severance liability of $13.1 million and $11.1 million included in Accrued expenses in our Consolidated

Balance Sheets as of December 25 2011 and December 26 2010 respectively of which the majority of the

December 25 2011 balance will be paid in 2012
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Gain on Sale of Investments

We recognized gain on the sale of investments of $71.2 million in 2011 and $9.1 million in 2010 See Note for

information regarding the gain in 2011 $65.3 million and 2010 $9.1 million related to the sales of our units in

Fenway Sports Group

In addition we sold minor portion of our interest in Indeed.com job listing aggregator resulting in gain of

$5.9 million in 2011 We retain substantial portion of our initial interest in Indeed.com

Loss on Leases and Other Expenses

In 2011 we recorded $4.5 million charge for retirement and consulting agreement in connection with the

retirement of our chief executive officer at the end of 2011

The total loss on leases and other expenses recorded in 2009 was $34.6 million as detailed below

In 2009 we recorded loss of $22.8 million for the present value of remaining rental payments under leases for

property previously occupied by City Suburban Delivery Systems Inc City Suburban in excess of rental

income under potential subleases We closed City Suburban which operated wholesale distribution business that

delivered The New York Times The Times and other newspapers and magazines to newsstands and retail outlets

in the New York metropolitan area in January 2009 Also in 2009 we recorded loss of $8.3 million for the present

value of remaining rental payments under lease for office space at The New York Times Media Group in excess of

rental income under potential subleases

In the fourth quarter of 2009 we also recorded $3.5 million charge for the early termination of third-party

printing contract

Gain on Sale of Assets

In 2009 we sold certain surplus real estate assets at the Regional Media Group and recorded gain on the sales

totaling $5.2 million
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10 Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received upon the sale of an asset or paid upon transfer of liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date The transaction would be in the principal

or most advantageous market for the asset or liability based on assumptions that market participant would use in

pricing the asset or liability

The fair value hierarchy consists of three levels

Level quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability

to access at the measurement date

Level inputs other than quoted prices included within Level that are observable for the asset or liability

either directly or indirectly and

Level unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

Assets/Liabilities Measured and Recorded at Fair Value on Recurring Basis

As of December 25 2011 and December 26 2010 we had assets related to our qualified pension plans measured

at fair value The required disclosures regarding such assets are presented in Note 11 The disclosure of the fair value

of our short-term investments which are classified as Level is included in Note

Assets Measured and Recorded at Fair Value on Non-Recurring Basis

Our non-financial assets such as goodwill other intangible assets and property plant and equipment are only

recorded at fair value if an impairment charge is recognized The following tables present non-financial assets that

were measured and recorded at fair value on non-recurring basis and the total impairment losses recorded during

2011 2010 and 2009 on those assets

In thousands

Goodwill 152093

Other intangible assets 2864 2864 10574

Property plant and equipment net 1767

Total impairment losses 164434

Net Carrying
Value as of Fair Value Measured and Recorded Using Impairment Losses

In thousands December 26 2010 Level Level Level December 26 2010

Property plant and equipment net 4838 4838 16148

Total impairment losses 16148

Net Carrying
Value as of Fair Value Measured and Recorded Using Impairment Losses

In thousands December 27 2009 Level Level Level December 27 2009

Property plant and equipment net 4179

Total impairment losses 4179

We recorded impairment charges during 2011 2010 and 2009 related to the write-down of certain assets to their

fair value We classified all these measurements as Level as we used unobservable inputs within the valuation

methodologies that were significant to the fair value measurements and the valuations required management

judgment due to the absence of quoted market prices See Note for information regarding the valuation techniques

utilized to determine fair value

Net Carrying
Value as of

December 25 2011

Fair Value Measured and Recorded Using

Level Level Level

Impairment Losses

December 25 2011
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11 Pension Benefits

We sponsor several single-employer defined benefit pension plans the majority of which have been frozen

participate in The New York Times Newspaper Guild pension plan joint Company and Guild-sponsored plan and

make contributions to several multiemployer pension plans in connection with collective bargaining agreements

These plans cover the majority of our employees

Single-Employer Plans

Our Company-sponsored defined benefit pension plans include qualified plans funded as well as non-

qualified plans unfunded These plans provide participating employees with retirement benefits in accordance with

benefit formulas detailed in each plan Our non-qualified plans provide enhanced retirement benefits to select

members of management The New York Times Newspaper Guild pension plan is qualified plan and is included in

the tables below

We also have foreign-based pension plan for certain IHT employees the foreign plan The information for

the foreign plan is combined with the information for U.S non-qualified plans The benefit obligation of the foreign

plan is immaterial to our total benefit obligation

Net Periodic Pension Cost

The components of net periodic pension cost/income were as follows

December 25 2011 December 26 2010 December 27 2009

Non- Non- Non-

Qualified Qualified All Qualified Qualified All Qualified Qualified All

In thousands Plans Plans Plans Plans Plans Plans Plans Plans Plans

Servicecost 12079 1660 13739 12045 1896 13941 28266 1687 29953

lnterestcost 99991 13293 113284 102523 13602 116125 102757 14431 117188

Expected return on plan

assets 111813 111813 113625 113625 113359 113359

Recognized actuarial loss 25781 3214 28995 16496 4103 20599 21901 4061 25962

Amortization of prior service

costlcredit 803 803 803 803 4728 562 4166

Curtailment gain/Ioss 58283 4318 53965

Net periodic pension costl

Income 28841 18167 45008 18242 19601 37843 23446 25059 1613

The net pension curtailment gain of $54.0 million in 2009 was as result of the following changes to certain

pension plans

We amended Company-sponsored qualified pension plan for non-union employees to discontinue future

benefit accruals under the plan and freeze existing accrued benefits effective December 31 2009 Benefits

earned by participants under the plan prior to January 2010 were not affected We also froze non-

qualified pension plan that provides enhanced retirement benefits to select members of management The

accrued benefits under this supplemental benefit plan were determined and frozen based on eligible earnings

through December 31 2009 The reduction of benefits under the qualified and non-qualified plans mentioned

above and various other non-qualified plans resulted in curtailment gain of $56.7 million

We froze Company-sponsored qualified pension plan in connection with ratified amendments to collective

bargaining agreement covering the Newspaper Guild of the Globe The amendments resulted in curtailment

loss of $2.5 million

We eliminated certain non-qualified retirement benefits of various employees of the Globe in connection with

the amendment of two union agreements The amendments resulted in curtailment loss of $0.2 million
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Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income/loss were as

In thousands

Net loss/gain 255907 122879 69416

Priorservicecost 2115

Amortization of loss 28995 20599 25962

Amortization of prior service cost/credit 803 803 4166

Effect of curtailment 1083 2375

Total recognized in other comprehensive income/loss 226109 100394 91472

Net periodic pension cost 45008 37843 1613

Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and other comprehensive
income/loss 271117 138237 89859

The estimated actuarial loss and
prior service cost that will be amortized from accumulated other

comprehensive loss into net periodic pension cost over the next fiscal year is approximately $34 million and $1

million respectively

The amount of cost recognized for defined contribution benefit plans was approximately $23 million for 2011

$23 million for 2010 and $14 million for 2009 Effective January 2010 we increased our contribution under defined

contribution plan for non-union employees including among other things providing an incremental contribution

equal to 3% of the employees eligible earnings up to applicable limits under the Internal Revenue Code This change

to the defined contribution plan was made in conjunction with freezing our Company-sponsored qualified pension

plan for non-union employees

follows

December 25
2011

December 26 December 27
2010 2009
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Benefit Obligation and Plan Assets

The changes in the benefit obligation and plan assets and other amounts recognized in other comprehensive

income/loss were as follows

Non-

Qualified Qualified

Plans Plans

December 25 2011 December 26 2010

All Plans

Non-

Qualified Qualified

Plans Plans All PlansIn thousands

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 1823625 253743 2077368 1671244 230602 1901846

Service cost 12079 1660 13739 12045 1896 13941

Interest cost 99991 13293 113284 102523 13602 116125

Plan participants contributions 34 34 32 32

Actuarial loss 140186 25621 165807 131759 25333 157092

Curtailments 1083 1083

Benefits paid 89413 17224 106637 92895 17367 110262

Effects of change in currency conversion 33 33 323 323

Benefit obligation at end of year 1986502 277060 2263562 1823625 253743 2077368

Change In plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 1381811 1381811 1150915 1150915

Actual return on plan assets 21712 21712 147837 147837

Employer contributions 150585 17224 167809 175922 17367 193289

Plan participants contributions 34 34 32 32

Benefits paid 89413 17224 106637 92895 17367 110262

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 1464729 1464729 1381811 1381811

Net amount recognized 521773 277060 798833 441814 253743 695557

Amount recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Current liabilities 18784 18784 16436 16436

Noncurrent liabilities 521773 258276 780049 441814 237307 679121

Net amount recognized 521773 277060 798833 441814 253743 695557

Amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss

Actuarial loss 904214 99130 1003344 699709 76723 776432

Prior service cost 1959 1959 2762 2762

Total 906173 99130 1005303 702471 76723 779194
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The accumulated benefit obligation for all pension plans was $2.22 billion and $2.04 billion as of December 25

2011 and December 26 2010 respectively

Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets was as follows

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

Assumptions

Weighted-average assumptions used in the actuarial computations to determine benefit obligations for

qualified pension plans were as follows

frozen

December 25 December 26
2011 2010Percent

Discount rate 5.05% 5.60%

Rate of increase in compensation levels 3.00% 4.00%

Weighted-average assumptions used in the actuarial computations to determine net periodic pension cost for

qualified plans were as follows

Percent

Discount rate 5.60% 6.30% 6.45%

Rate of increase in compensation levels 4.00% 4.00% 3.50%

Expected long-term rate of return on assets 8.25% 8.75% 8.75%

Weighted-average assumptions used in the actuarial computations to determine benefit obligations for non-

qualified plans were as follows

Percent

Discount rate 4.80% 5.45%

Rate of increase in compensation levels 3.50% 3.50%

The rate of increase in compensation levels is applicable only for the non-qualified pension plans that have not

been frozen

Weighted-average assumptions used in the actuarial computations to determine net periodic pension cost for

non-qualified plans were as follows

Percent

Discount rate 5.45% 6.00% 6.55%

Rate of increase in compensation levels 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%

We determined our discount rate using Ryan ALM Inc Curve the Ryan Curve The Ryan Curve provides

the bonds included in the curve and allows adjustments for certain outliers e.g bonds on watch We believe the

Ryan Curve allows us to calculate an appropriate discount rate

In thousands

Projected benefit obligation 2263562 2077368

Accumulated benefit obligation 2223755 2035644

Fair value of plan assets 1464729 1381811

The rate of increase in compensation levels is applicable only for qualified pension plans that have not been

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

December 27
2009

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

December 27
2009
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To determine our discount rate we project cash flow based on annual accrued benefits For active

participants the benefits under the respective pension plans are projected to the date of termination The projected

plan cash flow is discounted to the measurement date which is the last day of our fiscal year using the annual spot

rates provided in the Ryan Curve single discount rate is then computed so that the present value of the benefit cash

flow equals the present value computed using the Ryan Curve rates

In determining the expected long-term rate of return on assets we evaluated input from our investment

consultants actuaries and investment management firms including our review of asset class return expectations as

well as long-term historical asset class returns Projected returns by such consultants and economists are based on

broad equity and bond indices Our objective is to select an average rate of earnings expected on existing plan assets

and expected contributions to the plan during the year

The value market-related value of plan assets is multiplied by the expected long-term rate of return on
assets to compute the expected return on plan assets component of net periodic pension cost The market-related

value of plan assets is calculated value that recognizes changes in fair value over three years

Plan Assets

Company-Sponsored Pension Plans

The assets underlying the Company-sponsored qualified pension plans are managed by professional

investment managers These investment managers are selected and monitored by the pension investment committee

composed of certain senior executives who are appointed by the Finance Committee of the Board of Directors of the

Company The Finance Committee is responsible for adopting our investment policy which includes rules regarding

the selection and retention of qualified advisors and investment managers The pension investment committee is

responsible for implementing and monitoring compliance with our investment policy selecting and monitoring

investment managers and communicating the investment guidelines and performance objectives to the investment

managers

Our contributions are made on basis determined by the actuaries in accordance with the funding

requirements and limitations of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act ERISA and the Internal Revenue

Code

Investment Policy and Strategy

The primary long-term investment objective is to allocate assets in manner that produces total rate of return

that meets or exceeds the growth of our pension liabilities

The intermediate-term objective is to allocate assets in manner that outperforms each of the capital markets in

which assets are invested net of costs measured over complete market cycle Overall fund performance is

compared to Target Allocation Index based on the target allocations and comparable portfolios with similar

investment objectives

Asset Allocation Guidelines

In accordance with our asset allocation strategy for substantially all of our Company-sponsored pension plan

assets investments are categorized into long duration fixed income investments whose value is highly correlated to

that of the pension plan obligations Long Duration Assets or other investments such as equities and high-yield

fixed income securities whose return over time is expected to exceed pension plan obligations Return-Seeking

Assets

The proportional allocation of assets between Long Duration Assets and Return-Seeking Assets is dependent on

the funded status of each pension plan Under our policy for example funded status of 85% to 90% requires an

allocation of total assets of 45% to 55% to Long Duration Assets and 45% to 55% to Return-Seeking Assets As our

funded status increases the allocation to Long Duration Assets will increase and the allocation to Return-Seeking

Assets will decrease
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The following asset allocation guidelines apply to the Return-Seeking Assets

Asset Category Percentage Range

U.S Equities 55% 70%

International Equities 20% 30%

Total Equity 75% 95%

Fixed Income 0% 5%

Fixed Income Alternative Investments 0% 5%

Equity Alternative Investments 0% 5%

Cash Reserves 0% 5%

The weighted-average asset allocations of our Company-sponsored pension plans by asset category for both

Long Duration and Return-Seeking Assets as of December 25 2011 were as follows

Asset Category Percentage

U.S Equities 43%

International Equities 17%

Total Equity 60%

Fixed Income 37%

Fixed Income Alternative Investments 0%

Equity Alternative Investments 3%

Cash Reserves 0%

The specified target allocation of assets and ranges set forth above are maintained and reviewed on periodic

basis by the pension investment committee The pension investment committee may direct the transfer of assets

between investment managers in order to rebalance the portfolio in accordance with approved asset allocation ranges

to accomplish the investment objectives for the pension plan assets

The New York Times Newspaper Guild Pension Plan

The assets underlying The New York Times Newspaper Guild pension plan are managed by investment

managers selected and monitored by the Board of Trustees of the Newspaper Guild of New York These investment

managers are provided the authority to manage the investment assets of The New York Times Newspaper Guild

pension plan including acquiring and disposing of assets subject to certain guidelines

Investment Policy and Strategy

Assets of The New York Times Newspaper Guild pension plan are to be invested in manner that is consistent

with the fiduciary standards set forth by ERISA the provisions of The New York Times Newspaper Guild pension

plans Trust Agreement and all other relevant laws The long-term objective is to maximize return within reasonable

and prudent risk level maintain sufficient income and liquidity to fund benefit payments and preserve the principal

value of The New York Times Newspaper Guild pension plan

Asset Allocation Guidelines

The following asset allocations guidelines apply to the assets of The New York Times Newspaper Guild pension

plan

Asset Category Percentage Range

U.S Equities 50% 60%

International Equities 5% 15%

Total Equity 50% 75%

Fixed Income 25% 45%
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The specified target
allocation of assets and ranges set forth above are maintained and reviewed on regular

basis by the Trustees If any strategic target
allocation is outside the

specified target asset allocation range assets shall

be shifted in prudent manner and over reasonable time period to return the strategy to within the target range
The Trustees have the responsibility for taking the necessary actions to rebalance The New York Times Newspaper
Guild pension plan within the established targets

The New York Times Newspaper Guild pension plans weighted-average asset allocations by asset category as

of December 25 2011 were as follows

Asset Category Percentage

U.S Equities 56%

International Equities 8%

Total Equity 64%

Fixed Income 29%

Cash Equivalents 7%

Fair Value of Plan Assets

In thousands

Asset Category

Equity Securities

U.S Equities

International Equities

Common/Collective Fund

Fixed Income Securities

Corporate Bonds

U.S Treasury and Other Government Securities

Insurance Contracts

Municipal and Provincial Bonds

Government Sponsored Enterprises2

Other

Cash and Cash Equivalents

714300

266510

98531

31847

16850

15394

7268

22865

173988

74426

714300

266510

98531

31847

16850

15394

7268

22865

37393 37393

37393 1459372

5357

1464729

The fair value of the assets underlying our Company-sponsored qualified pension plans and The New York

Times Newspaper Guild pension plan by asset category are as follows

Fair Value Measurement at December 25 2011

Quoted Prices Significant Significant

Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Level Level Level

173988

74426

Total

Private Equity

Assets at Fair Value 248414 1173565

Other Assets

Total

The underlying assets of the common/collective funds are primarily comprised of equity and fixed income securities The fair value in the

above table represents our ownership share of the net asset value of the underlying funds

Represents investments that are not backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government
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Fair Value Measurement at December 26 2010

Quoted Prices Significant Significant

Markets for Observable Unobservable

In thousands Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Asset Category Level Level Level Total

Equity Securities

U.S Equities 191559 191559

International Equities 95880 95880

Common/Collective Funds 570244 570244

Fixed Income Securities

Corporate Bonds 309223 309223

Insurance Contracts 55235 55235

U.S Treasury and Other Government Securities 35924 35924

Government Sponsored Enterprises2 19799 19799

Municipal and Provincial Bonds 12551 12551

Other 8208 8208

Cash and Cash Equivalents 9207 9207

Real Estate 37471 37471

Private Equity 31187 31187

Assets at Fair Value 287439 1020391 68658 1376488

Other Assets 5323

Total 1381811

The underlying assets of the common/collective funds are primarily comprised of equity and fixed income securities The fair value in the

above table represents our ownership share of the net asset value of the underlying funds

Represents investments that are not backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government

Level and Level Investments

Where quoted prices are available in an active market for identical assets such as equity securities traded on an

exchange transactions for the asset occur with such frequency that the pricing
information is available on an

ongoing/daily basis We therefore classify these types of investments as Level where the fair value represents
the

closing/last trade price for these particular securities

For our investments where pricing data may not be readily available fair values are estimated by using quoted

prices for similar assets in both active and not active markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such

as interest rates and credit risk We classify these types of investments as Level because we are able to reasonably

estimate the fair value through inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly

Level Investments

We have investments in private equity funds as of December 25 2011 and December 26 2010 and real estate

investment fund as of December 26 2010 that have been determined to be Level investments within the fair value

hierarchy because the inputs to determine fair value are considered unobservable

The general valuation methodology used for the private equity investment funds is the market approach The

market approach utilizes prices and other relevant information such as similar market transactions type of security

size of the position degree of liquidity restrictions on the disposition latest round of financing data current financial

position and operating results among other factors

The general valuation methodology used for the real estate investment fund is developed by third-party

appraisal The appraisal is performed in accordance with guidelines set forth by the Appraisal Institute and take into

account projected income and expenses of the property as well as recent sales of similar properties
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As result of the inherent limitations related to the valuations of the Level investments due to the

unobservable inputs of the underlying funds the estimated fair value may differ significantly from the values that

would have been used had market for those investments existed

The reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs Level as of December 25 2011 is as follows

Cash Flows

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant

Unobservable Inputs Level

Real Estate Private Equity Total

We made contributions of approximately $151 million to certain qualified pension plans in 2011 The majority of

these contributions were discretionary We expect to make mandatory contributions primarily contractual

contributions in connection with The New York Times Newspaper Guild pension plan of approximately $45 million

in 2012 We may make discitionary contributions in 2012 to our Company-sponsored qualified pension plans

depending on cash flows pension asset performance interest rates and other factors

The following benefit payments under our pension plans which reflect expected future services are expected to

be paid

Plans

Non-

QualifiedIn thousands Qualified Total

2012 95978 19858 115836

2013 97043 18860 115903

2014 98806 18917 117723

2015 103391 19583 122974

2016 106758 20407 127165

2017-2021 594463 101577 696040

In thousands

Balance at beginning of year 37471 313187 68658

Actual gain on plan assets

Relating to assets still held 4021 4021

Related to assets sold during the period 541 541

Capital contribution 5196 5196

Sales 38012 3011 41023

Balance at end of year 37393 37393

The reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs Level as of December 26 2010 is as follows

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant

Unobservable Inputs Level

In thousands Real Estate Private Equity Total

Balance at beginning of year 33938 20564 54502

Actual loss on plan assets

Relating to assets still held 3533 4503 8036

Related to assets sold during the period

Capital contribution 6120 6120

Sales

Balance at end of year 37471 31187 68658
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Multiemployer Plans

We contribute to number of multiemployer defined benefit pension plans under the terms of various

collective bargaining agreements that cover our union-represented employees Over the past years certain events

such as amendments to various collective bargaining agreements resulted in withdrawals from multiemployer

pension plans These actions along with reduction in covered employees have resulted in us estimating withdrawal

liabilities to the respective plans for our proportionate share of any unfunded vested benefits We recorded an

estimated charge for pension plan withdrawal obligations of $4.2 million in 2011 $6.3 million in 2010 and $78.9

million in 2009 Our multiemployer pension plan withdrawal liability was approximately $100 million as of December

25 2011 This liability is the present value of the obligations related to complete and partial withdrawals from certain

plans as well as an estimate of future partial withdrawals that we considered probable and reasonably estimable The

actual liability will not be known until each plan completes final assessment of the withdrawal liability and issues

demand to us Therefore the estimate of our multiemployer pension plan liability will be adjusted as more

information becomes available that allows us to refine our estimates

The risks of participating in multiemployer plans are different from single-employer plans in the following

aspects

Assets contributed to the multiemployer plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees

of other participating employers

If participating employer stops contributing to the plan the unfunded obligations of the plan may be borne

by the remaining participating employers

If we choose to stop participating in some multiemployer pension plans we may be required to pay those

plans an amount based on the underfunded status of the plan withdrawal liability

Our participation in significant plans for the fiscal period ended December 25 2011 is outlined in the table

below The EIN/Pension Plan Number column provides the Employer Identification Number EIN and the three

digit plan number The zone status is based on the latest information that we received from the plan and is certified

by the plans actuary Among other factors plans in the red zone are generally less than 65 percent funded plans in

the yellow zone are less than 80 percent funded and plans in the green zone are at least 80 percent funded The FIP/

RP Status Pending/Implemented column indicates plans for which financial improvement plan FTP or

rehabilitation plan RP is either pending or has been implemented The Surcharge Imposed column includes

plans in red zone status that are required to pay surcharge in excess of regular contributions The last colunm lists

the expiration dates of the collective bargaining agreements to which the plans are subject
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In thousands
Pension Protection Act Contributions of the

Zone Status Company Collective

EIN/ FIP/RP Bargaining
Pension Status Agreement

Plan Pendingl Surcharge Expiration

Pension Fund Number 2011 2010 Implemented 2011 2010 2009 Imposed Date

CWMTU Negotiated 13-6212879 Red as of Red as of 3/30/2011

Pension Plan 001 12/31/11 12/31/10 Implemented 776 862 1417 Yes 3/30/2016

Newspaper and Mail

Deliverers-Publishers 13-6122251- Green as Yellow as of

Pension Fund 001 of 5/31/12 5/31/11 No 1298 1242 1475 No 3/30/2020

GCIU-Employer 91-6024903- Red as of Red as of 11/30/2016
Retirement Benefit Plan 001 12/31/il 12/31/10 Implemented 116 116 433 No 3/30/2017

Pressmens Publishers 13-61 21 627- Green as Green as of

Pension Fund 001 of 3/31/12 3/31/11 No 1113 1132 1335 No 3/30/2017

New England Teamsters

Trucking Industry 04-6372430- Red as of Red as of

Pension 001 9/30/12 9/30/11 Yes 46 205 1380 No 12/31/2015

Paper-Handlers- 13-6104795- Green as Green as of

Publishers Pension Fund 001 of 3/31/12 3/31/11 No 153 151 202 No 3/30/2014

Contributions for indMdually significant plans 3502 3708 6242

Contributions to other multiemployer plans 2250 2127 3385

Total Contributions 5752 5835 967

There are two collective bargaining agreements requiring contributions to this plan These agreements cover approximately 220 employees
with the majority covered by the agreement that expired on March 30 2011.A new agreement is currently being negotiated

In 2009 employees of the Globe represented by various unions ratified amendments to their collective bargaining agreements that allowed

us to partially withdraw from these plans These actions resulted in lower contributions to these plans in years after 2009

Board of Trustees elected funding relief as allowed under the Preservation of Access to Care for Medicare Beneficiaries and Pension Relief

Act of 2010

There are two collective bargaining agreements requiring contributions to this plan These agreements cover approximately 40 employees
with the majority covered by the agreement that expires on March 30 2017

The rehabilitation plan for the GCIU-Employer Retirement Benefit Plan includes minimum annual

contributions no less than the total annual contribution made by us from September 2008 through August 31 2009

The Company was listed in its plans Forms 5500 as providing more than 5% of the total contributions for the

following plans and plan years

Year Contributions to Plan Exceeded
More Than Percent of Total

Pension Fund Contributions as of Plans Year-End

CWNITU Negotiated Pension Plan 12/31/2010 12/31/20091

Newspaper and Mail Deliverers-Publishers Pension Fund 5/31/2010 5/31/20091

Pressmens Publishers Pension Fund 3/31/2011 3/31/2010 3/31/2009

Paper-Handlers-Publishers Pension Fund 3/31/2011 3/31/2010 3/31/2009

Form 5500 for the plan year 12/31/11 and 5/31/11 was not available as of the date we filed our financial statements

12 Other Postretirement Benefits

We provide health benefits to retired employees and their eligible dependents who meet the definition of an

eligible participant and certain age and service requirements as outlined in the plan document While we offer pre

age 65 retiree medical coverage to employees who meet certain retiree medical
eligibility requirements we no longer

provide post-age 65 retiree medical benefits for employees who retire on or after March 2009 We also contribute to

postretirement plan under the provisions of collective bargaining agreement We accrue the costs of postretirement

benefits during the employees active years of service and our policy is to pay our portion of insurance premiums and

claims from our assets
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In October 2011 we amended our retiree medical plan by among other things placing cap effective January

2012 on our contributions for certain retiree groups In connection with this plan amendment we remeasured our

postretirement obligation as of the plan amendment date The plan amendment and remeasurement resulted in

decrease in the postretirement liability and an increase in other comprehensive income before taxes of

approximately $20 million in October 2011

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act which was enacted on March 23 2010 and the Health Care and

Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 which was enacted on March 30 2010 eliminated the tax deductibility of certain

retiree health care costs beginning January 2013 to the extent of federal subsidies received by plan sponsors that

provide retiree prescription drug benefits equivalent to Medicare Part Because the future anticipated retiree health-

care liabilities and related subsidies are already reflected in our financial statements this legislation required us to

reduce the related deferred tax asset recognized in our financial statements As result we recorded tax charge of

$11.4 million in 2010 for the reduction in future tax benefits for retiree health benefits resulting from the federal health

care legislation enacted in 2010 The impact of this legislation was not material and was included in our 2010 year-end

measurement of our postretirement benefits obligation

The components of net periodic postretirement benefit income were as follows

In thousands

Service cost 1143 1076 1551

Interest cost 6890 9340 10355

Recognized actuarial loss 2289 3129 2014

Amortization of prior service credit 16593 15602 14902

Net periodic postretirement benefit income 6271 2057 982

The changes in the benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income/loss were as follows

December 25 December 26 December 27

In thousands 2011 2010 2009

Net losslgain 13436 16865 15749

Prior service credit 35712 9581

Amortization of loss 2289 3129 2014

Amortization of prior service credit 16593 15602 14902

Total recognized In other comprehensive income/loss 7972 4392 19056

Net periodic postretirement benefit income 6271 2057 982

Total recognized In net periodic postretirement benefit Income and other

comprehensive lncomeiloss 14243 6449 18074

The estimated actuarial loss and prior service credit that will be amortized from accumulated other

comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is approximately $3 million and $15 million

respectively

In connection with collective bargaining agreements we contribute to several multiemployer welfare plans

These plans provide medical benefits to active and retired employees covered under the respective collective

bargaining agreement Contributions are made in accordance with the formula in the relevant agreement
Postretirement costs related to these plans are not reflected above and were approximately $16 million in 2011 and $18

million in 2010 and 2009

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

December 27
2009
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The changes in the benefit obligation and plan assets and other amounts recognized in other comprehensive

income/loss were as follows

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

Weighted-average assumptions used in the actuarial computations to determine the postretirement benefit

obligations were as follows

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

Weighted-average assumptions used in the actuarial computations to determine net periodic postretirement

cost were as follows

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

December 27
2009

In thousands

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 142417 164811

Service cost 1143 1076

Interest cost 6890 9340

Plan participants contributions 4659 4569

Actuarial loss/gain 13436 16865

plan amendments 35712

Benef its paid 20247 21438

Medicare subsidies received 1217 924

Benefit obligation at the end of year 113803 142417

Change In plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year

Employer contributions 14371 15945

Plan participants contributions 4659 4569

Benefits paid 20247 21438

Medicare subsidies received 1217 924

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Net amount recognized 113803 142417

Amount recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Current liabilities 9611 11794

Noncurrent liabilities 104192 130623

Net amount recognized 113803 142417

Amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss

Actuarial loss 43114 31967

Prior service credit 136469 117350

Total 93355 85383

Discount rate 4.64% 5.35%

Estimated increase in compensation level 3.50% 3.50%

Discount rate 5.14% 5.92% 6.67%

Estimated increase in compensation level 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
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The assumed health-care cost trend rates were as follows

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

Health-care cost trend rate assumed next year 7.33% 7.75%

Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline ultimate trend rate 5.00% 5.00%

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2019 2019

Assumed health-care cost trend rates have significant effect on the amounts reported for the health-care plans

one-percentage point change in assumed health-care cost trend rates would have the following effects

One-Percentage Point

Effect on total service and interest cost for 2011 386 336

Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of December 25 2011 5227 4618

The following benefit payments net of plan participant contributions under our Companys postretirement

plans which reflect expected future services are expected to be paid

In thousands Amount

2012 10601

2013 10484

2014 10177

2015 9875

2016 9529

2017-2021 41712

We accrue the cost of certain benefits provided to former or inactive employees after employment but before

retirement during the employees active years of service Benefits include life insurance disability benefits and

health-care continuation coverage The accrued cost of these benefits amounted to $20.3 million as of December 25

2011 and $20.2 million as of December 26 2010

13 Other Liabilities

The components of the Other Liabilities Other balance in our Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows

In thousands

Deferred compensation 75394 87102

Other liabilities 102323 130373

Total 177717 217475

Deferred compensation consists primarily of deferrals under our deferred executive compensation plan the
DEC Plan The DEC plan enables certain

eligible
executives to elect to defer portion of their compensation on

pre-tax basis While the initial deferral period is for minimum of years up to maximum of 15 years after which

time taxable distributions must begin the executive has the option to extend the deferral period Employees
contributions earn income based on the performance of investment funds they select

We invest deferred compensation in life insurance products designed to closely mirror the performance of the

investment funds that the participants select Our investments in life insurance products are included in

Miscellaneous assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheets and were $75.4 million as of December 25 2011 and $88.6

million as of December 26 2010

Other liabilities in the preceding table primarily included our contingent tax liability as of December 25 2011

and December 26 2010

In thousands Increase Decrease

December 25
2011

December 26
2010
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14 Income Taxes

Reconciliations between the effective tax rate on income/ loss from continuing operations before income taxes

and the federal
statutory rate are presented below

%of %of %of
In thousands Amount Pre-tax Amount Pre-tax Amount Pre-tax

Tax at federal statutory rate 1302 35.0% 62027 35.0% 1321 35.0%

State and local taxes net 15095 406.0 19010 10.7 12418 329.1

Effect of enacted changes in tax laws 1520 40.9 1370 6.4 1743 311.2

Reduction in uncertain tax positions 12105 325.6 21722 12.2 22338 592.0

Loss/gain on Company-owned life insurance 36 1.0 3319 1.9 416 110.1

Non-deductible goodwill 34992 941.2 852 22.5

Other net 1310 35.2 1150 0.7 2366 62.7

Income tax expense 36506 68516 38.7 2206 58.4

The effective tax rate in 2011 is not meaningful because portion of the non-cash charge in the second quarter of 2011 for the impairment of

the Regional Media Groups goodwill was non-deductible

The components of income tax expense as shown in our Consolidated Statements of Operations were as

follows

December 25 December 26 December 27
2011 2010 2009

Federal 19559 14354 23748

Foreign 1110 682 784

State and local 5786 7791 19261

Total current tax benefit/expense 24235 7245 42225

Deferred tax expense/benefit

Federal 14523 52735 27320

Foreign 37471 1384 3546

State and local 8747 9920 20657

Total deferred tax expense 60741 61271 44431

Income tax expense 36506 68516 2206

We recognized net operating loss carryforward loss carryforward for federal tax purposes of $23.1 million

as of December 25 2011 and $0 as of December 26 2010 In accordance with federal tax law the loss carryforward has

life of 20 years

State tax operating loss carryforwards totaled $15.1 million as of December 25 2011 and $8.7 million as of

December 26 2010 Such loss carryforwards expire in accordance with provisions of applicable tax laws and have

remaining lives generally ranging from to 20 years

December 25 2011 December 26 2010 December 27 2009

In thousands

Current tax benefit/expense
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The components of the net deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized in our Consolidated Balance Sheets

were as follows

In thousands

Deferred tax assets

Retirement postemployment and deferred compensation plans 447156 420745

Accruals for other employee benefits compensation insurance and other 39572 56280

Accounts receivable allowances 7114 9587

Other 109946 91424

Gross deferred tax assets 603788 578036

Valuation allowance 39824

Net deferred tax assets 563964 578036

Deferred tax liabilities

Property plant and equipment 143308 141052

Intangible assets 42150 44568

Investments in joint ventures 15095 11796

Other 10073 56044

Gross deferred tax liabilities 210626 253460

Net deferred tax asset 353338 324576

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Deferred tax asset current 73055 68875

Deferred tax asset long-term 280283 255701

Net deferred tax asset 353338 324576

We assess whether valuation allowance should be established against deferred tax assets based on the

consideration of both positive and negative evidence using more likely than not standard In making such

judgments significant weight is given to evidence that can be objectively verified We evaluated our deferred tax

assets for recoverability using consistent approach that considers our three-year historical cumulative income

loss including an assessment of the degree to which any such losses were due to items that are unusual in nature

e.g impairments of non-deductible goodwill and intangible assets

In 2011 we recorded valuation allowance of $39.8 millionfor deferred tax assets primarily associated with net

operating losses of non-U.S operations as we determined these assets were not realizable on more-likely-than-not

basis In connection with this assessment we also reversed deferred tax liability included in the Deferred tax

liabilities other line in the table above originally established for the U.S tax consequences associated with

recognizing the net operating losses of the non-U.S operations The net impact on 2011 income tax expense was

nominal as the valuation allowance was almost completely offset by the reversal of the deferred tax liability

Income tax benefits related to the exercise or vesting of equity awards reduced current taxes payable by $1.6

million in 2011 $2.1 million in 2010 and $1.0 million in 2009

As of December 25 2011 and December 26 2010 Accumulated other comprehensive loss net of income taxes

in our Consolidated Balance Sheets and for the years then ended in our Consolidated Statements of Changes in

Stockholders Equity was net of deferred tax assets of approximately $370 million and $280 million respectively

December 25
2011

December 26
2010
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reconciliation of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

Balance at beginning of year 55636 70578

Gross additions to tax positions taken during the current year 4094 2565 3545

Gross reductions to tax positions taken during the current year

Gross additions to tax positions taken during the prior year 460

Gross reductions to tax positions taken during the prior year 970 13347 13484

Reductions from settlements with taxing authorities 1941

Reductions from lapse of applicable statutes of limitations 9308 4160 12065

Balance at end of year 47971 55636 70578

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that would if recognized affect the effective income tax rate was

approximately $31 million as of December 25 2011 and $36 million as of December 26 2010

We also recognize accrued interest expense and penalties related to the unrecognized tax benefits within income

tax expense or benefit The total amount of accrued interest and penalties was approximately $16 million as of

December 25 2011 and approximately $18 million as of December 26 2010 The total amount of accrued interest and

penalties was net benefit of $1.4 million in 2011 $6.3 millionin 2010 and $4.4 million in 2009

With few exceptions we are no longer subject to U.S federal state and local or non-U.S income tax

examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2004 Management believes that our accrual for tax liabilities is

adequate for all open audit years This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve series of

complex judgments about future events

It is reasonably possible that certain income tax examinations may be concluded or statutes of limitation may
lapse during the next 12 months which could result in decrease in unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $19

million that would if recognized impact the effective tax rate

15 Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations are summarized in the following table

December 26 December 27
In thousands 2010 2009

Revenues 5062

Total operating costs 7082

Pre-tax loss 2020

Income tax benefit 864

Loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes 1156

Gain on sale net of income taxes

Gain on sale 16 34914

Income tax expense 15426

Gain on sale net of income taxes 13 19488

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 13 18332

WQXR-FM

The results of operations for WQXR-FM New York City classical radio station which was sold in October

2009 are presented as discontinued operations We received proceeds related to the sale of approximately $45 million

and recorded
pre-tax gain of approximately $35 million approximately $19 million after tax in the fourth quarter of

2009 In 2010 we recorded post-closing adjustments to the gain

The results of operations for WQXR-FM which were previously consolidated in the results of the News Media

Group are presented as discontinued operations in our Consolidated Financial Statements for all periods presented

In thousands

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

December 27
2009

92582

100 THE NEW YORK TIMES COMPANY



16 Earnings/Loss Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings/loss per share were as follows

In thousands except per share data

Amounts attributable to The New York Times Company common stockholders

Loss/income from continuing operations 39669 107691 1559

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 13 18332

Net loss/income 39669 107704 19891

Average number of common shares outstanding Basic 147190 145636 144188

Incremental shares for assumed exercise of securities 6964 2179

Average number of common shares outstanding Diluted 147190 152600 146367

Basic loss/earnings per share attributable to The New York Times Company
common stockholders

Loss/income from continuing operations 0.27 0.74 0.01

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 0.00 0.00 0.13

Net lossæncome Basic 0.27 0.74 0.14

Diluted loss/earnings per share attributable to The New York Times Company
common stockholders

Loss/income from continuing operations 0.27 0.71 0.01

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 0.00 0.00 0.13

Net Ioss/income Diluted 0.27 0.71 0.14

The difference between basic and diluted shares is that diluted shares include the dilutive effect of the assumed

exercise of outstanding securities Our stock options and warrants could have the most significant impact on diluted

shares

Securities that could potentially be dilutive are excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share

when loss from continuing operations exists or when the exercise price exceeds the market value of our Class

Common Stock Common Stock because their inclusion would result in an anti-dilutive effect on per share

amounts

The number of stock options that were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because

they were anti-dilutive were approximately 22 million in 2011 24 million in 2010 and 29 million in 2009 respectively

total of 15.9 million warrants were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share in 2011

because they were anti-dilutive

17 Stock-Based Awards

Under our Companys 1991 Executive Stock Incentive Plan the 1991 Incentive Plan and our 1991 Executive

Cash Bonus Plan together the 1991 Executive Plans the Board of Directors was authorized to grant awards to key

employees of cash restricted and unrestricted shares of our Common Stock retirement units stock equivalents or

such other awards as the Board of Directors deemed appropriate Effective April 27 2010 our 2010 Incentive

Compensation Plan the 2010 Incentive Plan was approved by our Companys stockholders and replaced the 1991

Executive Plans

Our 2004 Non-Employee Directors Stock Incentive Plan the 2004 Directors Plan provides for the issuance

of up to 500000 shares of Common Stock in the form of stock options or restricted stock awards Under our 2004

Directors Plan each non-employee director of our Company has historically received annual grants of non-qualified

stock options with 10-year terms to purchase 4000 shares of Common Stock from our Company at the average market

price of such shares on the date of grant Restricted stock has not been awarded under the 2004 Directors Plan for the

purpose of stock-based compensation

We recognize stock-based compensation expense for outstanding stock options cash-settled restricted stock

units stock-settled restricted stock units stock appreciation rights Common Stock under our ESPP and LTIP awards

together Stock-Based Awards Stock-based compensation expense was $8.5 million in 2011 $8.4 million in 2010

and $20.4 million in 2009

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

December 27
2009
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Stock-based compensation expense is recognized over the period from the date of grant to the date when the

award is no longer contingent on the employee providing additional service Our Companys 1991 Incentive Plan
2010 Incentive Plan and 2004 Directors Plan provide that awards generally vest over stated vesting period or upon
the retirement of an employee or director as the case may be

Our pool of excess tax benefits APIC Pool available to absorb tax deficiencies was approximately $22

million as of December 25 2011

Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights

Our Companys 1991 Incentive Plan provided and the 2010 Incentive Plan provides for grants of both

incentive and non-qualified stock options at an exercise price equal to the market value of our Common Stock on the

date of grant Stock options have generally been granted with 3-year vesting period and 10-year term and vest in

equal annual installments

Our 2004 Directors Plan provides for grants of stock options to non-employee Directors at an exercise price

equal to the market value of our Common Stock on the date of grant Stock options are granted with 1-year vesting

period and 10-year term Our Companys Directors are considered employees for this purpose

During 2009 we discovered that portions of previously awarded stock option grants exceeded that permitted to

be granted to single individual during any calendar year under the terms of our Companys plans total of 250000

options in 2008 and 200000 options in 2009 granted in excess of applicable plan limits were determined to be null and

void The independent directors of our Companys Board of Directors after consultation with all non-management
directors approved the grant of deferred payment stock appreciation rights equal in number and on the same

economic terms comparable to the void options Stock appreciation rights are classified as liability awards because we
incur liability payable iii cash based on the fair value of the stock appreciation rights These rights are measured at

their fair value at the end of each reporting period utilizing the Black-Scholes valuation model and therefore will

fluctuate based on the changes in our stock price

Changes in our Companys stock options in 2011 were as follows

December 25 2011

Weighted

Average
Exercise

Price

Weighted

Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term

YearsShares in thousands Options

Options outstanding at beginning of year 21414 33 10629

Granted 856 10

Exercised 100

Forfeited/Expired 4670 41

Options outstanding at end of period 17500 30 6522

Options expected to vest at end of period 17478 30 6522

Options exercisable at end of period 15207 33 4262

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value

$000s

The total intrinsic value for stock options exercised was $0.6 million in 2011 $1.7 million in 2010 and $0.5

million in 2009

102- THE NEW YORK TIMES COMPANY



The fair value of the stock options granted was estimated on the date of grant using Black-Scholes valuation

model that uses the assumptions noted in the following table The risk-free rate is based on the U.S Treasury yield

curve in effect at the time of grant The expected life estimated period of time outstanding of stock options granted

was determined using the average of the vesting period and term an acceptable method Expected volatility was

based on historical volatility for period equal to the stock options expected life ending on the date of grant and

calculated on monthly basis The fair value for stock options granted with different vesting periods are calculated

separately

December 25 2011 December 26 2010 December 27 2009

Term In years 10 10 10 10 10 10

Vesting In years

Risk-free interest rate 2.90% 2.25% 3.19% 2.69% 2J2% 2.45%

Expected life In years

Expected volatility
43.79% 47.93% 41.60% 45.93% 31.01% 35.00%

Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Weighted-averagefairvalue 4.81 3.78 4.99 4.68 1.29 1.71

Restricted Stock Units

Our 1991 Incentive Plan provided and the 2010 Incentive Plan provides for grants of other awards including

restricted stock units Restricted stock units granted in 2010 and 2009 are cash-settled while restricted stock units

granted in 2011 are stock-settled For stock-settled restricted stock units each restricted stock unit represents our

obligation to deliver to the holder one share of Common Stock upon vesting For cash-settled restricted stock units

each restricted stock unit represents our obligation to deliver to the holder cash equivalent to the market value of the

underlying shares of Common Stock upon vesting

In 2011 we granted stock-settled restricted stock units with 3-year vesting period The fair value of stock-

settled restricted stock units is the average market price at date of grant

Changes in our Companys stock-settled restricted stock units in 2011 were as follows

December 25 2011

Weighted
Restricted

Average
Stock Grant-Date
Units Fair ValueShares ri thousands

Unvested stock-settled restricted stock units at beginning of period 355 22

Granted 677 10

Vested 345 21

Forfeited 21 16

Unvested stock-settled restricted stock units at end of period 666 11

Unvested stock-settled restricted stock units expected to vest at end of period 607 11

The intrinsic value of stock-settled restricted stock units vested was $3.3 million in 2011 $3.3 million in 2010 and

$0.5 million in 2009

In 2010 and 2009 we granted cash-settled restricted stock units with 3-year vesting period The fair value of

cash-settled restricted stock units is the average market price at date of grant Cash-settled restricted stock units

are classified as liability awards because we incur liability payable in cash based on our stock price The cash

settled restricted stock unit is measured at its fair value at the end of each reporting period and therefore will

fluctuate based on the fluctuations in our stock price
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Changes in our cash-settled restricted stock units in 2011 were as follows

December 25 2011

Weighted
Restricted

Average
Stock Grant-Date

Shares in thousands Units Fair Value

Unvested cash-settled restricted stock units at beginning of period 788

Granted

Vested

Forfeited 21

Unvested cash-seWed restricted stock units at end of pesbot1 758

Unvested cash-settled restricted stock units expected to vest at end of period 735

The intrinsic value of restricted stock units vested was $80000 in 2011 $0.3 million in 2010 and $0.1 million in

2009

LTIP Awards

Our Companys 1991 Executive Plans provided for grants of cash awards to key executives payable at the end

of multi-year performance period The target awards were determined at the beginning of each period and could

have increased to maximum of 175% of the target or decreased to 0%

For the award granted for the cycle beginning in 2005 paid in 2010 the total payment was based on key

performance measure Total Shareholder Return TSR which was calculated as stock appreciation plus reinvested

dividends For the award granted for the cycle beginning in 2006 paid in 201150% of the payment was based on TSR

The payment was subject to approval by the Boards Compensation Committee There were payments of

approximately $4 million in 2011 and $7 million in 2010 No cycle was payable in 2009

The LTIP awards based on TSR were classified as liability awards because we incurred liability payable in

cash indexed to our stock price The LTIP award liability was measured at its fair value at the end of each reporting

period and therefore fluctuated based on the operating results and the performance of our TSR relative to the peer

groups TSR The fair value of the LTIP awards was calculated by comparing our TSR against predetermined peer

groups TSR over the performance period The payout of the LTIP awards was based on relative performance

therefore correlations in stock price performance among the peer group companies also factored into the valuation

For awards granted for the cycle beginning in 2007 and subsequent periods the actual payment if any do not

have performance measure based on TSR Therefore these awards are not considered stock-based compensation

As of December 25 2011 unrecognized compensation expense related to the unvested portion of our Stock-

Based Awards was approximately $4 million and is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of 1.4

years

We generally issue shares for the exercise of stock options stock-settled restricted stock units granted in 2011

and shares under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan from unissued reserved shares and issue shares for stock-settled

restricted stock units granted prior to 2011 and our Company stock match under 401k plan from
treasury

shares
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Shares of Class Common Stock reserved for issuance were as follows

December 25 December 26
2011 2010In thousands

Stock options stocksettled restricted stock units retirement units and other

awards

Outstanding 18166 21769

Available 6771 8252

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Available 6410 7013

401k Company stock match

Available 3838 4619

Total Outstanding 18166 21769

Total Available 17019 19884

In addition to the shares available in the table above there were approximately 819000 shares as of

December 25 2011 and December 26 2010 of Class Common Stock available for conversion into shares of Class

Common Stock

18 Stockholders Equity

Shares of our Companys Class and Class Common Stock are entitled to equal participation in the event of

liquidation and in dividend declarations The Class Common Stock is convertible at the holders option on share-

for-share basis into Class Common Stock Upon conversion the previously outstanding shares of Class Common
Stock are automatically and immediately retired resulting in reduction of authorized Class Common Stock As

provided for in our Companys Certificate of Incorporation the Class Common Stock has limited voting rights

including the right to elect 30% of the Board of Directors and the Class and Class Common Stock have the right

to vote together on the reservation of our Company shares for stock options and other stock-based plans on the

ratification of the selection of registered public accounting firm and in certain circumstanceS on acquisitions
of the

stock or assets of other companies Otherwise except as provided by the laws of the State of New York all voting

power is vested solely and exclusively in the holders of the Class Common Stock

The Adolph Ochs family trust holds approximately 90% of the Class Common Stock and as result has the

ability to elect 70% of the Board of Directors and to direct the outcome of any matter that does not require vote of

the Class Common Stock

We can repurchase Class Common Stock under our stock repurchase program from time to time either in the

open market or through private transactions These repurchases may be suspended from time to time or

discontinued In 2011 and 2010 we did not repurchase any shares of Class Common Stock pursuant to our stock

repurchase program

We may issue preferred stock in one or more series The Board of Directors is authorized to set the

distinguishing characteristics of each series of preferred stock prior to issuance including the granting of limited or

full voting rights however the consideration received must be at least $100 per share No shares of preferred stock

were issued or outstanding as of December 25 2011
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19 Segment Information

Our Companys reportable segments consist of the News Media Group and the About Group These segments

are evaluated regularly by key management in assessing performance and allocating resources

Revenues operating profit and identifiable assets of foreign operations are not significant The About Group

generated more than 50% of its revenue in 2011 through cost-per-click advertising which is principally derived from

an arrangement with Google

Below is
description

of our Companys reportable segments

News Media Group

The News Media Group consists of The New York Times Media Group which includes The Times the IHT

NYTimes.com and related businesses the New England Media Group which includes the Globe BostonGlobe.com

Boston.com the Worcester Telegram St Gazette Telegram.com and related businesses and the Regional Media Group
which includes 16 regional newspapers other print publications and related businesses in Alabama California

Florida Louisiana North Carolina and South Carolina See Note 21 for information on the sale of the Regional Media

Group in the first quarter of 2012

About Group

The About Group consists of About.com ConsumerSearch.com CalorieCount.com and related businesses In

February 2011 we sold UCompareHealthCare.com

Our Statements of Operations by segment and Corporate were as follows

December 25 December 26 December 27
In thousands 2011 2010 2009

Revenues

News Media Group 2212575 2257386 2319378

AboutGroup 110826 136077 121061

Total 2323401 2393463 2440439

Operating proflt/loss

News Media Group 60853 219242 21163

About Group 40674 61952 50881

Corporate 44820 47074 2015

Tot 56707 234120 74059

Gain on sale of investments 71171 9128

Income from
joint ventures 28 19035 20667

Premium on debt redemptions 46381 9250

Interest expense net 85243 85 062 81 701

Loss/income from continuing operations before income taxes 3718 177221 375

Income tax expense 36506 68516 2206

Loss/income from continuing operations 40224 108705 1569

Discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes 1156

Gain on sale net of income taxes 13 19488

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 13 18332

Net Ioss/income 40224 108718 19901

Net loss/income attributable to the noncontrolling interest 555 1014 10
Net lossIlncome attributable to The New York Times Company common
stockholders 39669 107704 19891
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The News Media Groups operating profit included

2011 $164.4 million charge for the impairment of assets primarily related to goodwill at the Regional

Media Group and $4.2 million charge for pension withdrawal obligation under multiemployer pension

plan at the Globe

2010 $16.1 million charge for the impairment of assets at the Globes printing facility in Billerica Mass
which was consolidated into the Boston Mass printing facility and $6.3 million charge for an adjustment to

estimated pension withdrawal obligations under several multiemployer pension plans at the Globe

2009 $78.9 million charge primarily for pension withdrawal obligation under certain multiemployer

pension plans $34.6 million charge for loss on leases and the early termination of third-party printing

contract $5.2 million gain on sale of assets $4.2 million charge for the impairment of assets due to the

reduced scope of systems project and $2.7 million curtailment loss

Corporates operating loss included

2011 $4.5 million charge for retirement and consulting agreement in connection with the retirement of

our chief executive officer

2009 pension curtailment gain of $56.7 million

See Notes and 11 for additional information regarding these items

Advertising circulation and other revenues by division of the News Media Group were as follows

December 25 December 26 December 27
2011 2010 2009In thousands

The New York Times Media Group

Advertising 756148 780424 797298

Circulation 705163 683717 683445

Other 93263 92697 101118

Total 1554574 1556838 1581861

New England Media Group

Advertising 198383 213720 230886

Circulation 157819 167360 167998

Other 41854 42809 41710

Total 398056 423889 440594

Regional Media Group

Advertising 161831 177056 192924

Circulation 78486 80416 85043

Other 19628 19187 18956

Total 259945 276659 296923

Total News Media Group

Advertising 1116362 1171200 1221108

Circulation 941468 931493 936486

Other 154745 154693 161784

Total 2212575 2257386 2319378
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Our Companys segment depreciation and amortization capital expenditures and assets and Corporates

capital expenditures and assets reconciled to consolidated amounts were as follows

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

20 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Operating Leases

Operating lease commitments are primarily for office space and equipment Certain office space leases provide

for rent adjustments relating to changes in real estate taxes and other operating costs

Rental expense amounted to approximately $21 million in 2011 $25 million in 2010 and $26 million in 2009 The

approximate minimum rental commitments under noncancelable leases net of subleases as of December 25 2011

were as follows

In thousands Amount

2012 16096

2013 11727

2014 10163

2015 8639

2016 5245

Later years 13888

Total minimum lease payments 65758

Less noncancelable subleases 16072

Total minimum lea8e payments net ofnoncancelable subleases 49686

December 27
2009In thousands

Depreciation and Amortization

News Media Group 105934 109341 122609

About Group 10520 11609 11087

Total 116454 120950 133696

Capital Expenditures

News Media Group 34576 26417 38136

About Group 4809 4856 4339

Corporate 5142 3423 2965

Total 44527 34696 45440

Assets

News Media Group 1619950 1869798 1993482

About Group 417321 429509 437597

Corporate 764160 851793 526066

Investments in
joint

ventures 82019 134641 131357

WQXR-FM Discontinued Operations 55

Total 2883450 3285741 3088557
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Capital Leases

Future minimum lease payments for all capital leases and the present value of the minimum lease payments as

of December 25 2011 were as follows

In thousands Amount

2012 573

2013 552

2014 552

2015 552

2016 552

Later years 8349

Total minimum lease payments 11130

Less imputed interest 4429

Present value of net minimum lease payments including current maturities 6701

Restricted Cash

We were required to maintain $27.6 million of restricted cash as of December 25 2011 subject to certain

collateral requirements primarily for obligations under our workers compensation programs These collateral

requirements were previously supported by letters of credit under our revolving credit facility that was replaced in

June 2011

Other

There are various legal actions that have arisen in the ordinary course of business and are now pending against

us These actions are generally for amounts greatly in excess of the payments if any that may be required to be made

It is the opinion of management after reviewing these actions with our legal counsel that the ultimate liability that

might result from these actions would not have material adverse effect on our Consolidated Financial Statements

21 Subsequent Events

Fenway Sports Group

On February 2012 we sold 100 of our units in Fenway Sports Group for an aggregate price
of $30.0 million

We will record pre-tax gain of approximately $18 million in the first quarter of 2012 Following the sale we own 210

units or 4.97% of Fenway Sports Group We continue to market our remaining units in Fenway Sports Group for

sale in whole or in parts

Effective with the sale given our reduced ownership level and lack of influence on the operations of Fenway

Sports Group we will change the accounting for our investment from the equity method to the cost method

Therefore we will no longer recognize our proportionate share of the operating results of Fenway Sports Group in

Income from joint ventures in our Consolidated Statements of Operations and our investment will be reclassified

from Investments in joint ventures into Miscellaneous assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheet

Regional Media Group

On January 2012 we completed the sale of the Regional Media Group consisting
of 16

regional newspapers
other print publications and related businesses to Halifax Media Holdings LLC for $143.0 million in cash subject to

certain adjustments We will record an after-tax gain estimated to be approximately $30 million on the sale in the first

quarter of 2012 We estimate the net after-tax proceeds from the sale including tax benefit will be approximately

$150 million which we plan to use for general corporate purposes

The requirements to
report

the net assets of the Regional Media Group as held for sale and its operating results

as discontinued operation were not met as of December 25 2011 Therefore the operating results of the Regional

Media Group are reported within continuing operations for the 3-year period ending December 25 2011
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The results of operations for the Regional Media Group and the estimated carrying amounts of the major classes

of assets and liabilities included as part of the sale are summarized in the following charts

December 25 December 26 December 27
In thousands 2011 2010 2009

Revenues 259945 276659 296923

Production costs and selling general and administrative costs 223367 236699 257710

Depreciation and amortization 11665 12655 14893

Total operating costs 235032 249354 272603

Impairment of assets 152093

Gain on sale of assets 5198

Pre-tax Ioss/income 127180 27305 29518

Income tax benefit/expense 10879 10783 13122

Not IossIlncome 116301 16522 16396

December 25 December 26
In thousands 2011 2010

Accounts receivable net 26550 27417

Property plant and equipment net 146287 157603

Goodwill 152093

Other assets 5344 7299

Total assets 178181 344412

Total liabilities 19568 22016

Net assets 158613 322396
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QUARTERLY INFORMATION UNAUDITED

2011 Quarters

March 27 June 26 September 25 December 25
2011 2011 2011 2011 Full Year

In thousands except per share data 13 weeks 13 weeks 13 weeks 13 weeks 52 weeks

Revenues 566504 576702 537235 642960 2323401

Operating costs 535430 525233 504190 528679 2093532

Impairment of asset11 161318 3116 164434

Pension withdrawal expense2 4228 4228

Other expense2 4500 4500

Operating profitlloss 31074 114077 33045 106665 56707

Gain on sale of investment4 5898 65273 71171

Loss/income from joint ventures 5749 2791 1068 4054 28

Premium on debt redemption5 46381 46381

Interest expense net 24591 25152 20039 15461 85243

Income/Qoss before income taxes 6632 136438 30830 95258 3718

Income tax expense/benefit 1406 16615 15362 36353 36506

Net income/Ioss 5226 119823 15468 58905 40224

Net loss attributable to the noncontrolling interest 193 105 217 40 555

Net incomelloss attnbutable to The New York Times

Company common stockholders 5419 119718 15685 58945 39669

Average number of common shares outstanding

Basic 146777 147176 147355 147451 147190

Diluted 153760 147176 151293 149887 147190

Earnings/loss per share attributable to The New York

Times Company common stockholders Basic 0.04 0.81 0.11 0.40 0.27

Earnings/loss per share attributable to The New York

Times Company common stockholdersDiluted 0.04 0.81 0.10 0.39 0.27

In the second quarter of 2011 we recorded $161.3 million charge for the impairment of assets at the News Media Group consisting of

$152.1 million related to goodwill at the Regional Media Group and $9.2 million related to certain assets held for sale primarily of Baseline In

the fourth quarter of 2011 we recorded $3.1 million charge for the impairment of an intangible asset at ConsumerSearch Inc which is part

of the About Group

In the second quarter of 2011 we recorded $4.2 million estimated charge for our pension withdrawal obligation under multiemployer

pension plan at the Globe

In the fourth quarter of 2011 we recorded $4.5 mullen charge for retirement and consulting agreement in connection with the retirement of

our chief executive officer

In the first quarter of 2011 we recorded $5.9 miiion gain from the sale of portion of our interest in lndeed.com job listing aggregator In

the third quarter of 2011 we recorded $65.3 miiion gain from the sale of 390 units in Fenway Sports Group

In the third quarter of 2011 we recorded $46.4 million charge in connection with the prepayment of our $250.0 million 14.053% Notes
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As described in Note 15 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements WQXR-FMs results of

operations have been presented as discontinued operations

2010 Quarters

June 27 September 26
2010 2010

March 28 December 26
2010 2010 Full Year

In thousands except per share data 13 weeks 13 weeks 13 weeks 13 weeks 52 weeks

Revenues 587867 589587 554333 661.676 2393463

Operating costs 535209 528762 522924 550032 2136927

Impairment of asset11 16148 16148

Pension withdrawal expense2 6268 6268

Operating profit 52658 60825 8993 111.644 234120

Gain on sale of investment3 9128 9128

Income/Ioss from
joint

ventures4 9111 7678 5482 3236 19035

Interest expense net 20584 20614 20627 23237 85062

Income/loss from continuing operations before income

taxes 41185 57017 6152 85171 177221

Income tax expense/benefit5 27027 25435 2018 18072 68516

Income/loss from continuing operations 14158 31582 4134 67099 108705

lncome/Ioss from discontinued operations net of income

taxes 237 224 13

Net income/Ioss 14158 31819 4358 67099 108718

Net income/loss attributable to the noncontrolling interest 1365 214 97 40 1014

Net income/loss attributable to The New York Times

Company common stockholders 12793 32033 4261 67139 107704

Amounts attributable to The New York Times Company
common stockholders

Income/loss from continuing operations 12.793 31796 4037 67139 107691

lncome/Ioss from discontinued operations net of

income taxes 237 224 13

Net income/Ioss 12793 32033 4261 67139 107704

Average number of common shares outstanding

Basic 145195 145601 145803 145947 145636

Diluted 153924 152962 145803 151048 152600

Basic earningslIoss per share attributable to The New
York Times Company common stockholders

lncome/loss from continuing operations 0.09 0.22 0.03 0.46 0.74

Income from discontinued operations net of income

taxes 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net income/loss 0.09 0.22 0.03 0.46 0.74

Diluted eamings/loss per share attributable to The New
York Times Company common stockholders

Income/loss from continuing operations 0.08 0.21 0.03 0.44 0.71

Income from discontinued operations net of income

taxes 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net income/loss 0.08 0.21 0.03 0.44 0.71

In the third quarter of 2010 we recorded $16.1 million charge for the impairment of assets at the Globes printing facility in Billerica Mass

In the third quarter of 2010 we recorded $6.3 million charge for an adjustment to estimated pension withdrawal obligations under several

multiemployer pension plans at the Globe

In the second quarter of 2010 we recorded $9.1 million gain from the sale of 50 units in Fenway Sports Group

In the first quarter of 2010 we recorded $12.7 million gain from the sale of an asset at one of the paper mills in which we have an

investment Our share of the gain after eliminating the noncontrolling interest portion wes $10.2 million

In the first and fourth quarters of 2010 we recorded $10.9 million and $0.5 million respectively related to tax charges for the reduction in

future tax benefits for retiree health benefits resulting from the federal health care reform legislation enacted in 2010
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Earnings/loss per share amounts for the quarters do not necessarily equal the respective year-end amounts

for earnings or loss per share due to the weighted-average number of shares outstanding used in the computations for

the
respective periods Earnings/loss per share amounts for the respective quarters and years have been computed

using the average number of common shares outstanding

Our largest source of revenue is advertising Our business has historically experienced higher advertising

volume in the fourth quarter than the remaining quarters
because of holiday advertising
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SCHEDULE Il-VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

For the Three Years Ended December 25 2011

In thousands

Description

Balance at

beginning
of period

Balance at

end of period

Additions

charged to

operating
costs and other Deductions

Accounts receivable allowances

Year ended December25 2011 30209 10531 22103 18637

Year ended December26 2010 36485 20326 26602 30209

Year ended December 27 2009 33838 59367 56720 36485

Valuation allowance for deterred tax assets

Year ended December 25 2011
39824 39824

Year ended December 26 2010

Year ended December 25 2009 1156 1156

Includes write -offs net of recoveries
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ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL

DISCLOSURE

Not applicable

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our management with the participation
of our principal

executive officer and our principal
financial officer

evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as of December 25 2011 Based upon such evaluation our principal
executive

officer and principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure

that the information required to be disclosed by us in the reports
that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules and

forms and is accumulated and communicated to our management including our principal executive officer and

principal financial officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Managements report on internal control over financial reporting and the attestation report of our independent

registered public accounting firm on our internal control over financial reporting are set forth in Item of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K and are incorporated by reference herein

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 25

2011 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial

reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In addition to the information set forth under the caption Executive Officers of the Registrant in Part of this

Animal Report on Form 10-K the information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections titled

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance Proposal Number Election of Directors Interests

of Related Persons in Certain Transactions of the Company Board of Directors and Corporate Governance

beginning with the section titled Independent Directors but only up to and including the section titled Audit

Committee Financial Experts and Board Committees of our Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders

The Board has adopted code of ethics that applies not only to the chief executive officer and senior financial

officers as required by the SEC but also to our Chairman and Vice Chairman The current version of such code of

ethics can be found on the Corporate Governance section of our Web site http /www.nytco.com

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections titled Compensation

Committee Directors Compensation Directors and Officers Liability Insurance and Compensation of

Executive Officers of our Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections titled Principal Holders of

Common Stock Security Ownership of Management and Directors and The 1997 Trust of our Proxy Statement

for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections titled Interests of Related

Persons in Certain Transactions of the Company Board of Directors and Corporate Governance Independent

Directors Board of Directors and Corporate Governance Board Committees and Board of Directors and

Corporate Governance Policy on Transactions with Related Persons of our Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual

Meeting of Stockholders

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the section titled Proposal Number

Selection of Auditors beginning with the section titled Audit Committees Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

but only up to and not including the section titled Recommendation and Vote Required of our Proxy Statement for

the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
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PARTIV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

DOCUMENTS FILED AS PART OF THIS REPORT

Financial Statements

As listed in the index to financial information in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Supplemental Schedules

The following additional consolidated financial information is filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

and should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements set forth in Item Financial

Statements and Supplementary Data Schedules not included with this additional consolidated financial information

have been omitted either because they are not applicable or because the required information is shown in the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Page

Consolidated Schedule for the Three Years Ended December 25 2011

II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 114

Separate financial statements and supplemental schedules of associated companies accounted for by the equity

method are omitted in accordance with the provisions of Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X

Exhibits

An exhibit index has been filed as part
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by

reference
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Date February 23 2012

THE NEW YORK TIMES COMPANY
Registrant

BY /s/ KENNETH RICHIERI

Kenneth Richieri

Senior Vice President and General Counsel

We the undersigned directors and officers of The New York Times Company hereby severally constitute Kenneth

Richieri and James Folio and each of them singly our true and lawful attorneys with full power to them and each

of them to sign for us in our names in the capacities indicated below any and all amendments to this Annual Report

on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this
report

has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

/s Arthur Sulzberger Jr Chairman Chief Executive Officer and Director February 23 2012

Principal Executive Officer

/s/ Michael Golden Vice Chairman and Director February 23 2012

Is James Folio Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer February 232012

Principal Financial Officer

/s/ Anthony Benten Senior Vice President Finance and Corporate Controller February 23 2012

Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ Raul Cesan Director February 23 2012

/s/ Robert Denham Director February 23 2012

/s Lynn Dolnick Director February 23 2012

/s/ Carolyn Greenspon Director February 23 2012

/s James Kohlberg Director February 23 2012

/s/ David Liddle Director February 23 2012

/s/ Ellen Marram Director February 23 2012

/s/ Thomas Middethoff Director February 23 2012

/5/ Doreen Toben Director February 23 2012
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit numbers 10.17 through 10.34 are management contracts or compensator plans or arrangements

Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibit

2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of December 272011 by and among NYT Holdings Inc The Houma
Courier Newspaper Corporation Lakeland Ledger Publishing Corporation The Spartanburg Herald-Journal

Inc Hendersonvile Newspaper Corporation The Dispatch Publishing Company Inc NYT Management
Services Inc The New York Times Company and Halifax Media Holdings LLC filed as an Exhibit to the

Companys Form 8-K dated December 27 2011 and incorporated by reference herein

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation as amended and restated to reflect amendments effective
July 12007 filed as an Exhibit

to the Companys Form l0-Q dated August 2007 and incorporated by reference herein

3.2 By-laws as amended through November 19 2009 filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated November
202009 and incorporated by reference herein

The Company agrees to furnish to the Commission upon request copy of any instrument with respect to long-term
debt of the Company and any subsidiary for which consolidated or unconsolidated financial statements are required
to be filed and for which the amount of securities authorized thereunder does not exceed 10% of the total assets of

the Company and its subsidiaries on consolidated basis

4.1 Indenture dated March 291995 between the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon as successor to Chemical

Bank as trustee filed as an Exhibit to the Company registration statement on Form S-3 File No 33-57403 and

incorporated by reference herein

4.2 First Supplemental Indenture dated August 21 1998 between the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon as

successor to The Chase Manhattan Bank formerly known as Chemical Bank as trustee filed as an Exhibit to the

Companys registration statement on Form S-3 File No 333-62023 and incorporated by reference herein

4.3 Second Supplemental Indenture dated July 26 2002 between the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon as
successor to JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A formerly known as Chemical Bank and The Chase Manhattan Bank as

trustee filed as an Exhibit to the Companys registration statement on Form S-3 File No 333-97199 and incorporated

by reference herein

4.4 Securities Purchase Agreement dated January 19 2009 among the Company Inmobiliaria Carso S.A de C.V and

Banco Inbursa S.A Institución de Banca Multiple Grupo Financiero Inbursa including forms of notes warrants

and registration rights agreement filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated January 21 2009 and

incorporated by reference herein

4.5 Form of Preemptive Rights Certificate filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated January 212009 and

incorporated by reference herein

4.6 Form of Preemptive Rights Warrant Agreement between the Company and Mellon Investor Services LLC filed as

an Exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated January 21 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

4.7 Indenture dated as of November 42010 by and between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank National Association

as trustee filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 8K dated November 2010 and incorporated by reference

herein

4.8 Form of 6.625% Senior Notes due 2016 included as an Exhibit to Exhibit 4.7 above

4.9 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of November 2010 by and between the Company and Barclays Capital
Inc filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated November 2010 and incorporated by reference herein

10.1 Agreement of Lease dated as of December 15 1993 between The City of New York as landlord and the Company
as tenant as successor to New York City Economic Development Corporation the EDC pursuant to an

Assignment and Assumption of Lease With Consent made as of December 15 1993 between the EDC as Assignor
to the Company as Assignee filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 10-K dated March 211994 and incorporated

by reference herein

10.2 Funding Agreement dated as of December 15 1993 between the EDC and the Company filed as an Exhibit to

the Companys Form 10-K dated March 21 1994 and incorporated by reference herein

10.3 New York City Public Utility Service Power Service Agreement dated as of May 1993 between The City of New
York acting by and through its Public Utility Service and The New York Times Newspaper Division of the Company
filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 10-K dated March 21 1994 and incorporated by reference herein

10.4 Letter Agreement dated as of April 2004 amending Agreement of Lease between the 42nd St Development
Project Inc as landlord and The New York Times Building LLC as tenant filed as an Exhibit to the Companys
Form 10-Q dated November 2006 and incorporated by reference herein

10.5 Agreement of Sublease dated as of December 12 2001 between The New York Times Building LLC as landlord
and NYT Real Estate Company LLC as tenant filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 10-Q dated November
2006 and incorporated by reference herein

10.6 First Amendment to Agreement of Sublease dated as of August 15 2006 between 42nd St Development Project
Inc as landlord and NYT Real Estate Company LLC as tenant filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 10-Q
dated November 2006 and incorporated by reference herein
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Exhibit

Number Description of Exhtbit

10.7 Second Amendment to Agreement of Sublease dated as of January 292007 between 42nd St Development Project

Inc as lafidlord and NIT Real Estate Company LLC as tenant filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated

February 2007 and incorporated by reference herein

10.8 Third Amendment to Agreement of Sublease NYT dated as of March 2009 between 42nd St Development

Project Inc as landlord and NYT Real Estate Company LLC as tenant filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form
8-K dated March 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

10.9 Fourth Amendment to Agreement of Sublease NIT dated as of March 2009 between 42nd St Development

Project Inc as landlord and 620 Eighth NIT NY Limited Partnership as tenant filed as an Exhibit to the

Companys Form 8-K dated March 92009 and incorporated by reference herein

10.10 Fifth Amendment to Agreement of Sublease NIT dated as of August 31 2009 between 42nd St Development
Project Inc as landlord and 620 Eighth NIT NY Limited Partnership as tenant filed as an Exhibit to the Companys
Form l0-Q dated November 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

10.11 Agreement of Sublease NYT-2 dated as of March 62009 between 42nd St Development Project Inc as landlord

and NIT Real Estate Company LLC as tenant filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated March 2009
and incorporated by reference herein

10.12 First Amendment to Agreement of Sublease NYT-2 dated as of March 2009 between 42nd St Development

Project Inc as landlord and NYT Building Leasing Company LLC as tenant filed as an Exhibit to the Companys
Form 8-K dated March 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

10.13 Agreement of Purchase and Sale dated as of March 2009 between NIT Real Estate Company LLC as seller and

620 Eighth NIT NY Limited
Partnership as buyer filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated March

2009 and incorporated by reference herem

10.14 Lease Agreement dated as of March 2009 between 620 Eighth NYT NY Limited Partnership as landlord and
NIT Real Estate Company LLC as tenant filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated March 2009 and

incorporated by reference herein

10.15 First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated as of August 31 2009 620 Eighth NIT NI Limited Partnership as

landlord and NIT Real Estate Company LLC as tenant filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 10-Q dated

November 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

10.16 Credit Agreement dated as of June 2011 among the Company and certain of its domestic subsidiaries as borrowers
the financial institutions party thereto as lenders SunTrust Bank as issuing bank and administrative agent SunTrust

Robinson Humphrey Inc Wells Fargo Capital Finance LLC and J.P Morgan Securities LLC as joint lead arrangers
and joint book runners Sunlrust Robinson Humphrey Inc and Wells Fargo Capital Finance LLC as co-collateral

agents and JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A as syndication agent filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated

June 2011 and incorporated by reference herein

10.17 The Companys 2010 Incentive Compensation Plan filed as an exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated April 28
2010 and incorporated by reference herein

10.18 The Companys 1991 Executive Stock Incentive Plan as amended and restated through October 112007 filed as an
Exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated October 12 2007 and incorporated by reference herein

10.19 The Companys 1991 Executive Cash Bonus Plan as amended and restated through October 11 2007 filed as an
Exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated October 122007 and incorporated by reference herein

10.20 The Companys Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan amended and restated effective December 31 2009 filed

as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated November 12 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

10.21 Amendment to the Companys Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan amended effective April27 2010 filed as

an Exhibit to the Companys Form 10-Q dated August 2010 and incorporated by reference herein

10.22 The Companys Deferred Executive Compensation Plan as amended and restated effective January 2012

10.23 The Companys Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan as amended through September 212000 ified as an
Exhibit to the Companys Form 10-Q dated November 2000 and incorporated by reference herein

10.24 The Companys 2004 Non-Employee Directors Stock Incentive Plan effective April 13 2004 filed as an Exhibit to

the Companys Form 10-Q dated May 2004 and incorporated by reference herein

10.25 The Companys Non-Employee Directors Deferral Plan as amended through October 11 2007 ffle4 as an Exhibit

to the Companys Form 8-I dated October 12 2007 and incorporated by reference herein

10.26 The Companys Savings Restoration Plan effective as of January 2010 filed as an Exhibit to the Companys
Form 8-K dated November 12 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

10.27 Amendment No ito the Companys Savings Restoration Plan amended effective March 282011 filed as an
Exhibit to the Companys Form i0-Q dated May 2011 and incorporated by reference herein

10.28 The Companys Supplemental Executive Savings Plan effective as of January 2010 filed as an Exhibit to the

Companys Form 8-K dated November 12 200 and incorporated by reference herein
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Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibit

10.29 Amendment to the Companys Supplemental Executive Savings Plan amended effective April 27 2010 filed as

an Exhibit to the Companys Form 10-Q dated August 2010 and incorporated by reference herein

10.30 Amendment No to the Companys Supplemental Executive Savings Plan amended effective March 28 2011

filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 10-Q dated May 2011 and incorporated by reference herein

10.31 The New York Times Companies Supplemental Retirement and Investment Plan amended and restated effective

January 2011 filed as anExhibit to the Companys Form 10-Q dated November 2011 and incorporated by
reference herein

10.32 Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement dated as of September 172009 between the Company and Arthur Su1zberer
Jr filed as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated September 18 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

10.33 Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement dated as of September 172009 between the Company and Janet Robinson

ified as an Exhibit to the Companys Form 8-K dated September 18 2009 and incorporated by reference herein

10.34 Retirement and Consulting Agreement dated as of December 152011 between the Company and Janet Robinson

12 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

21 Subsidiaries of the Company

23.1 Consent of Ernst Young LLP

24 Power of Attorney included as part of signature page

31.1 Rule 13a-14a/15d-14a Certification

31.2 Rule 13a-14a/ 15d-14a Certification

32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

Pursuant to Rule 406 of Regulation S-1 these interactive data files are deemed not filed or part of registration statement or prospectus for

purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 or Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and otheiwise

are not subject to liability under those sections
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EXHIBIT 12

The New York Times Company Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges Unaudited

In thousands except ratio

LossIearnings from continuing operations
before fixed charges

Loss/earnings from continuing operations

before income taxes noncontroJling interest and

income/loss from joint ventures 3746 158186 16892 88981 146728

Distributed earning from less than fifty-percent

owned affiliates 3463 8325 2775 35733 7979

Adjusted pre-tax Ioss/earnings from continuing

operations 283 166511 14117 53248 154707

Fixed charges less capitalized interest 90457 92888 88608 55038 49228

Earnings/loss from continuing operations

before fixed charges 90174 259399 74491 1790 203935

Fixed charges

Interest expense net of capitalized

interest 85693 86301 83124 48191 43228

Capitalized interest 427 299 1566 2639 15821

Portion of rentals representative of interest

factor 4764 6587 5484 6847 6000

Total fixed charges 90884 93187 90174 57677 65049

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges2 2.78 3.14

Note The Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 25 2011

The Companys policy is to classify interest expense recognized on uncertain tax positions as income tax expense The Company has

excluded interest expense recognized on uncertain tax positions from the Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

In 20112009 and 2008 earnings were inadequate to cover fixed charges by approximately $1 million $16 million and $56 miiion

respectively due to certain charges in each year

December 25
2011

December 26
2010

December 27 December 28 December 30
2009 2008 2007
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EXHIBIT 21

Our Subsidiaries

Jurisdiction of

Incorporation or
Name of Subsidiary Organization

The New York Times Company New York

About Inc Delaware

About International Cayman Islands

About Information Technology Beijing Co Ltd Peoples Republic of China

ConsumerSearch Inc Delaware

Epsilen LLC 57% Indiana

IHT LLC Delaware

International Herald Tribune S.A.S France

IHT Kathimerini S.A 50% Greece

International Business Development IBD France

International Herald Tribune Hong Kong LTD Hong Kong

International Herald Tribune Singapore Pte LTD Singapore

international Herald Tribune Thailand LTD Thailand

IHT Malaysia Sdn Bhd Malaysia

International Herald Tribune B.V Netherlands

IHT Publishing India Private Limited India

International Herald Tribune GMBH Germany

International Herald Tribune Zurich GmbH Switzerland

International Herald Tribune Japan GK Japan

International Herald Tribune Ltd U.K UK
International Herald Tribune U.S Inc New York

The Herald Tribune Haaretz Partnership 50% Israel

London Bureau Limited United Kingdom
Madison Paper Industries partnership 40% Maine

Media Consortium LLC 25% Delaware

N.E.S.V LLC d/b/a Fenway Sports Group 4.97% Delaware

New York Times Digital LLC Delaware

Northern SC Paper Corporation 80% Delaware

NYT Administradora de Bens Servicos Ltda Brazil

NYT Building Leasing Company LLC New York

NYT Group Services LLC Delaware

NYT News Bureau India Private Limited India

NYT Real Estate Company LLC New York

The New York Times Building LLC 58% New York

Rome Bureau S.r.l Italy

NYT Capital LLC Delaware

Donohue Malbaie Inc 49% Canada

Globe Newspaper Company Inc Massachusetts

Boston Globe Electronic Publishing LLC Delaware

Boston Globe Marketing LLC Delaware

Community Newsdealers LLC Delaware

Community Newsdealers Holdings Inc Delaware

GlobeDirect LLC Delaware

New England Direct LLC 50% Delaware

Metro Boston LLC 49% Delaware

quadrantONE LLC 25% Delaware

Retail Sales LLC Delaware
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Name of Subsidiary

Hendersonville Newspaper Corporation

Hendersonville Newspaper Holdings Inc

Lakeland Ledger Publishing Corporation

Lakeland Ledger Holdings Inc
Midtown Insurance Company

NYT Holdings Inc

NIT Management Services Inc

NIT Shared Service Center Inc

International Media Concepts Inc

The Dispatch Publishing Company Inc

The Dispatch Publishing Holdings Inc
The Houma Courier Newspaper Corporation

The Houma Courier Newspaper Holdings Inc
The New York Times Distribution Corporation

The New York Times Sales Company

The New York Times Syndication Sales Corporation

The Spartanburg Herald-Journal Inc
Worcester Telegram Gazette Corporation

Worcester Telegram Gazette Holdings Inc

100% owned unless otherwise indicated

On January 2012 completed the sale of the Regional Media Group

Jurisdiction of

Incorporation or

Organization

North Carolina

Delaware

Florida

Delaware

New York

Alabama

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

North Carolina

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Massachusetts

Delaware

Delaware

Massachusetts

Delaware
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EXHIBIT 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements No 333-43369 No 333-43371

No 333-37331 No 333-09447 No 33-31538 No 33-43210 No 33-43211 No 33-50465 No 33-50467 No 33-56219

No 333-49722 No 333-70280 No 333-102041 No 333-114767 No 333-156475 and No 333-166426 on Form S-8

Registration Statements No 333-97199 No 333-156477 and No 333-172389 and Amendment No to Registration

Statement No 333-123012 on Form S-3 and Registration Statement No 333-172390 on Form S-4 of The New York

Times Company of our reports dated February 23 2012 with respect to the consolidated financial statements and

schedule of The New York Times Company and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of The

New York Times Company included in this Annual Report Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 25 2011

Is Ernst Young LLP

New York New York

February 23 2012
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EXHIBIT 31.1

Rule 3a-1 4a/i 5d-i4a Certification

Arthur Sulzberger Jr certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The New York Times Company

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material
respects

the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the

period in which this
report

is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accountmg principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the

period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an

annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants

internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the
registrants

auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All
significant

deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process
summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 23 2012

/5/ ARTHUR SULZBERGER JR

Arthur Sulzberger Jr

Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

Rule 3a-1 4a/i 5d-1 4a Certification

James Folio certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The New York Times Company

Based on my knowledge this
report

does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of
and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing
and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the

period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accountmg principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the

period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an

annuaTl report that has
materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants

internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the
registrants

auditors and the audit conirnittee of the
registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrants ability to record process

summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 23 2012

/s/ JAMES F0LL0

James Folio

Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The New York Times Company the Company for the

fiscal year ended December 25 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the

Report Arthur Sulzberger Jr Chief Executive Officer of the Company certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that based on my knowledge

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results

of operations of the Company

February 23 2012

/s/ ARTHUR SULzBERGER JR

Arthur Sulzberger Jr

Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The New York Times Company the Company for the

fiscal year ended December 25 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the

Report James Folio Chief Financial Officer of the Company certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that based on my knowledge

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results

of operations of the Company

February 23 2012

/s/ JAMES F0LLO

James Folio

Chief Financial Officer
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Shareholder Information Online

www.nytco.com

Visit our Web site for information about the Company including the

Code of Ethics for our chairman CEO vice chairman and senior

financial officers and our Business Ethics Policy

Office of the Secretary

212 556-5995

Corporate Communications Investor Relations

212 556-4317

Stock Listing

The Companys Class Common Stock is listed on the New York

Stock Exchange Ticker symbol NYT

Registrar Transfer Agent

If
you are registered shareholder and have question about your

account or would like to report change in your name or address

please contact

Computershare

480 Washington Boulevard

Jersey City NJ 07310-1900

www.bnymellon.com shareowner equityaccess

Domestic 800 240-0345 TOO Line 800 231-5469

Foreign 201 680-6578 TDD Line 201 680-6610

Career Opportunities

Employment applicants should apply online at www.nytco.com careers

The Company is committed to policy of providing equal employment

opportunities without regard to race color religion national origin

gender age marital status sexual orientation or disability or any other

characteristic covered by law

Annual Meeting

Wednesday April 25 2012 at 10a.m

TheTimesCenter

242 West 41st Street

New York NY 10018

Auditors

Ernst Young LLP

Times Square

New York NY 10036

The New York Times Company Foundation Inc

The New York Times Neediest Cases Fund

620 Eighth Avenue 16th Floor

New York NY 10018

The New York Times Company Foundation and The New York Times

Neediest Cases Fund conduct range of philanthropic activities in

New York and in communities that are home to The New York Times

Company business units Each
year

The New York Times Neediest

Cases Fund holds fund-raising campaign during the holiday season

with stories in The New York Times describing the travails of families

and individuals in distress It then distributes the funds from the

campaign to seven social welfare agencies The New York Times

Neediest Cases Fund may also contribute funds from its endowment

to address an immediate and urgent need

More information about The New York Times Company Foundation

and The New York Times Neediest Cases Fund is available at

www.nytco.com foundation

The Boston Globe Foundation

RO Box 55819

Boston MA 02205-5819

The mission of The Boston Globe Foundation is to empower community-

based organizations to effect real change in the areas of greatest need

where The Boston Globe is uniquely positioned to add the most value

The Boston Globe Foundation administers Globe Santa holiday toy-

distribution program that collects donations from the public to purchase

and deliver toys to thousands of children in Greater Boston

Forward-Looking Statements

Except for the historical information the matters discussed in this Annual

Report are forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties

that could cause actual results to differ materially from those predicted by

such forward-looking statements These risks and uncertainties include

national and local conditions as well as competition that could influence

the levels rate and volume of national retail and classified advertising

and circulation generated by the Companys various markets material

increases in newsprint prices and the development of the Companys digital

businesses They also include other risks detailed from time to lime in the

Companys publicly filed documents including its Annual Report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year ended December 25 2011 The Company undertakes

no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statement whether as

result of new information future events or otherwise Copyright 2012

The New York Times Company

All rights reserved
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